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          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: This joint

          3  hearing of the General Welfare Committee and the

          4  Public Safety Committees of the New York City

          5  Council is now called to order.

          6                 I'd like to start by thanking Speaker

          7  Quinn and my colleague, Chair Peter Vallone, Jr.,

          8  for agreeing to this hearing. I want to thank Peter,

          9  in particular, for coordinating so closely on what I

         10  think is obviously one of the most important issues

         11  facing the City today. And I appreciate the speed

         12  with which everyone involved put this hearing

         13  together, because I know people of New York City are

         14  looking for answers in general in terms of the

         15  number of cases involving child abuse that our City

         16  is facing, but specifically regarding the

         17  relationship between the Administration for

         18  Children's Services, and the New York City Police

         19  Department.

         20                 I want to say at the outset that

         21  we're very appreciative that Commissioner has agreed

         22  to join us. We know how valuable his time is, and we

         23  think it is an example of his commitment to working

         24  on this issue and solving some of the problems we

         25  face that he has decided himself to be here and to
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          2  provide testimony. So, we thank you, Commissioner.

          3                 Let me just say at the outset, these

          4  last few weeks have been very difficult for all of

          5  us, and we are all seeking answers to what is a

          6  collective problem.

          7                 We said a few weeks back when we had

          8  Commissioner Mattingly for, really an exhaustive

          9  hearing, I believe he provided about four and a half

         10  hours of testimony after the tragic details of the

         11  Nixzmary Brown case came out. We said at that time

         12  and we have to repeat it, that this is not about

         13  finger pointing. This is not about saying who the

         14  good guys are and who the bad guys are. There is

         15  more than enough blame to go around, and the real

         16  issue is to look for constructive solutions going

         17  forward.

         18                 I think the City Council as the

         19  oversight body that has responsibility for making

         20  sure each mayoral agency is doing all it can, we

         21  bear the responsibility, the agencies bear

         22  responsibility, everyone involved from the front

         23  line to the managerial levels bears responsibility.

         24                 And I think one of the crucial

         25  dynamics that came out in our last hearing is how
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          2  much it depends on the relationship between each

          3  agency of our City and the front line workers and

          4  officers of each agency.

          5                 Commissioner Mattingly said a few

          6  weeks ago that one of the factors complicating

          7  things in terms of protecting children is that there

          8  is not yet enough connection and coordination

          9  between Administration for Children's Services, the

         10  Police Department, Department of Education, all of

         11  the agencies that have a direct responsibility for

         12  working with and protecting children.

         13                 In fact, he said there had been some

         14  history of quote/unquote "ill-will" between these

         15  agencies, that at the front line, not at the

         16  managerial level, not at the level of people who run

         17  agencies, but at the front line, there still had

         18  been some serious tendencies towards

         19  misunderstanding and lack of coordination.

         20                 And, in fact, if you look at the

         21  history over the years, this is not a new problem.

         22  These agencies have very different cultures, very

         23  different training regimens, different missions, and

         24  it is hard to get them on the same page.

         25                 But now we realize, not just because
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          2  of the Nixzmary Brown case, but because of many

          3  cases, that it's even more vital to find solutions,

          4  to find ways of bringing these agencies together as

          5  one, when it comes to each child's case. Some of

          6  that may be training, some of that may be

          7  supervision, some of that may be changing our

          8  protocols. Some of that may be managerial issues, in

          9  terms of determining when we declare the kind of

         10  crisis in a child's life that requires all these

         11  agencies to come together in coordination.

         12                 This is the second hearing of what

         13  will be a series of hearings. We will certainly have

         14  a hearing in which Department of Education and

         15  Chancellor Klein are brought in to talk about that

         16  level of coordination.

         17                 We're going to look at a number of

         18  other related issues, including Family Court,

         19  including substance abuse, all the issues that

         20  affect children and their families and have a

         21  relationship to the problem of child abuse.

         22                 But I think of all the hearings we're

         23  going to do, this is going to be one of the most

         24  important, because really, the role of the police

         25  and the role of ACS working together provides the
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          2  greatest hope in many cases of stopping a problem

          3  before it gets to a level of a tragedy.

          4                 Today I think we very much want to

          5  understand both from Commissioner Kelly and from

          6  Deputy Commissioner Marino of ACS, who will be in

          7  the panel that follows. We want to understand what

          8  is in place now in terms of protocols, training,

          9  supervision. We want to understand how cases that

         10  are difficult and complex reach higher levels in the

         11  chain of command so that the best minds and the

         12  folks with the most authority are brought into play

         13  while there's still time to solve a problem. I think

         14  that's something we also saw in the Nixzmary Brown

         15  case and some other cases, there's no doubt that had

         16  some of the more senior officials of each agency

         17  been involved, that perhaps there would have been

         18  quicker and more decisive responses. So, we want to

         19  understand how that information is flowing upward.

         20                 We want to understand what resources

         21  each agency needs to be able to do their job and to

         22  do their job together. I think we were all troubled

         23  to find out last time that ACS workers don't have

         24  cell phones, don't have hand-held computers.

         25                 As Speaker Quinn has said, the folks
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          2  who work in the Parking Violations Bureau have

          3  better technology than the folks who protect our

          4  kids.

          5                 We have to make sure that there's not

          6  only a protocol that facilitates the relationship

          7  between ACS and the police, there's also the

          8  equipment and the support to get things done.

          9                 We have to look at the issue of

         10  instant response teams and the protocol that

         11  determines they be called together, because that's

         12  really the chief vehicle for ensuring that police

         13  and ACS work together in a dangerous and complex

         14  case. We need to understand what causes those teams

         15  to be brought together and the protocols government.

         16                 We have many, many important issues

         17  before us today. As I said earlier, this goes far

         18  beyond the Nixzmary Brown case per se, but it is the

         19  most recent example that we will refer to in this

         20  hearing to look at specifically how these agencies

         21  relate. And we do know that even though there was a

         22  coordinated effort between ACS and the police in

         23  that case, and particularly on the day of December

         24  1st, 2005, when ACS workers and police officers were

         25  at Nixzmary's school working together, we also know
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          2  that somehow the communication and the coordination

          3  broke down in the days that followed, and obviously

          4  a tragedy occurred that none of us want to see

          5  happen again.

          6                 So, we have very important matters

          7  before us today. I want to now turn to my colleague,

          8  Chair Peter Vallone, Jr., again thanking him for

          9  making this hearing possible, and welcoming his

         10  opening remarks.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Chair

         12  DeBlasio. And let me also point out that it was

         13  Chair DeBlasio after his original hearing on this

         14  topic who realized there were many more questions

         15  that needed to be answered, and realize they needed

         16  to be answered by the NYPD and requested that we

         17  immediately set up this joint hearing. And, in fact,

         18  one of those questions answered by our Commissioner,

         19  who is with us today and we thank him for that, and

         20  that also shows the importance that the NYPD places

         21  on this issue, and the Administration places on this

         22  issue. So, again, we realize how busy the

         23  Commissioner is.

         24                 The Mayor announced back in January,

         25  January 24th of '06, that he would be reviewing the
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          2  existing protocols which exist for coordination

          3  between ACS and the NYPD. This is going to be an

          4  opportunity now for us to find out what progress has

          5  been made in that regard.

          6                 We're going to be looking at

          7  specifics today: things like how the NYPD handles

          8  child abuse cases; how it interacts with the ACS;

          9  what type of training they receive; what cross

         10  training occurs with ACS; does the NYPD have

         11  dedicated personnel to handle these type of cases;

         12  when are warrants involved; who makes that decision.

         13  We will be looking for specifics today.

         14                 Also of serious concern to both of

         15  our Committees is the fact that allegations have

         16  been made by Commissioner Mattingly, as Bill

         17  DeBlasio said and others, that there is an ill-will

         18  between these departments and that perhaps

         19  cooperation isn't always what it should be. In fact,

         20  people have been contacting both myself and my staff

         21  prior to this meeting from ACS with reinforcing

         22  those allegations.

         23                 We have not heard from the NYPD on

         24  this topic, and this will be the Commissioner's

         25  chance to respond to these allegations. What's
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          2  important, of course, is not allegations but is the

          3  fact these two agencies do work together for the

          4  purpose of protecting our kids. The focus of this

          5  hearing is going to be what coordination there is

          6  and how we can improve that cooperation.

          7                 Our job, our oversight job here is to

          8  ensure that everything possible is done to make sure

          9  that no more tragedies like little Nixzmary occur

         10  again.

         11                 So, let me first quickly introduce

         12  the Council members who have joined us today. Again,

         13  it's a joint Committee hearing, so we have a lot. We

         14  have on the end, Council Member Gale Brewer; Council

         15  Member Dan Garodnick; Council Member Jessica Lappin.

         16  On the far right, Jim Oddo. I don't know why that

         17  seems to fit, but okay. Next to him, Council Member

         18  Koppell; Council Member Annabel Palma. In the front

         19  row, Council Member Joe Addabbo; and Council Member

         20  Melinda Katz. Thank you all for joining us.

         21                 Commissioner, again, thank you for

         22  coming down today on this important topic. Please

         23  introduce who you are here with today and the floor

         24  is yours.

         25                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Thank you very
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          2  much, Mr. Chairman. I'm here with Chief of

          3  Detectives George Brown. Chief of Department Joe

          4  Esposito will be here shortly. He is attending a

          5  funeral in Staten Island. And I have other members,

          6  key members of my staff here with me this morning.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  speak with you about the coordination of the efforts

          9  of the New York City Police Department and the

         10  Administration for Children's Services, as we

         11  respond to reports of child abuse and neglect.

         12                 The tragic death of Nixzmary Brown

         13  has raised serious questions regarding how

         14  governmental agencies, as well as private

         15  individuals and organizations, may recognize the

         16  danger signs of child abuse and take appropriate

         17  action to protect children.

         18                 We commend the Council for focusing

         19  public attention on the overall issue, and

         20  especially on the particular aspect that we're

         21  discussing today, NYPD's partnership with ACS.

         22                 The framework for our partnership

         23  with ACS is the "Instant Response Teams Protocol,"

         24  an operational protocol which guides us as we

         25  receive and investigate allegations of child abuse
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          2  and neglect.

          3                 The protocol was created in 1998, as

          4  a means of combining the resources of the New York

          5  City Police Department, the Administration for

          6  Children's Services, the District Attorneys, the

          7  medical community, and victim service organizations

          8  for cases involving severe child abuse and

          9  maltreatment by a parent or person legally

         10  responsible for the care of a child.

         11                 Briefly, when an Instant Response is

         12  called members of the NYPD and ACS conduct a "facts

         13  only" interview and investigation. Depending upon

         14  the results, other participating entities, such as

         15  the District Attorney, medical providers and service

         16  providers, may become involved and they coordinated,

         17  in-depth investigation is performed.

         18                 It must be remembered that the NYPD

         19  and ACS are very different agencies. Although our

         20  activities may overlap when handling cases of child

         21  abuse, we fulfill roles and have different basic

         22  missions.

         23                 As stated in the protocol, the NYPD's

         24  primary role is to investigate allegations of

         25  criminal activity and to enforce the law.

                                                            15

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2                 The mandate of ACS includes receiving

          3  investigated suspected cases of child abuse and mal

          4  treatment; assessing the safety and needs of all the

          5  children and the family; providing services to keep

          6  families together; removing children in imminent

          7  danger; initiating the process of legal intervention

          8  by the Family Court; and providing foster care

          9  placements when needed.

         10                 However, these diverse missions come

         11  together when we are confronted with allegations of

         12  severe child abuse and maltreatment. In such cases,

         13  the Instant Response Team has several joint

         14  objectives: to ensure that evidence is gathered in a

         15  timely, effective and coordinated manner; to remove

         16  the alleged abuser instead of the children; to

         17  minimize trauma to children during the investigation

         18  process by reducing the need for repetitive

         19  interviews; and to hold interviews and medical exams

         20  in child-friendly environments when possible.

         21                 How does it work? ACS has in place a

         22  cadre of staff members designated IRT Coordinators,

         23  who provide the point of contact for the invoking of

         24  an Instant Response. The Instant Response Team

         25  protocol is set in motion based on circumstances
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          2  indicating the possibility of severe abuse, defined

          3  as sexual abuse, serious physical abuse, or severe

          4  maltreatment, such as life-threatening malnutrition.

          5                 Note that the protocol also provides

          6  for multi-agency coordination even in cases not

          7  requiring an Instant Response. For example, when ACS

          8  personnel need help in making field visits in

          9  potentially dangerous situations, or for the purpose

         10  of serving Family Court warrants, they may report to

         11  the local precinct stationhouse and request

         12  assistance from the Desk Officer, who will direct

         13  that patrol officers accompany them to ensure their

         14  safety. ACS caseworkers are, of course, also urged

         15  to call 9-1-1 in an emergency.

         16                 Allegations of suspected child abuse

         17  or neglect may arise from many sources and come to

         18  the attention of either ACS or the NYPD. ACS may

         19  receive a report from the State Central Register, or

         20  SCR. NYPD personnel may suspect child abuse in the

         21  course of responding to a 911 call. ACS caseworkers

         22  may receive a call directly from a school or may

         23  happen upon suspicious circumstances as they conduct

         24  a field visit.

         25                 As mandated reporters, police
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          2  officers must contact the State Central Register

          3  whenever they reasonably suspect that a child is

          4  abused, neglected or maltreated.

          5                 Police supervisors also have the

          6  authority to take unilateral action to remove

          7  children when they are in imminent danger. Whenever

          8  the police make an arrest or remove a child based on

          9  suspected child abuse, the officer must contact an

         10  IRT Coordinator through ACS's IRT Hot Line number.

         11  But even in cases where there does not appear to be

         12  imminent danger, if the suspected abuse is severe,

         13  the provisions of the "Instant Response Team"

         14  protocol may be invoked.

         15                 Whether initiated by the NYPD or ACS,

         16  if an Instant Response is called, the protocol

         17  requires cooperation from the other participating

         18  agencies. Similar to a call to 911, the NYPD has no

         19  right of refusal to an Instant Response. Once the

         20  IRT is triggered by an IRT Coordinator, appropriate

         21  NYPD personnel respond. Similarly, when patrol

         22  officers call the IRT hot line, ACS is mandated to

         23  provide a response.

         24                 Once an Instant Response is called,

         25  NYPD personnel and ACS caseworkers respond to the
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          2  scene and investigate the suspected severe abuse

          3  allegations together, if possible. Depending on the

          4  age of the child and the specific crime reported,

          5  NYPD personnel may include patrol officers, precinct

          6  detectives, Special Victims Squad personnel, or

          7  Child Abuse Squad personnel.

          8                 In a typical case, the Instant

          9  Response begins for the Police Department when an

         10  IRT Coordinator places a telephone call to a

         11  precinct detective, Special Victims or Child Abuse

         12  Squad and faxes supporting paperwork.

         13                 A supervisor in the Squad receives

         14  notification of the IRT and chooses detectives to

         15  respond. This choice is based on a rotation with

         16  each detective assigned the case, including Instant

         17  Response cases, in turn. The detective contacts the

         18  assigned ACS caseworker to coordinate the response

         19  and interviews.

         20                 The detectives confer with other team

         21  members and conduct a preliminary investigation, as

         22  in all responses to suspected crimes. This brief

         23  interview assesses the safety of the victims and the

         24  need for medical attention, while leaving physical

         25  evidence undisturbed to be evaluated and preserved,
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          2  if appropriate.

          3                 If the Instant Response Team

          4  determines that the facts warrant a further in-depth

          5  interview, the children may be removed to another

          6  location to conduct the interview, ideally in a

          7  child-friendly setting like a Child Advocacy Center.

          8  At the CAC, a member of the Instant Response Team

          9  will conduct an in-depth interview after the child

         10  receives any necessary medical attention. If

         11  possible, only one person will conduct the

         12  interview, with the police selecting the best suited

         13  person in each particular case, for example, whoever

         14  has the best rapport with the child, or has a

         15  particular expertise, or speaks his or her language.

         16  The other members of the Instant Response Team

         17  usually observe through a one-way mirror. Ideally,

         18  the original source of the allegation is interviewed

         19  first, and then any other non-offender adults and

         20  potential witnesses, followed by the child, and

         21  finally, when appropriate, the alleged perpetrator.

         22                 From the CAC or other suitable

         23  location, ACS determines whether the children will

         24  return home or go to other care arrangements. The

         25  detectives continue with their investigation using
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          2  standard investigative techniques. Tasks may include

          3  follow-up interviews, searching for the perpetrator,

          4  gathering forensic evidence, obtaining medical

          5  records, et cetera. The investigation from this

          6  point forward is the same as for any other criminal

          7  investigation. The IRT Coordinator is thereafter

          8  responsible for tracking the case from referral to

          9  disposition.

         10                 I have described for you the way the

         11  protocol works in practical terms. Let me state here

         12  that, as all agencies now agree, an Instant Response

         13  was never involved by ACS in the Nixzmary Brown

         14  case.

         15                 We believe that the protocol outlines

         16  a good system which works in the vast majority of

         17  cases. We invariably respond to IRT cases and other

         18  requests for assistance from ACS as quickly as we

         19  can.

         20                 There may be instances where police

         21  are not immediately available for the sole purpose

         22  of escorting an ACS caseworker on a home visit, due

         23  to other pressing demands on our patrol resources.

         24                 However, there is always an immediate

         25  police response to a report of a child in imminent
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          2  danger. Response time for all calls of crimes in

          3  progress is 7.2 minutes, yet response time for calls

          4  for an assault on a child is 5.8 minutes, nearly a

          5  minute and one-half faster, a minute and a half

          6  faster. Moreover, patrol supervisors have the

          7  authority to take immediate action to remove the

          8  child.

          9                 As you might expect, our agency's

         10  limited resources have been strained by an

         11  unprecedented increase in the number of reported

         12  child abuse cases which we have received, including

         13  a dramatic increase in IRT cases, in the aftermath

         14  of Nixzmary Brown's death.

         15                 In addition to child abuse cases, our

         16  Special Victims Squads handle serious sex offenses

         17  of all kinds. Last year alone they handled over

         18  5,500 of these cases, and effected over 1,600

         19  arrests. Over the past month, our Special Victims

         20  Division caseload has jumped almost 65 percent, with

         21  a 226 percent increase in Instant Responses.

         22                 If this trend continues, the average

         23  caseload of a Special Victims detective will

         24  increase from 48 cases to 93 cases per Special

         25  Victims/Child Abuse detective by the end of the
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          2  year.

          3                 As the vast majority of this increase

          4  is occurring in Brooklyn, we have assigned

          5  additional detectives from other Special Victims and

          6  precinct detective squads to our Brooklyn Child

          7  Abuse Squad, and will continue to monitor the

          8  caseload to ensure that we have sufficient personnel

          9  available.

         10                 However, we have found that many of

         11  the recent cases in which an Instant Response has

         12  been called do not fall squarely within the

         13  criteria, and we must exercise caution not to

         14  overutilize the protocol, and thereby make it more

         15  difficult to respond appropriately to the critical

         16  cases the protocol is meant to cover.

         17                 The issue of resources, although

         18  vitally important, is not the only concern we have

         19  regarding Instant Response. We are currently

         20  participating in a comprehensive review of the

         21  entire protocol, as well as broader communication

         22  and coordination issues, as part of the Mayor's

         23  Interagency Task Force. We are focused on working

         24  together with the other members of the Mayor's Task

         25  Force to explore our policies and practices in
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          2  depth, and will present our joint recommendations to

          3  the Mayor within the next few weeks.

          4                 I would like to make one final point.

          5  Although you have no doubt heard anecdotes regarding

          6  miscommunication or worse between our respective

          7  agencies, we have learned that, in fact, reliable

          8  personal contacts and good working relationships

          9  have developed throughout the collegial community of

         10  child protective workers and detectives. Our

         11  investigation of the circumstances of the Nixzmary

         12  Brown case and conferrals with both ACS personnel

         13  and our own members of the service, reveal that

         14  field level workers in NYPD and ACS overwhelmingly

         15  respect and support each other's work. We look

         16  forward to strengthening our common bond through the

         17  work of the Interagency Task Force, to put in place

         18  better structures to support the partnership that

         19  already exists.

         20                 In closing, I want to thank again the

         21  Council and the Committee for giving us the

         22  opportunity to share our thoughts with you. By

         23  working together, the NYPD and ACS, and other

         24  agencies involved in the investigation and

         25  prevention of child abuse and neglect can improve
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          2  our efforts to better protect the children of New

          3  York City.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          6  Commissioner. Chairman DeBlasio was present for

          7  Commissioner Mattingly's testimony so I'm going to

          8  defer to him for the first set of questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 Commissioner Kelly, let me say at the

         12  outset that I had the honor of watching the work you

         13  do now over several administrations. I was working

         14  in the Dinkins' Administration at the time when you

         15  first became Commissioner, and I just want to

         16  express the profound respect I have for you and your

         17  Department and the work you do. I know my colleagues

         18  share that.

         19                 So, I think we have some very, some

         20  major concerns and some tough questions today, but I

         21  want to say at the outset that we ask them with real

         22  respect and knowing that we have a shared sense of

         23  mission here.

         24                 I think, you know, we want to talk

         25  well beyond the Nixzmary Brown case and we want to
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          2  talk about the future, but I've got to first ask you

          3  a little bit about your analysis of what happened

          4  there.

          5                 As you said, the problem appears to

          6  have stemmed from a lack of coordination on the

          7  determination that it was an IRT situation, but I'm

          8  concerned also that in a truly collegial dynamic

          9  that the warning signs could be seen by any and all

         10  folks who are working together, the Department of

         11  Education, ACS, the police, and that we may have a

         12  problem at the beginning of this because it may be

         13  too hard to get to an agreement to move forward.

         14                 So, could you comment on in

         15  retrospect what should have triggered this as an IRT

         16  situation?

         17                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, it's not

         18  absolutely clear that the ACS had enough information

         19  to declare it an IRT situation. You look at the

         20  parameters of the IRT type 2, which this would fall

         21  into, it talks about severe abuse. That was not

         22  specifically enumerated in the oral report that ACS

         23  received. We never received that oral report.

         24                 So, at the outset, I don't know if we

         25  can say with absolute certainty that it should have
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          2  been IRT on December 1st, based on the information

          3  that the ACS workers received.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I know

          5  there is an analysis going on now and interagency

          6  work, but let me just ask you your first opinion on

          7  this. Are our standards too diffuse? Should we be

          8  changing our standards? Obviously by December 1st

          9  there was a substantial amount of information

         10  certainly available to ACS and the Department of

         11  Education, somewhat to the Police Department, do you

         12  think this is an example of the fact that our

         13  standards are not clear enough or too lax and that

         14  in fact it should have been declared that by that

         15  point?

         16                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, again,

         17  there is a lot of contact that other agencies had in

         18  this case, starting in May of '05. The Police

         19  Department had none of that contact by the way. You

         20  mentioned DOE and ACS, but we didn't have that

         21  information.

         22                 I think we are looking at, with

         23  Deputy Mayor Gibbs and the Mayor's Task Force, as to

         24  whether or not the parameters are all encompassing

         25  enough.
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          2                 I don't want to say that absolutely

          3  based on the information that ACS received that they

          4  should have declared an IRT, but the fact is that

          5  they did not. And I think there's some

          6  misunderstanding as to the Police Department's role,

          7  and maybe I could go through it for you, to clear

          8  that up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Please.

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: As I understand

         11  it, this oral report is transmitted from the State

         12  Central Registry. They receive a complaint from the

         13  caseworkers in the Department of Education. They

         14  then take that report and they forward it to ACS. It

         15  is then given to the IRT coordinator in Brooklyn.

         16                 Apparently, what happens is the IRT

         17  coordinator sends, without declaring IRT, sends

         18  investigators, ACS investigators, to the school, to

         19  Nixzmary's school. This happens, I'm assuming they

         20  arrive about 2:00 in the afternoon.

         21                 At our investigation, which we have

         22  done, by the way, an in-depth investigation. You had

         23  the accountability review preliminary report at your

         24  last hearing, it had no information from the Police

         25  Department. We have since done an in-depth

                                                            28

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  investigation and forwarded that information to

          3  Deputy Mayor Gibbs.

          4                 But at about, a little after 3:00,

          5  this IRT coordinator calls detectives in the Child

          6  Advocacy Center, talks, wants to run something by

          7  this detective, talks a little bit about the

          8  circumstances of the case.

          9                 By this time the caseworkers had

         10  already interviewed all of Nixzmary, Nixzmary

         11  apparently, and Nixzmary's siblings in the school,

         12  they all go to the same school, had also interviewed

         13  Mr. Rodriguez.

         14                 He appeared at the school. May not

         15  have interviewed him by then, but he was coming to

         16  the school, which he normally did, to pick up the

         17  children at school.

         18                 What they communicated, what was

         19  communicated to the detectives was that in a phone

         20  call to Mr. Rodriguez before he came to the school,

         21  he sounded belligerent, and they wanted some police

         22  presence.

         23                 Now, the detective that was on the

         24  phone with the IRT coordinator, knew and had a

         25  relationship with the caseworker who was at the
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          2  school, and said we'll take a ride over there, and

          3  went to the school in essence to provide security.

          4                 When they arrived at the school,

          5  which was about 3:30, 3:35 in the afternoon, Mr.

          6  Rodriguez was in the hallway holding a baby. In the

          7  principal's office was Nixzmary Brown and her

          8  siblings dressed in their outer garments. They came

          9  in and one detective stays with Mr. Rodriguez, the

         10  other detective goes into the office and

         11  communicates with the caseworker. The caseworker

         12  shows the detective that medical receipt stating

         13  that Nixzmary had been treated at the hospital,

         14  WoodHull Hospital, that the reason given for her

         15  injury by the siblings and by Mr. Rodriguez, who had

         16  apparently then been interviewed by them, that she

         17  had fallen on a piece of wood. That there was in

         18  essence no problem. He had no allegation of abuse.

         19                 The detective then volunteers to call

         20  the 79th Precinct to get updated information to see

         21  if there's any domestic violence reports at the

         22  residents. Calls, finds out that there isn't any

         23  domestic violence reports at the residence, tells

         24  the case workers that. Case workers in essence say,

         25  okay, there's nothing here. The detectives leave and
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          2  go back to their office.

          3                 Again, this was not an IRT. It was

          4  not seen as being a dangerous condition, apparently

          5  by the caseworkers, didn't ask the detectives to

          6  remain. They again apparently left with the family

          7  and went back to the Rodriguez's residence.

          8                 So, that's the extent of the Police

          9  Department involvement in the Nixzmary Brown case on

         10  December 1st.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioner, a

         12  couple of things that I'm concerned about as I hear

         13  that delineation.

         14                 The first is, what follow-up occurs

         15  if police have been called to a situation, even

         16  without an IRT having been declared, anything that

         17  would cause police involvement, one would assume,

         18  because professionals involved here, would have to

         19  be fairly serious; what was the police follow-up

         20  after that point?

         21                 Because obviously between December

         22  1st and the beginning of January, there were any

         23  number of opportunities for any number of agencies

         24  to have potentially have intervened. And, again, I'm

         25  not saying this because we're trying to get involved
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          2  in a blame game, we're trying to understand things

          3  here. Was there any kind of protocol in place just

          4  on the police side that said, okay, we got called

          5  into this situation, now are we going to check in on

          6  it again? Are we going to follow it up? Are we going

          7  to check the other agencies to see what's going on?

          8                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: They were called

          9  in essentially because of a relationship that

         10  existed between the investigator and the case worker

         11  there. They expressed their concern about the

         12  belligerence that they heard over the phone with Mr.

         13  Rodriguez. In a normal situation, if, in fact, there

         14  was concern about their safety, a radio car, a

         15  uniformed presence would have been called for.

         16                 It wasn't needed in this case.

         17                 So, when they got there, there was a

         18  peaceful situation, they had already conducted their

         19  interviews, there was no need for them to stay and

         20  no need expressed on the part of the caseworkers to

         21  have them remain.

         22                 So, it was strictly a security

         23  situation in this particular instance. There was no

         24  follow-up. Correct, the Police Department was not

         25  involved.
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          2                 And in fact, if we were needed, then

          3  ACS should have reached out for the investigators,

          4  and it didn't happen.

          5                 I would also want to point out that

          6  there is a very close relationship in, particularly

          7  in Brooklyn, because in the Child Advocacy Center

          8  the Abuse Squad, the Police Sex Abuse Squad, or

          9  Child Abuse Squad I should say, and the ACS workers

         10  are co-located literally in the same office. They

         11  work together. Physically their desks are right next

         12  to each other. So, there was no further contact on

         13  this case from December 1st until the unfortunate

         14  death of Nixzmary in January.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I hear in your

         16  statement the fact that the relationships that have

         17  developed are crucial here to getting things done,

         18  and that's a good thing, it also seems in a sense,

         19  if you will, the informality may have one negative

         20  affect which is perhaps people wait for each other's

         21  queues and if they both don't see an immediate

         22  problem, then there may not be as much detailed

         23  review of the situation as might be warranted.

         24                 And the reason I say that is,

         25  something caused those Department of Education
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          2  officials at the school to believe that their child

          3  should not be allowed to go home. And I said in the

          4  beginning we're going to have Chancellor Klein in a

          5  separate session as well.

          6                 I have to believe that's a fairly

          7  extraordinary act for education officials for the

          8  folks who run a school, who see children all day and

          9  who are professionally trained to believe a child

         10  should not go home, and it doesn't sound like the

         11  police who arrived at the scene had any real

         12  detailed conversations with those colleagues. It

         13  sounds like everything was sort of triggered by one

         14  ACS person and what they decided, as opposed to a

         15  real consultation between the professionals present.

         16                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, in fact,

         17  the Department of Education, the social worker was

         18  home, went home, did not apparently remain there for

         19  the ACS workers. Made the report and then went home.

         20                 And there were contacts, as I say, as

         21  early as, I think it was May or June of '05 by

         22  Department of Education personnel and ACS was

         23  involved seven months before that, before the

         24  December 1st incident.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But again, I
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          2  hear you from the beginning, you're saying that

          3  there's a protocol, that to honor the protocol, the

          4  protocol is being reevaluated now.

          5                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I hear you loud

          7  and clear on that.

          8                 The protocol has ACS in a central

          9  role. And if you judge from Commissioner Mattingly's

         10  last testimony, he's not trying to say they did

         11  things right. I think we all understand there were

         12  mistakes.

         13                 On the other hand, there is no one

         14  who understands the investigatory process better

         15  than the Police Department, and if a school, a

         16  senior school person was worried about the child's

         17  safety enough to keep the child in the school, and

         18  to call in these other authorities, wouldn't it have

         19  made sense for the police to follow up directly with

         20  that person rather than just relying on ACS?

         21                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: We weren't

         22  notified. And, again, these are the types of things

         23  that we're looking at in our review. We simply were

         24  not notified about the information that was given by

         25  this social worker to the State Central Registry
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          2  because it was transmitted to the ACS and to the ACS

          3  IRT coordinator.

          4                 So, the detectives that responded

          5  didn't have that information. The only information

          6  they had, whatever transpired in the conversation

          7  from the ACS coordinator to the detective before

          8  they responded, but didn't have the documentation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: If your

         10  detectives had known everything that was available

         11  to that moment in this case, if the ACS workers had

         12  been required to put everything on the table and the

         13  school officials, everything on the table, your

         14  detectives looked at that, what do you think would

         15  have happened in that case?

         16                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I think we

         17  probably would have initiated an investigation.

         18  Probably. Because, you know, I can't say with

         19  certitude, again, the way the protocol was set up,

         20  in this instance it should have been triggered by

         21  ACS.

         22                 I'm not pointing fingers --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: -- But, as I say,

         25  the information was not all that clear that was
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          2  transmitted from the State Central Registry to ACS

          3  that would necessarily trigger an IRT. But what you

          4  said, making all of the information available, yes,

          5  I think in retrospect an investigation would have

          6  been initiated.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And as much as

          8  I admire, and I do admire everyone who works for

          9  ACS, again, I don't think anyone has the expertise

         10  that you folks have in terms of investigation.

         11                 So, is this something that you're now

         12  advocating for going forward, when a situation rises

         13  to the level that the police are asked to come in

         14  any capacity, that they also be granted the

         15  available information and that the protocol now

         16  guarantee that the police see everything there is to

         17  see about a case?

         18                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: We're looking at

         19  all aspects. We're really taking a clean sheet of

         20  paper look at this, along with Deputy Mayor Gibbs

         21  and ACS. So, I don't want to prejudge what the final

         22  recommendation will be, but we have a large working

         23  group looking at all aspects of this in the

         24  Department.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me just ask
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          2  a couple of quick things. I know Chairman Vallone

          3  has questions, as well as a number of colleagues

          4  here.

          5                 It seems to me also that there may

          6  need to be a situation in which there is an override

          7  of the normal protocol. I mean, even if we come up

          8  with a reformed improved protocol, since we're

          9  talking about the health and safety and potentially

         10  the survival of a child, it would seem to me that

         11  there should be the ability of any one pertinent

         12  agency to determine that things are not moving in

         13  the right direction, are not moving fast enough, to

         14  get the information higher up the chain of command

         15  for example.

         16                 Would you agree that it would be

         17  helpful, for example, if one of your detectives came

         18  into a situation and felt that the situation was not

         19  being handled properly, by school officials, by ACS

         20  officials, is it currently possible for that

         21  detective to start a process to override the IRT

         22  process if it's not moving properly? Or to bring

         23  that information up the chain of command to your

         24  leadership so they can take independent action?

         25                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I'm not sure what
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          2  you mean by override, but we have the authority to

          3  remove a child from a home when there is imminent

          4  danger, as I mentioned in my prepared remarks. So,

          5  that potential is always there for us.

          6                 In terms of raising an issue, as far

          7  as multiple agency disputes or something along those

          8  lines, sure, we could always do that, kick it up the

          9  chain of command, yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, let me

         11  give a real life example here. If your detectives

         12  come upon the situation, and, again, not even

         13  assuming they had all the files in front of them,

         14  but they felt professionally something was

         15  profoundly wrong. They talked to the father, they

         16  had got some sense of what the siblings were saying,

         17  and they were struck by the fact that the school

         18  officials did not want to let the girl go home. If

         19  your detectives felt something different had to

         20  happen immediately, tell us how that would work from

         21  that moment on.

         22                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: They can invoke

         23  the IRT. We can do that, but the information wasn't

         24  presented to them. You know, we can initiate an IRT.

         25  As I stated in my remarks, we can use the IRT hot
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          2  line to contact ACS. So that certainly was possible,

          3  if, in fact, all of the information was there.

          4  Again, it wasn't.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Now, again,

          6  just take us through this question. If your

          7  detectives felt there should be an IRT, the ACS

          8  workers felt there shouldn't -- this is a

          9  theoretical now.

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Just to

         12  understand with how we deal with these things going

         13  forward. Where does it go? If there's a conflict

         14  with the detectives on the scene and an ACS worker

         15  on the scene, you know, any combination of

         16  officials, how does it rise up the chain of command?

         17                 Again, this is a situation where time

         18  could matter quite a bit. How does it get to a more

         19  senior decision maker?

         20                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: If one of the

         21  agencies thinks it should be an IRT, then it's an

         22  IRT.

         23                 There is no right of refusal, as I

         24  mentioned in my remarks. So, maybe that's what you

         25  mean by overall --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, just any

          3  detective has the right to declare it?

          4                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, you know,

          5  they're going to work through their supervisors. I

          6  mean, that's just the way we work. But, sure, if

          7  there's a situation where there was concern about

          8  the children or thoughts that this rises to the

          9  level of IRT, fits into one of those three

         10  categories, then, yes, it would become an IRT, and

         11  ACS would respond, I'm sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Lastly, I'm

         13  concerned, as it does sound like although there are

         14  strong personal relationships and time that people

         15  in this field work together from the various

         16  agencies, again, we have heard so much about there

         17  not being the same training or the same language, if

         18  you will, how much training do these detectives and

         19  caseworkers and casework supervisors go through

         20  together so that they have common understandings of

         21  how to handle situations?

         22                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: We don't have

         23  joint training. When the protocol was put in place

         24  in 1998, there was joint training, but there isn't,

         25  and I think it's something we're clearly looking at
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          2  in our task force.

          3                 Again, I want to reiterate the fact

          4  that they are co-located at Child Advocacy Centers

          5  in Brooklyn and Queens, so there's a lot of

          6  interaction.

          7                 But right now we don't have joint

          8  training. In the Police Department we have training

          9  for our newly-promoted supervisors for in essence

         10  the desk officers, they're the ones that make some

         11  of the decisions.

         12                 We also have training for our

         13  recruits in the Police Academy, awareness training,

         14  as to ACS, the IRT protocol in general terms. We're

         15  looking at the whole issue of training with our

         16  working group.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Just given how

         18  sensitive this area is, why did we ever get away

         19  from joint training? It seems like this would be an

         20  area where more than most people would really have

         21  to understand each other who are doing this work and

         22  joint training would be part of finding that common

         23  ground. Why did we ever get away from that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, I'm not

         25  certain why, but I think perhaps because they work
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          2  so closely together that there might have been a

          3  thought that it wasn't needed. And as I say, they're

          4  literally co-located in two major offices.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, thank

          6  you. I would like to reserve the right to come back

          7  with a few questions towards the end, but now let me

          8  turn it over to my colleague, Chair Vallone.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We've

         10  been joined by Council Members Vincent Gentile, from

         11  Brooklyn; Council Member Hiram Monserrate, Jim

         12  Gennaro, and Tom White from Queens. And for planning

         13  purposes, after Commissioner Kelly testifies, we'll

         14  be taking a very short break, and he will be

         15  followed up by ACS Assistant Commissioner Marino,

         16  and subsequent to that we'll have Charles Ensley of

         17  DC 37, representing the ACS caseworkers, and some

         18  other advocates.

         19                 Commissioner, two things that jumped

         20  out at me, you just mentioned that the detective did

         21  not know the facts underlying the situation in the

         22  Nixzmary case, and had they known that, perhaps

         23  things would have turned out differently.

         24                 Do you think that perhaps the Police

         25  Department should be notified by the State Central
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          2  Registry in more cases than they are now?

          3                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, I'm going

          4  to reserve that opinion until we make our

          5  recommendations to the Mayor. You know, there's a

          6  lot of issues that we're looking at. As I say, we're

          7  taking a whole fresh look at our involvement in the

          8  protocol. So, I'd like to reserve my answer until we

          9  make that presentation to the Mayor.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Fair enough. We

         11  can always have, and we will have subsequent

         12  hearings on this topic once that report comes out.

         13                 You also mentioned an accountability

         14  review panel, and it troubles me that you just

         15  testified that they did not put any information

         16  received from the Police Department into their

         17  report. You said they file a report in any death.

         18  You provided that information to them, do you have

         19  any comment on why they would not have used that

         20  information?

         21                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: They put out that

         22  report, actually it was before Chairman DeBlasio's

         23  hearing. It was a preliminary report. I'm not even

         24  certain it was a product of an accountability review

         25  panel meeting. I think it might have been just
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          2  notes. I believe the General Counsel of ACS may have

          3  put part of that information together.

          4                 In that report he had some

          5  information from Health and Hospitals, he had some

          6  information from DOE, but he had no information from

          7  the Police Department. The Police Department

          8  information he had was given to him by ACS

          9  employees.

         10                 We have a member on that panel, the

         11  Accountability Review Panel, however, that person

         12  wasn't present at the meeting and wasn't asked for

         13  input. So, as a result, we get our own review,

         14  submit an in-depth report to Deputy Commissioner

         15  Gibbs. And in fact, when an Accountability Review

         16  Panel report does come forward, I think there's a

         17  meeting in March, hopefully all of our information

         18  will be incorporated in that report.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It doesn't

         20  trouble me any less that a report came out that did

         21  not take into account the Police Department's review

         22  of the situation. Hopefully that will be rectified

         23  in their next report, as you said, but that doesn't

         24  seem that there is the cooperation and the

         25  communication necessary.
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          2                 Let's speak for a second about

          3  cooperation on the street. You discussed the IRTs.

          4  Let's talk about a situation which isn't imminent

          5  danger or some sort of severe abuse.

          6                 In the situation where an ACS case

          7  worker, and I'm reading from your testimony here, it

          8  says that "in potentially dangerous situations they

          9  may report to the local precinct station house and

         10  request assistance from the desk officer who will

         11  then direct the patrol officers accompanying them

         12  assure their safety."

         13                 In fact, that's the situation I heard

         14  most of the complaints about, that there isn't full

         15  cooperation at that level.

         16                 Now, when they come to the precinct,

         17  and they go to the desk officer, number one, is

         18  there someone at that precinct who is trained in

         19  child abuse situations.

         20                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, the desk

         21  officer will have some knowledge of the protocol. As

         22  I say, that's where we do our training for sergeants

         23  and lieutenants in their promotion courses. So,

         24  those supervisors should be aware of ACS need to be

         25  accompanied in certain cases.
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          2                 The protocol lays out situations

          3  where perhaps knowledge of drugs or guns or domestic

          4  violence involved, they come to the station house,

          5  they ask to be accompanied by officers, and that's

          6  what should happen.

          7                 I think the reality is that, you

          8  know, we would certainly like to have a lot more

          9  police officers in our patrol precincts.

         10                 We're down 2,000 officers from where

         11  we were in October of '05, so there are some

         12  manpower constraints that impact on work in the

         13  precinct. So, it may be some delay in that regard.

         14  Again, this is a situation where the ACS worker feel

         15  that they may be at risk. It's not a situation where

         16  a child may be threatened.

         17                 So, it is a situation where they're

         18  going to the station house, and sometimes waiting

         19  for the police to accompany them. We try to minimize

         20  that as much as possible. I think reality is that

         21  happens sometimes, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And I think you

         23  touched up on a central point there. They're

         24  waiting, and that's unfortunate, but that's because

         25  on a typical Friday night when you have perhaps two
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          2  or three patrol cars on the street at the precinct

          3  level, responding to violent crimes in progress,

          4  there just may not be the officers necessary to

          5  immediately go with an ACS case worker. And that's

          6  because, as many times I've said, you just don't

          7  have enough police officers. I know you're not

          8  allowed to say that, but we'll leave it at that.

          9                 But back to, they show up at the

         10  desk, and, yes, they do have to wait and you've just

         11  admitted that sometimes they do have to wait because

         12  of personnel problems, is it mandated that a police

         13  officer now accompany the ACS worker, or does the

         14  desk officer have any discretion in that situation?

         15                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: No. Ultimately

         16  the police officer should accompany them. It's as I

         17  say, a question of making one available. But, yes,

         18  it require that they be accompanied. That's what

         19  they're looking for.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mentioned

         21  that there is some training involved in getting to

         22  the Sergeant level; what specific training is

         23  involved regarding child abuse at the NYPD?

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, of course,

         25  our Special Victims Unit, they're the ones that
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          2  specialize in these investigations. They receive,

          3  you know, comprehensive, in-depth training in that

          4  regard.

          5                 I mentioned the training of in

          6  essence awareness, awareness of the needs of ACS and

          7  of the IRT protocol given to our supervisors in

          8  promotion courses, that's for Sergeants, Lieutenants

          9  and Captains, and that should be adequate in terms

         10  of making our desk officers aware of the needs. And

         11  of course, we have that in our Patrol Guide as well.

         12  It's clearly laid out that it's a requirement that

         13  ACS workers be accompanied if they need to.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         15                 You mentioned your special victims

         16  detectives. How many are there? And where are they

         17  located?

         18                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: We have 160

         19  investigators and supervisors in our Special Victims

         20  Division. We have them in all five boroughs. In

         21  Brooklyn and Queens we have trial advocacy centers

         22  where we have abuse against children subsets of the

         23  Special Victims Division. And also in Staten Island

         24  we're starting a new Child Advocacy Center. It's not

         25  fully staffed by other agencies. So, in essence, as
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          2  I say, all five boroughs have offices with

          3  approximately 160 investigators and supervisors.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We will be

          5  hearing from Safe Horizons later, which does run

          6  some of these child advocacy centers.

          7                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mentioned in

          9  your testimony that your Special Victims Detectives,

         10  their caseload may increase from 48 to 93 cases by

         11  the end of the year. That's double.

         12                 Do you believe you have enough

         13  Special Victims Detectives to handle that increase?

         14                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Not if it stays

         15  up at that level it's at now.

         16                 We believe this is a reaction,

         17  obviously a reaction to the tragic death of Nixzmary

         18  Brown. The caseload is way up. We expect that, we

         19  hope that that levels off somewhat and the protocol

         20  is used in the appropriate fashion. Again, we're

         21  looking at the protocol with our task force, but if

         22  that level stays up, we're going to need more

         23  personnel in our Special Victims Division.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And where will

         25  you take those personnel from?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: From the 114th

          3  Precinct and 72nd Precinct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I don't deserve

          5  that.

          6                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: No, we obviously

          7  have to find them through our normal channels of

          8  moving detectives into detective squads.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, you

         10  anticipated my point, not that they were coming from

         11  the 114, but whenever we need more officers,

         12  obviously they come from the precinct level, and

         13  that's probably also alluded to in your testimony

         14  that we're down to some of the lowest levels at the

         15  precincts that we've seen perhaps ever.

         16                 But I'll keep an eye on the 114th

         17  Precinct levels over the next few months.

         18                 You mentioned also that there are --

         19  in these IRT cases which are the most serious cases,

         20  that the Police Department itself has the right to

         21  initiate these; how many would you estimate are

         22  initiated by the Police Department?

         23                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I saw a count, I

         24  was going to say it's almost 100, in the 90s last

         25  year.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm sorry?

          3                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: About 90. Ninety

          4  to 100 last year, to the best of my recollection.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: All right.

          6                 I am going to, as Bill DeBlasio said,

          7  I have many, many more questions regarding

          8  specifics, regarding warrants and things like that,

          9  if they're not touched upon by my colleagues, who

         10  there is a long list of Council members who would

         11  like to question you, so if they're not touched

         12  upon, we'll come back and ask some of these.

         13                 So the first Council Member we will

         14  go to is Council Member Koppell.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         16  Chairman.

         17                 Commissioner, good morning. I'd like

         18  to change the focus and I don't know whether you're

         19  prepared to talk about this or not, but we had a

         20  case of a four-year-old boy in my district who was

         21  killed within the last month unfortunately. A

         22  coincidence, the name is also Brown, Quachaun

         23  Browne. Are you familiar with that case?

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Generally, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The timing
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          2  actually is peculiarly similar to the Nixzmary Brown

          3  case too. Apparently the police were informed in

          4  June of 2005 that five children, including the

          5  little boy, were left alone by the mother when she

          6  went to Atlantic City. Is that your understanding?

          7                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And what --

          9                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: She left alone

         10  her -- her mother I think was supposed to come and

         11  take care of the children and that didn't happen.

         12  And there was a response, I believe the children

         13  were removed from the home by the police in June.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's my

         15  understanding also from the reports I've heard.

         16                 At that time the police were in touch

         17  with ACS, and ACS was informed of this?

         18                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes. When the

         19  children are removed, ACS will definitely be

         20  informed, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And then what

         22  happened? Do you know what happened in this case?

         23                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I can't tell you

         24  with great specificity. I'm assuming investigation

         25  proceeded, the children were ultimately returned to
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          2  the mother.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do you have,

          4  not you personally, but does the Department have a

          5  file on this that they could perhaps share with us

          6  as to what did, in fact happen?

          7                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I'll give you the

          8  information we have. Yes. Just off the top of my

          9  head, I can't --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You don't

         11  know.

         12                 But when the children were returned,

         13  you don't know under what circumstances they were

         14  returned?

         15                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And do you

         17  know if there was any follow-up by the police with

         18  respect to this family after June when these

         19  incidents occurred with children being left alone?

         20                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: If they were

         21  returned through a normal process, there probably

         22  was not. But I can get you the specific information.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do you have

         24  any, and I have not seen anything in the press about

         25  this, do you have any record of any complaints made
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          2  about the family or about conflict in the family

          3  between June and January, end of January when the

          4  boy was killed?

          5                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, I'm sure

          6  pursuant to this investigation we went back and

          7  looked to see if there were domestic incident

          8  reports. So, if we have that information, we'll make

          9  that available.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Because it's

         11  my understanding that the man who has been accused

         12  of the murder moved in about two months prior to

         13  January, and that there were loud fights emanating

         14  from the apartment, and I'm just wondering whether

         15  there were any further police reports or

         16  investigations to find out whether, again, sort of

         17  similar with the Nixzmary Brown case, whether here

         18  the ball was dropped by -- well, I know the ball was

         19  dropped by ACS, I think they've somewhat admitted

         20  that, although not entirely. But I would like to

         21  know who dropped the ball and why all together. And

         22  I'd be interested to know what the police knew.

         23                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I'll have to go

         24  back and take a look at that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would
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          2  appreciate as full a report as possible on that.

          3  Since it is in my district we're taking a fairly

          4  close look. We had extensive conversations with the

          5  school authorities, and some conversations with your

          6  people at the 52nd Precinct, but not comprehensive,

          7  so we'd like to get whatever information we could.

          8                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         11  Council member, let me just state that that case did

         12  occur I believe on the date of this last hearing,

         13  and we don't expect the Commissioner to answer any

         14  more specific questions regarding cases in people's

         15  districts.

         16                 Council Member Palma.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chair.

         19                 Good morning, Commissioner.

         20                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Good morning.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I'm just going

         22  to take the opportunity, since my colleague raised

         23  the Bronx, and that we both represent the Bronx, and

         24  taking a look at what's happening in the Bronx, and

         25  I took a look at the last report that the Vera
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          2  Institute put out, and it states that the Bronx had

          3  declined in terms of cases from 22 percent in 1998

          4  to just about five percent in 2002, while the

          5  Citywide ratio remained at 16 percent.

          6                 And, so, what I'm concerned about is

          7  do you believe that there are enough resources in

          8  the Bronx dealing with the issues or the concerns

          9  that are raised that arise from child --

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I think generally

         11  we have adequate resources, except for the fact that

         12  we've seen this dramatic increase as a result of

         13  reports that followed the death of Nixzmary Brown,

         14  that we're monitoring that closely. As I said to the

         15  Chairman, you know, we may be required to put

         16  additional personnel in our Special Victims

         17  Division. We'll look at that very carefully and we

         18  also reserve the right to move them around in the

         19  Special Victims Division, if, in fact, we see more

         20  cases in one borough than another.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And is the

         22  Special Victims Unit different from the co-located

         23  advocacy centers?

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: No. It's

         25  actually, the child advocacy centers are multiple
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          2  agency location centers, which we are very

          3  supportive of. There is not one in the Bronx, though

          4  in hospitals locations in the Bronx, but the crimes

          5  against children subset, is in fact a subset of the

          6  Special Victims Division. So, it's all under the

          7  umbrella of the Special Victims Division.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And in your

          9  testimony, and in your responding to our questions,

         10  I can tell that you are very, you are pro these

         11  advocacy centers.

         12                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And I'm glad to

         14  hear that.

         15                 And, so, I ask you, is there a plan

         16  to put these advocacy centers through our five

         17  boroughs, if they are working in Queens and in

         18  Brooklyn?

         19                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: That's a question

         20  better addressed to ACS and I think Safe Horizons is

         21  coming to testify later. There's funding issues. But

         22  we, as an agency, support them. As I say, it brings

         23  multiple agencies together, it lessens the trauma on

         24  the children, it is a very child-friendly

         25  environment, so we certainly support it if the
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          2  budget allows it, and there may be some other

          3  considerations that I'm not aware of, but we like

          4  them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you,

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         11  Council Member.

         12                 Council Member Lappin is next.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 I have just a couple of quick

         16  questions.

         17                 When or how does the NYPD distinguish

         18  between -- they receive or investigate or view what

         19  they suspect to be abuse, when do they call the

         20  State Registry, versus when does the Department

         21  initiate an IRT by calling ACS?

         22                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, if we make

         23  an arrest for the circumstances that, you know, a

         24  child is abused or we do a removal from a home, we

         25  call ACS and we're required to also call the State
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          2  Registry. Any time as a result of the 911 call, for

          3  instance, we go and see a situation where it looks

          4  like there's child abuse, we're required to report

          5  to the State Registry. We are mandated to report it,

          6  as are medical personnel, as are teachers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, unless you

          8  arrest or remove a child --

          9                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Or come in

         10  contact with a situation where it looks like there's

         11  abuse.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, if you

         13  just suspect abuse, do you then potentially, in

         14  addition to calling the State, also call ACS to

         15  initiate an IRT? Or only if there is arrest or a

         16  removal, would you try to initiate an IRT separate

         17  from calling the State?

         18                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: If, in fact, we

         19  make an arrest or do a removal, we call the IRT hot

         20  line, IRT coordinator.

         21                 That does not eliminate our

         22  requirement of reporting to the State. We call the

         23  State Central Registry. And if there are other cases

         24  we come across say in a 911 call, we also required

         25  to call the State Central Registry as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: No, I'm just

          3  trying to understand, because in this particular

          4  case an IRT wasn't invoked and you testified earlier

          5  that that's something that in your judgment ACS

          6  should have initiated.

          7                 So, what I'm trying to understand is

          8  when would the Police Department initiate an IRT on

          9  their own?

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I think what I

         11  said before is I'm not saying absolutely that ACS

         12  should have invoked an IRT in this case, because

         13  they didn't have -- the information that they had at

         14  the time didn't necessarily fit into or specifically

         15  fit into the parameters that are laid out in the IRT

         16  protocol.

         17                 I mean, it's an art, not a science.

         18  If you look at the Vera Report, the 2004 Vera

         19  Report, that's exactly what it says. You know, you

         20  need some judgment in this. You know, I'm not

         21  pointing a finger at ACS saying this should have

         22  been an IRT in this case, and based on the

         23  information that they had, you know, it didn't

         24  really fit into the protocol.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay. And once
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          2  an IRT is established, is it pretty clear what the

          3  delineation of powers is between NYPD and ACS, in

          4  terms of who is conducting which aspects of the

          5  investigation and managing the case at that point?

          6                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes. I think it's

          7  clear and I think it works very well. And, again, if

          8  you read the Vera Report, they say that this really

          9  doesn't happen anywhere else in the country. And

         10  they see it as I think a major success, and, sure,

         11  there has to be some adjustments. We're looking at

         12  that now. But they say it works well, and the

         13  powers, the functions are kind of clearly

         14  delineated. The police are doing the criminal

         15  aspects of the investigation, as I laid out in my

         16  prepared remarks, that ACS has a lot of other

         17  responsibilities, as far as the children are

         18  concerned.

         19                 Generally, what happens is the

         20  children were removed quickly from the home. They're

         21  taken ideally, say in the case in Brooklyn, to the

         22  Child Advocacy Center. That's where the questioning

         23  is done. Probably the last thing that you would do

         24  is talk to the alleged perpetrator. You do a lot of

         25  record checks before you started your interviews.
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          2  It's a fairly deliberate procedure, and all the

          3  information I have is that when it's invoked, it

          4  works well.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: The issue is

          6  not so much once that process is in place, but

          7  determining and in this case there was no IRT

          8  invoked, trying to improve the procedures and

          9  determining whether or not that's appropriate?

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay. Thank

         12  you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         14                 Commissioner, if an ACS worker shows

         15  up at a location because there has been a complaint

         16  of some sort and can't get in, what procedure is in

         17  place?

         18                 How does it work right now regarding

         19  search warrants in getting into the home?

         20                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, the ACS

         21  worker would go to the Family Court and get an

         22  order, in essence a warrant, that would authorize

         23  entry, assuming you know, the judge assigns it. And

         24  we will assist in that regard. They would call the

         25  police and we would assist in that entry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is there any

          3  expedited procedure?

          4                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: As far as getting

          5  the warrant?

          6                 I'm not certain.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: First we'll go

          8  as far as getting the warrants. For example, I don't

          9  believe Family Court meets at night, let's say it's

         10  late at night, what would happen? And that we needed

         11  to get into that location immediately, are there

         12  other circumstances that the police could get into

         13  that apartment?

         14                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, I think it

         15  depends on the totality of the information that we

         16  had. I mean, if there was indication that there's

         17  imminent danger to a young person in an apartment,

         18  and there was no means of getting in right away, I

         19  think we would probably opt to go into the

         20  apartment, and, you know, with ACS the police would

         21  go into the apartment.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What are the

         23  circumstances --

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, you know,

         25  hypothetical situations are dangerous, but, you
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          2  know, if in fact there was information that

          3  indicated that a child was in imminent danger, there

          4  were cries for help, that sort of thing, or people

          5  were not coming to the door, you had neighbors that

          6  said there was abuse going on there for a period of

          7  time, there's a lot of shouting, that sort of thing,

          8  I think there's enough information that would allow

          9  us to go through the door.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I just wanted a

         11  quick follow-up on this. You know, Commissioner,

         12  again, I have absolute respect for your answers,

         13  because I know you're trying to serve the children

         14  of our City, but I also want to note that I think a

         15  lot of us who have looked at this issue understand

         16  how often there aren't cries for help because that's

         17  what an abuse -- that's the dynamic an abusive

         18  parent creates. And even if you look at the process

         19  of the interviews of Nixzmary Brown and her

         20  siblings, they had obviously been coached to not say

         21  what was going on in the home.

         22                 So, I think the concern I have, and I

         23  know Chair Vallone has, is that you're not given

         24  some of the indicators you might have in other types

         25  of cases, or in cases involving adults.
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          2                 Let me ask you something specifically

          3  about this case: When ACS workers were not granted

          4  access, that did not trigger any kind of

          5  notification to the police, as far as I understand?

          6                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Should it, in

          8  your view? I mean, again, using your knowledge of

          9  investigation, if there's a suspicion and you're not

         10  granted access, isn't that a pretty strong indicator

         11  something wrong is going on?

         12                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, I think they

         13  should have gone immediately to Family Court. I hate

         14  to say they should have, because I don't know

         15  everything that they knew or they were aware of. But

         16  in the situation where there is suspicion, they're

         17  trying to get into the apartment, they've been

         18  refused entry, I believe that's what happened in

         19  this case, they should go to Family Court and get an

         20  order, get in effect a warrant, to go into the

         21  apartment and we would assist in that regard.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And if you

         23  knew, and, again, I want to get back to the separate

         24  role the police are able to play with their own

         25  distinct set of skills, if you knew of such a
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          2  situation, and you suspected that there might be

          3  some imminent danger, would you move immediately on

          4  that?

          5                 In other words, we all respect civil

          6  liberties, but if a case worker was denied access

          7  and there was a consideration of time, that they

          8  thought the child might be in immediate danger, are

          9  the police empowered to take immediate action to

         10  gain access?

         11                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, in that

         12  case we would hope that ACS would come to us and

         13  tell us that they're not able to get in, and they

         14  suspect imminent danger to a child, that they tried

         15  to go to Family Court, they didn't have enough time

         16  to go to Family Court, then clearly we would help

         17  them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         19                 Thank you, Chair Vallone.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I have some

         21  follow-ups but I want to get some Council members to

         22  ask questions.

         23                 Council Member Addabbo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair. And I want to commend both Committees for
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          2  the work that they've done on this most important

          3  issue.

          4                 Commissioner, thank you for your time

          5  and testimony, and for the work, of course that the

          6  NYPD does with regard to this issue.

          7                 I found page three of your testimony

          8  most troubling.

          9                 In one paragraph you say that police

         10  officers may not be immediately available, and then

         11  the very next paragraph you talk about an increase

         12  in child abuse cases, and feel the need to move on

         13  and in that effort to do what's best to improve upon

         14  our child protective services in this City.

         15                 What can we do? You have a lot of

         16  Council members here today who are listening, who

         17  are obviously interested in this situation, what can

         18  we do as Council members, as we are on the cusp of

         19  the budget for Fiscal Year '07 and its negotiations,

         20  what can we do? Where can money be allocated to help

         21  you to help ACS in regards to our children?

         22                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, again, I'm

         23  going to wait until the task force presents its

         24  recommendations to the Mayor before I ask for

         25  resources or anyone asks for resources. I think it's
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          2  important for all the agencies to work together to

          3  do a fresh look at their involvement in this very

          4  important issue. Let's see what the recommendations

          5  are. Let's see if, in fact, they require additional

          6  resources and then I'm sure the Administration will

          7  be coming to you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Would it be

          9  safe to say generally speaking that certain increase

         10  in allocations in certain agencies would help the

         11  situation in regards to response time or even

         12  follow-up?

         13                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: You're saying

         14  other agencies?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Your agency

         16  or even other agencies.

         17                 I mean, wouldn't you agree that

         18  increased allocations would help?

         19                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Again, I'd want

         20  to wait and see all of the recommendations.

         21                 Would I like more resources? Sure.

         22  Everybody likes more resources, you know, if you're

         23  a commissioner. But in terms of addressing these

         24  specific concerns, I think we have to wait and see

         25  what the recommendations are that are made by the
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          2  task force.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: You had

          4  mentioned that there's a reduction of 2,000 officers

          5  since some time in 2005; is that correct?

          6                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I didn't say that

          7  in the testimony.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: You had made

          9  a statement about a reduction of police officers?

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, you know,

         11  we're down several thousand officers from where the

         12  Department was in October of 2000.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: October of

         14  2000.

         15                 And obviously since the budget crisis

         16  so-to-speak, since, you know, 2001, obviously there

         17  has been a major decrease in officers, correct?

         18                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes. We're down

         19  over 4,000 officers from where we were in October of

         20  2000.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Well,

         22  Commissioner, I look forward to working with you

         23  throughout this budget process to see how we can

         24  help. And again, allocating money that will

         25  definitely be well spent in protective services for
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          2  our children.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Thank you, sir.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

          8  let me say that 4,000 officers is over ten percent

          9  of our police force is missing since October of

         10  2000.

         11                 Council Member Gentile.

         12                 Passing to Council Member Katz.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Commissioner,

         14  thank you for being here today, and let me echo the

         15  words of my colleagues that your office and you are

         16  always personally very accessible to us and we

         17  appreciate it.

         18                 One of the benefits of being in an

         19  elective office over 12 years as a senior member is

         20  the knowledge of some of the history.

         21                 In 1994, when I became an

         22  Assemblywoman, we passed a law of the Domestic

         23  Violence and Intervention Act. In that law we

         24  changed the protocol when police show up at a DV

         25  household, a domestic violence household. If the
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          2  police officer finds that there is reasonable belief

          3  that an abuse occurred, or a violence occurred, even

          4  if the family says it didn't, even if the wife or

          5  the girlfriend or whoever was abused says it didn't,

          6  there has to be an arrest if there's reasonable

          7  belief by the police officer.

          8                 My question is, in a situation like

          9  this, it would seem that perhaps we might want to

         10  consider, as you're making your suggestions, or

         11  what's your opinion, on whether the protocol might

         12  be similar.

         13                 When the detective showed up at the

         14  police officer -- at the school, the girl was, you

         15  know, had a forehead injury, I believe, a bruise

         16  around her eye, and it might be that if protocol

         17  would be changed, if there's reasonable believe that

         18  there was an abuse, perhaps that might go towards

         19  working to solve the issue.

         20                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, in this

         21  case I don't think there was reason to believe. You

         22  had experienced caseworkers that were on the scene.

         23  They had already spoken to all of the siblings, they

         24  had spoken to the father, they had documentation,

         25  medical documentation that she had been treated for
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          2  it. You had the siblings say that the injury

          3  resulted from a fall and she struck her head on a

          4  piece of wood, you had the father say that, and say

          5  that, you know, he had treated at the hospital. You

          6  had no, apparently no reporting from the doctors who

          7  treated Nixzmary Brown of any suspected abuse.

          8                 So, I think, you know, that would not

          9  have changed that situation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It sounds,

         11  though, I hate to say it, it sounds like a lot of

         12  the cases that in 1994 when we passed this law we

         13  heard. Someone would say they fell, the kids would

         14  say nothing happened, and because they had to now

         15  bring the father in, or the abuser into custody, or

         16  alleged abuser in custody, then at least questions

         17  were asked.

         18                 So, it just sounds like someone

         19  should have known that something happened to this

         20  child, and if a detective comes, sort of not in an

         21  official capacity, perhaps, because I understand the

         22  relationship, Safe Horizons is in my district,

         23  everyone gets along, and works together, it's great,

         24  it just sounds like maybe a protocol where there is

         25  no choice, that they feel that there's reasonable
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          2  belief that something happened, they don't quite

          3  know what it is, but something happened, and they

          4  bring the alleged person in, might be something to

          5  consider.

          6                 I understand from my sources at the

          7  Police Department and from the legal areas that the

          8  domestic violence law works pretty well.

          9                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, I think it

         10  does work well. But, again, when you talked about

         11  reason to believe, there was no probable cause, no

         12  reason to believe in the case. Again, experienced

         13  case workers had done the interviews. The children,

         14  certainly there can be coaching going on, but the

         15  children supported the story that she had fallen and

         16  hit her head. That's what the father said. He

         17  apparently acted on his best behavior. They didn't

         18  see him as any threat.

         19                 They in fact went back to the home

         20  with him from the school with the children. So, yes,

         21  I understand your thought in this regard, and in

         22  some other situations it might make sense. I think

         23  in this particular situation it didn't.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, when the

         25  detective spoke to the caseworkers, or the people
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          2  that were there, the history never came up? The

          3  forty-six days that the child was missing, the head

          4  injury, the burning of the hand, the weight loss. In

          5  two months she lost an abundant amount of weight.

          6  The fact that they had been trying to get into the

          7  house four times. It never came up?

          8                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: It did not come

          9  up, no.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So I guess that

         11  leads me to the next question, which is it sounds

         12  like, through the discussions of my colleagues, and

         13  with you, it's this IRT trigger that, just from an

         14  outsider's perspective, I don't live this like you

         15  do, it may seem like part of the problem.

         16                 I mean, if all these things are

         17  happening and an IRT isn't triggered, I'm not so

         18  sure when it ever would be triggered. And it sounds

         19  like maybe it's the word. Maybe an IRT shouldn't

         20  have to be triggered for someone to say, hey,

         21  there's a problem here. It doesn't reach the level

         22  that someone's arm is broken or that the kid ended

         23  up in a hospital, the child ended up in a hospital

         24  four times, but something happened here to trigger a

         25  larger response than what happened.
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          2                 I'll be honest with you, just from a

          3  perspective from here today, if you were listening

          4  to this testimony here today, I'm not sure what else

          5  could an IRT trigger. The cops were there, ACS

          6  workers were there, agency workers were there. They

          7  went to the house four times, the child lost so much

          8  weight in two months, asking, making the agency ask

          9  the question of why?

         10                 So, I guess the real question is,

         11  what, in addition, would the triggering of the IRT

         12  actually accomplish?

         13                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, what would

         14  have happened. Let's assume it was triggered in this

         15  case, what would have happened is the children would

         16  have been brought to the Child Advocacy Center. Mr.

         17  Rodriguez would not have been spoken to at that

         18  time. They would have been separated. It's as I say,

         19  a very child-friendly environment. All of the

         20  interested parties would observe the interview of

         21  the child. The interview would be done by one

         22  individual, either an ACS caseworker, or detective

         23  in this case, and then they would have looked at it

         24  collaboratively, they would have made joint

         25  determinations, and the child, we think they were
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          2  coached. You know, what would have perhaps been

          3  broken down. Then Rodriguez would have been spoken

          4  to with more specific information.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, it sounds

          6  like that's the issue. If the IRT really triggers

          7  the child just coming into the advocacy center and

          8  going through all of that.

          9                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: And it reduces

         10  the trauma on the child. You don't have multiple

         11  agencies doing the questioning of the child. It's a

         12  very conducive atmosphere to get information from.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We love Safe

         14  Horizons in Queens. We think they do a great job.

         15  And the coordination they have with the police is

         16  spectacular.

         17                 But, again, let me have your opinion

         18  then on this triggering of the IRT. I think Council

         19  Member Addabbo asked you what we could do, and I

         20  understand you're going to have suggestions. Maybe

         21  this is the way to do it, as you're going through

         22  your suggestions, it sounds to me like it's that

         23  triggering mechanism that may be one of the biggest

         24  issues. I'm not sure why this wasn't triggered to be

         25  an IRT, but maybe that's the problem, maybe it

                                                            77

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  shouldn't have had to be that trigger. Maybe after

          3  the second time that ACS tried getting in, they

          4  should have taken the child, if they could find the

          5  child.

          6                 So, do you have an opinion on that?

          7  Or I know you want to wait til you make your

          8  suggestions, right?

          9                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, I do. I want

         10  to look at it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

         12                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: And, again, the

         13  IRT criteria is pretty specific. And if you look at

         14  the information that the ACS workers had, it didn't

         15  really meet the criteria.

         16                 Does it have to exactly meet it?

         17  Well, no, we talked about it, it's an art, not a

         18  science, some judgments that are involved here. And

         19  if you have IRTs in all of these cases, I mean we

         20  just simply don't have the resources to do that.

         21  It's meant to identify the most serious cases, to

         22  bring to bear the multiple resources of all of the

         23  interested agencies, and, again, the child is the

         24  number one focus, to reduce the trauma on the child.

         25  I think it makes good sense. And, again, if you read
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          2  that Vera Report, they say it's the best in the

          3  country.

          4                 It's not perfect. Nothing is perfect.

          5  So you may not have the absolute perfect solution to

          6  all of these cases here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, I'm not

          8  going to belabor the point. And I agree with you, we

          9  have a decent system. The problem is that I really

         10  believe that any time you have to meet a criterion

         11  standard that's so strict, like an IRT standard,

         12  this case didn't meet that standard, maybe it's time

         13  to start fresh.

         14                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         16  much, Commissioner.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         18  Monserrate.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Good

         20  afternoon, Commissioner.

         21                 I think I'm looking for a little

         22  clarity with respect to the dual role of ACS and the

         23  NYPD. When they respond to a scene, whether it's a

         24  911 call, or a call that went to the hot line for

         25  child abuse, with the two agencies involved,
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          2  obviously there's probably some overlap with respect

          3  to the investigation. Does the protocol specifically

          4  state which of the two agencies have specific

          5  jurisdictions on decisions, when they're making a

          6  decision towards removal or not removing a child

          7  from the scene?

          8                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I don't know if

          9  it states specifically, but I can tell you that all

         10  of the information I have is there is no issue,

         11  there is no conflict. I think you kind of know it

         12  when you see it. If one agency wants to remove a

         13  child, or remove the perpetrator, which is really

         14  what you want to do in these cases, not remove the

         15  child, but if one agency wants to make that

         16  determination, I don't see the other agency saying

         17  no, stop. Nobody wants to be in that position.

         18                 So, all the information that I have

         19  is that they work well together, work

         20  collaboratively together, and there's not an issue

         21  as to jurisdiction, or who is making what decisions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So there

         23  is really no issue as to who is the lead agency?

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: No, there isn't,

         25  because once the IRT is called, it's understood to
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          2  be a collaborative investigation, a collaborative

          3  initiative.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          5  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          7                 Council Member White.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Good morning,

          9  Commissioner.

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Good morning.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Nice seeing you

         12  again, and under these circumstances, it's not a

         13  very good one, but I'm glad you're at the helm.

         14                 My concern is the follow-up as it

         15  involves the Police Department when they're called

         16  upon. How does the police respond to the concern

         17  that the police officers did not take sufficient

         18  time on the IRTs because of fear that time spent

         19  working on these teams will not lead to arrests,

         20  therefore risk making them look underproductive? And

         21  what incentives are there for officers to respond

         22  comprehensively to the IRT?

         23                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, I don't see

         24  any validity to that claim that officers don't spend

         25  adequate time doing this investigation if it doesn't
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          2  lead to an arrest.

          3                 That's not the issue in this sort of

          4  work. The issue is the child, that comes first. So,

          5  nobody is looking at the number of arrests per se of

          6  an investigator involved in this sort of work.

          7                 Their evaluation is much broader, on

          8  a much broader basis than just the number of arrests

          9  that one makes in that regard.

         10                 The people that I met in Special

         11  Victims and in the Child Abuse Squad are very well

         12  motivated. They want to be there, they like their

         13  work, they're doing important work. You talk about

         14  incentives, you know, they are detectives, they are

         15  in appointed positions and there is certainly

         16  potential for being promoted to second and first

         17  grade detectives, as it is with other detectives in

         18  the Detective Division.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. Then does

         20  the officer, does an assigned officer who is

         21  assigned to the IRT, follow-up on the cases after

         22  initial contact? And if so, how does the ongoing

         23  communication between the assigned police officers

         24  and the assigned child protective services casework

         25  continue?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, that's the

          3  obligation of both the case workers and the

          4  detectives to continue to communicate, and as I

          5  said, in Brooklyn where this case took place, they

          6  are literally co-located. They were in the same

          7  office. So, the IRT coordinator is responsible for

          8  making certain, too, that that communication takes

          9  place from the initial designation to final

         10  disposition.

         11                 But the communication takes place.

         12  Obviously the District Attorney is involved in

         13  criminal cases. The District Attorney is also

         14  located in the Child Advocacy Center, so it's sort

         15  of one-stop shopping.

         16                 And there is no problem that I'm

         17  aware of as far as communication is concerned after

         18  a case is initiated.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, I happen

         20  to think and agree with you in terms of the

         21  protocol. But more importantly, I think that an

         22  ingredient that you mentioned in terms of moving

         23  forward and developing and improving on that

         24  protocol and plan, and I think that rests in that

         25  gray area that you mentioned, that is this is a lot
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          2  of, it's an art, it's like a science, it's a feel

          3  based on experience, depending on the community that

          4  you go in, depending on the crime rate, depending on

          5  a number of things, because a lot of the caseworkers

          6  are afraid to even go to the homes themselves.

          7                 So, I think that in order to be

          8  productive, even though we can, you know, put the

          9  black ink on white paper as a protocol, I think that

         10  experience, in terms of training, concerned in the

         11  environment, which I mentioned to the Commissioner

         12  of ACS the last time he was before the Welfare

         13  Committee, should be taken into account in order to

         14  improve upon this.

         15                 I also think that I would also

         16  suggest that there be some sort of closure on the

         17  police books, the same way either something is

         18  substantiated or unsubstantiated, or should lead to

         19  further inquiry, as opposed to just, you know,

         20  somebody else has it. It should be, like it begins

         21  as a joint effort, and I think it should end as a

         22  joint effort in terms of the reporting. ACS and the

         23  Child Protective Services, all members of the IRT,

         24  including the medical team that this young lady saw

         25  when she went to the hospital, including the DA's

                                                            84

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  office, I think when you go through these cases,

          3  that when that case is closed, it should be a

          4  signoff by all of those who are supposed to be

          5  working together.

          6                 And I think that signoff indicates

          7  that they continue to work together.

          8                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         10  Palma has a follow-up.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

         12                 Commissioner, I know that someone

         13  raised, one of my colleagues raised a question in

         14  terms of ACS and NYPD doing IRT training, and you

         15  stated that you don't do trainings together.

         16                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: We don't do it

         17  now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And --

         19                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: It's something

         20  we're looking at.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: So the NYPD is

         22  considering doing its own IRT training?

         23                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: We do training

         24  for our supervisors, obviously people who are

         25  immediately involved in the business, Special
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          2  Victims Division, they have their own internal

          3  training. But our supervisors have training at their

          4  promotion courses and there is training in the

          5  Police Academy for recruits.

          6                 Whether or not there needs to be more

          7  training is something we're looking at now with our

          8  task force.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: So, do you use

         10  a curriculum for those trainings? Is it the NYPD

         11  curriculum?

         12                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Or is it a

         14  curriculum --

         15                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, I think we

         16  use our own curriculum, but obviously it's

         17  information that has to be gleaned to a certain

         18  extent from ACS.

         19                 But we're looking at issues whether

         20  or not we should be doing course training, those

         21  sorts of things.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And the

         23  training only happen when people are going to be

         24  moved from positions?

         25                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes. Or promoted.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Is the

          3  Department considering, like, doing ongoing training

          4  in terms of this issue?

          5                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: That's certainly

          6  something that we're looking at actively now.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioner,

          9  we have a few more questions. We appreciate you

         10  having given us this much time.

         11                 I was just comparing notes with Chair

         12  Vallone and with Council Member Katz. I think we're

         13  still concerned about what happened at the school

         14  that day, not so much again in terms of trying to

         15  point fingers, but trying to understand what it says

         16  about the relationship between the agencies.

         17                 A couple of points I want to raise

         18  from the ACS internal review, just to clarify

         19  something, I think suggests the magnitude of the

         20  information that was missed. All of what happened

         21  on, all the things I'm about to talk about happened

         22  on the day of December 1st.

         23                 First of all, the school social

         24  worker called in the report and said that there had

         25  been, that they saw a pattern that suggested there
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          2  was violence in the home, and that the father had

          3  recently hit Nixzmary causing a laceration on her

          4  forehead and the bruised eye, which was obviously

          5  physical visible that day. And then when ACS

          6  personnel arrived, the social worker was no longer

          7  available, but the principal of the school, and

          8  again, I would think in terms of chain of command,

          9  it would mean something that the principal was

         10  making these statements, said that it appeared that

         11  Nixzmary was a target child, and that she had come

         12  to school on several occasions with bruises. So,

         13  again, a sense of continuity, this was not a

         14  one-time situation. And the ACS workers also saw her

         15  physical situation, but then when they spoke to the

         16  siblings, as we say, it appears that most of them

         17  were coached, but one of them, a five-year-old, said

         18  specifically when asked what happened to Nixzmary's

         19  eye, said "Cesar did it." Cesar being the

         20  stepfather. So, there was one specific additional

         21  piece of evidence available to the ACS person, and

         22  then it says that the two detectives were there.

         23  They did not have a substantive conversation with

         24  Mr. Rodriguez. They were there because of the

         25  concern he might be belligerent, and that the
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          2  detectives did check, as you said, for any reports

          3  of domestic violence, and then shortly thereafter

          4  left.

          5                 Again, what I'm trying to understand

          6  is why is there not more of a directive dynamic that

          7  everyone must compare notes with each other? And

          8  even the information they got that day, we talked

          9  earlier about what if they had had all the

         10  background information, but even the information

         11  they had that day, it doesn't sound like there was

         12  anything that required those detectives to interview

         13  Cesar Rodriguez, check his background further,

         14  besides simply the question of domestic violence,

         15  doesn't sound like there was anything currently

         16  mandating that unless an IRT had been declared.

         17                 And I think you said it best, this is

         18  art and not science, and these are very complex

         19  situations. So, it would seem to me an immediate

         20  concern would be if something had caused the school

         21  to get to this level of awareness and concern, why

         22  would it not have been the responsibility of the

         23  detectives to interview everyone present, even

         24  absent an IRT?

         25                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, as I said,
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          2  it wasn't communicated to the detectives.

          3                 I mean, it also says in that report

          4  that Mr. Rodriguez was interviewed by the detectives

          5  for 15 minutes. That simply did not happen.

          6                 Again, as I said before, they never

          7  consulted with us when they prepared that report.

          8  It's unfortunate.

          9                 We have now put together a detailed

         10  report which I sent to Deputy Mayor Gibbs, but this

         11  information was not communicated to the detectives.

         12  The detectives were there strictly for security

         13  purposes, could have been a uniformed officer just

         14  as easily, but for the fact that the supervising

         15  caseworker and the detective had a relationship.

         16  That's why she went to provide security.

         17                 No interview was done of Mr.

         18  Rodriguez by the detectives, and it should not have

         19  been done. Certainly because if, in fact, he's a

         20  suspect, you know, there's Miranda warnings, there's

         21  lots of issues. You get your information, your

         22  evidence first before you confront the suspected

         23  perpetrator.

         24                 They did in fact, the case workers

         25  interviewed the father there. You know, this
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          2  information simply was not conveyed to the

          3  detectives.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, let me

          5  say this, and I just now want to quote from the IRT

          6  protocol, which is the interagency, this is the

          7  existing protocol, it's an interagency document.

          8  It's from page 15 and it talks about coordination

          9  between NYPD and ACS. And I'm going to just read

         10  verbatim one short passage. I want to just clarify

         11  that the word "warrant" in this case is used as a

         12  verb, meaning requires.

         13                 "In cases that warrant assistance

         14  from NYPD by an ACS worker, NYPD will respond, not

         15  only for the purpose of ensuring the safety of all

         16  concerned, but also for the investigating of

         17  possible criminal activity."

         18                 And I want to also add from the same

         19  protocol, because you mentioned before the question

         20  of what authorizes a certain level of child abuse

         21  that the definition of type 2 severe physical abuse

         22  is, one of the items is, quote, "widespread or

         23  serious bruises, lacerations or welts, consistent

         24  with injury being inflicted."

         25                 So, my concern here is you could
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          2  easily read this protocol to say that upon arriving

          3  in a situation where school officials, let's put

          4  aside ACS for a second, school officials felt that

          5  there was a need for a security presence, that that

          6  should also have triggered some degree of immediate

          7  investigation separate from the question of an IRT

          8  having been declared formally.

          9                 Because, again, I'm trying to get at

         10  if, and we don't have a new protocol yet, and it's

         11  going to take awhile for one to come into place. We

         12  need to worry about the here and now as well.

         13                 If the communication or coordination

         14  is not ideal, if the decision to go forward with an

         15  IRT is not ideal, if ACS did not bring the parties

         16  together in the way it might have, you still had

         17  detectives on the scene with some kind of

         18  requirement to investigate and you had plenty of

         19  available information right there from the school

         20  personnel. Again, social worker was gone, but the

         21  principal had plenty to say. The suspect happened to

         22  be there and the children happened to be there,

         23  so...

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I think in this

         25  case, you have to use common sense. The detectives
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          2  show up, the supervisor, the ACS supervisor saying

          3  there's nothing here. They've already done their

          4  investigation. There is nothing here. They don't

          5  even want them to accompany them to go home. They

          6  don't feel threatened by this individual. They say

          7  there is nothing here. So, I mean, these are people

          8  that they worked with before, saying that there is

          9  no basis to go forward. They're here for security,

         10  they watched Mr. Rodriguez out in the hall, they did

         11  no interviews of Mr. Rodriguez, that's what happened

         12  that day.

         13                 I mean, you could read that to say,

         14  yes, every time the police show up they're going to

         15  do a total investigation or cursory investigation,

         16  but common sense here says that the supervisor of

         17  ACS is present saying there's nothing here, they've

         18  already looked at the facts. You're here for

         19  security, detectives, thank you very much.

         20                 So, I understand, you know, going

         21  forward certainly we want to take a look at it, but

         22  in this particular case, I think, you know, as I

         23  say, common sense has to prevail. The detectives had

         24  a relationship with the ACS workers, they're saying

         25  there's nothing here. That's nothing there.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We appreciate

          3  obviously those relationships are what makes things

          4  work day-to-day, and no one is trying to deny the

          5  importance of them.

          6                 I guess I would say from now until we

          7  have a new protocol and then going forward when we

          8  do have a new protocol, I'd like to note that a

          9  principal of the school, for example, is a pretty

         10  senior official in the scheme of things, and even if

         11  an ACS worker, or supervisor said there's nothing

         12  here, if at least the police who are present chose

         13  to talk to the official of the school, I can't

         14  believe that that wouldn't be part of a protocol

         15  going forward because that's an additional

         16  information source.

         17                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Okay. But in this

         18  case you were saying you would say to the ACS

         19  worker, in spite of the fact that you say there's

         20  nothing here, I'm going to interview the principal.

         21  Now, that's a little strange.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm actually

         23  going to say to you, yes, I would, and I'll tell you

         24  why.

         25                 We're trying to encourage

                                                            94

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  communication and coordination between agencies, but

          3  we also have to encourage each agency to use its

          4  skill and knowledge and to air on the side of the

          5  safety of the child. I know you don't disagree with

          6  that.

          7                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And if the

          9  principal, who if you did a chart of the rank of a

         10  principal versus other officials, maybe it's at the

         11  equivalent of a precinct commander, I don't know

         12  what it is, but it's a senior person in our City

         13  service, if the principal were available a few

         14  officers over and could tell you point blank that

         15  there was a problem, and obviously the principal

         16  concurred that it was right for the school social

         17  worker to have called ACS into this situation, and

         18  ACS decided to call the police in, if only for

         19  security, information was staring us in the face,

         20  I'm not saying that people as human beings didn't

         21  try and do their best, I'm saying shouldn't we have

         22  an understanding that says everyone go the extra

         23  mile? And if one agency feels the situation is more

         24  dire than another agency, air on the side of the

         25  agency that thinks the thing is a problem.
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          2                 I mean, wouldn't we rather air on the

          3  side of our doubts and make sure that we went the

          4  extra mile?

          5                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Sure. That's a

          6  different situation, when one agency feels there's

          7  something more there. There was no reason to feel

          8  that based on the information that the detectives

          9  had.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That the

         11  detectives had. But, Commissioner, respectfully,

         12  this is what's so among the many tragedies here,

         13  that information was, you know, 20 feet away, 100

         14  feet away, whatever it was, in the principal's

         15  office.

         16                 And that's why I'm saying, I'm not

         17  trying to point fingers.

         18                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I understand.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm not trying

         20  to point fingers. I'm saying we can't allow it to be

         21  so segmented that because a single person from one

         22  agency says there's nothing here that everyone else

         23  stands down. The original concerns emanated from the

         24  school, and in our future protocols we have to

         25  ensure whoever brought forward the concerns that
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          2  that gets to the police -- I think you would say the

          3  detectives understood the level of the principal and

          4  the social worker's concern, that they then might

          5  have exercised their independent ability to take the

          6  next step.

          7                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Sure. They didn't

          8  have that information.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And I'm

         10  assuming we want now a protocol that could never let

         11  it happen again, that they wouldn't have such

         12  readily available --

         13                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, we're going

         14  to take a look, as I say a fresh look at all of

         15  these issues.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: When will that

         17  be coming out, do you think, that new proposal?

         18                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: We are still

         19  working on our task force and our working group and

         20  the Police Department will be making presentations

         21  to the Mayor in a few weeks time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So some time in

         23  March there might be something?

         24                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, I hope so.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And ACS
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          2  obviously shared their review of what had happened,

          3  will the police be sharing their internal review of

          4  what happened in this particular case?

          5                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Absolutely. And

          6  all you have to do is ask Deputy Mayor Gibbs for the

          7  copy of the report. We forwarded it to her.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We certainly

          9  will do that.

         10                 Okay, I want to thank you. Your

         11  testimony has been extremely helpful. And I would

         12  like to turn again to my colleague, Chair Vallone.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This will be the

         14  last question, Commissioner.

         15                 I just want to go back to what

         16  bothered us at the beginning, the perception of ill

         17  will between the agencies. As you said, there is

         18  anecdotal evidence about that, and we heard evidence

         19  right in this room about that not too long ago.

         20  Rightly or wrongly that perception is out there.

         21  What is the Police Department doing to rectify that?

         22                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, I've been

         23  around a long time, and I don't sense it. I don't

         24  see an atmosphere of ill will between the Police

         25  Department and ACS. I know Commissioner Mattingly
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          2  made that statement. I'm not certain if he's talking

          3  specifically about the Police Department or other

          4  agencies. I asked him about it. He couldn't show any

          5  specific instances. But, you know, if there are,

          6  then we'll do everything we can to lessen the

          7  tensions.

          8                 But I've spoken to a lot of people,

          9  I've spoken with detectives, they don't have that

         10  feeling. Again, as I said before, the fact that

         11  they're co-located in two major centers I think

         12  increases the feeling to collegiality, the sort of

         13  all in it together.

         14                 Is there hostility or personality

         15  problems between one person and another person in

         16  different agencies? Maybe. That's the way, you know,

         17  in problems inside the Police Department, in that

         18  regard, but I don't see institutionally. If there

         19  is, I'd like to know more about it, and we'll do

         20  what we can to address it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, as I said,

         22  I heard about it. Mr. Ensley will be testifying soon

         23  also about that situation. I know you'll have

         24  representatives in the room, and we look forward to

         25  knowing what you will be doing to combat that.
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          2                 Again, I'm not saying that -- without

          3  having more information than I have, I'm not saying

          4  this impression is the correct impression. I'm just

          5  saying that it is out there and we'll be hearing

          6  more about it later on.

          7                 Council Member Katz wants to again

          8  hear, when are these suggestions going to be ready

          9  for review?

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Well, we're

         11  making presentations on March 10th.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Presentation to?

         13                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: The Mayor.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The Mayor. So,

         15  you don't know when those will be available to the

         16  Council?

         17                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: I assume they're

         18  going to come from Deputy Mayor Gibbs.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We will be

         20  following up on that.

         21                 Commissioner, as always, thank you

         22  for your time. We will be taking a short break now

         23  and coming back with ACS, but, Commissioner, we know

         24  you're doing as much as possible to combat this

         25  situation, we look forward to working with you, to
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          2  continue to protect the children here in New York

          3  City. And if there is any assistance we can be to

          4  you, there will be hearings coming up regarding

          5  increasing laws and penalties for child abuse and

          6  things of that nature, we look forward to working

          7  with you in that regard. And we will be following up

          8  after we hear additional testimony. So, thank you

          9  again, Commissioner.

         10                 COMMISSIONER KELLY: Yes, sir. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 Recess taken.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: This joint

         14  hearing of the General Welfare Committee and the

         15  Public Safety Committee is resuming its session.

         16                 Again, I want to thank my colleague,

         17  Chair Peter Vallone, Jr., of the Public Safety

         18  Committee.

         19                 We previously heard from Commissioner

         20  Ray Kelly, the NYPD. We're now honored to have with

         21  us Deputy Commissioner Jennifer Jones Austin

         22  (phonetic), and Associate Commissioner Jennifer

         23  Marino Rojas (phonetic) of the Administration for

         24  Children's Services.

         25                 I understand you don't have formal
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          2  testimony. Do you have any opening remarks you'd

          3  like to make of any kind?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          5  Yes. I'm Jennifer Jones Austin, Deputy Commissioner

          6  at ACS. I want to begin by thanking the Council for

          7  continuing to focus on this issue, the very

          8  important issue of child safety, and I want to

          9  commit to you that ACS will continue to work with

         10  you to address these matters.

         11                 As you know, you've been looking at

         12  the IRT issues. We are here today to talk about the

         13  Instant Response Team and talk about generally what

         14  our relationship is with the NYPD in collaborating

         15  on child abuse cases.

         16                 Since the inception of the IRT, we've

         17  had a very good relationship with the NYPD. Together

         18  we have worked very closely to investigate severe

         19  abuse and maltreatment cases, thousands of cases,

         20  and as a result of that work, we believe that many,

         21  many children who are involved in these cases have

         22  not experienced the additional trauma, that the

         23  follow-up work or the investigative work can bring

         24  or bear upon children, and we also believe that

         25  we've done a much more effective job of gathering
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          2  the information necessary to conduct the child abuse

          3  in any criminal investigations.

          4                 And, so Jen Marino Rojas and I are

          5  here to answer whatever questions you may have that

          6  we're able about the collaboration between NYPD and

          7  ACS in responding to child abuse cases.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         10                 I have some questions, and I know

         11  Chair Vallone has some questions, and then we'll

         12  hear from other members of our two committees.

         13                 Let me just ask a clarifying

         14  question, because I'm going to refer to some items

         15  from Commissioner Kelly's testimony. Were you

         16  present for that testimony, or have you been briefed

         17  on his testimony?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: We

         19  were not present for that testimony. And we have not

         20  been briefed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         22                 Let me just suggest that that's

         23  unhelpful, and considering the magnitude of what's

         24  going on here, you know, I won't go into too many

         25  details, I'll simply say we agreed to a format where
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          2  the two agencies go back to back, but I did not know

          3  that there would not be presence from each agency to

          4  understand what the other one was saying, and this

          5  is the whole purpose of this hearing, is to talk

          6  about the coordination between these agencies, which

          7  seems far from perfect.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          9  Chair DeBlasio, if I could just say that --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Please.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: --

         12  To the extent that we can, we will respond to the

         13  statements made by the NYPD wherever you point them

         14  out to us.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We'll all do

         16  our best here.

         17                 One concern here is that basically I

         18  believe Commissioner Kelly made clear that on

         19  December 1st, in the Nixzmary Brown case, there was

         20  not a clear decision by the Senior ACS person

         21  present at Nixzmary's school to initiate an instant

         22  response team, and Commissioner Kelly claims that

         23  all the other pertinent agencies, meaning ACS and

         24  Department of Education, agreed there was not a

         25  clear decision to do that, and that's what
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          2  occasioned the other agencies not taking another

          3  step in this process.

          4                 Do you agree with that assessment?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: By

          6  other agencies you're referring to DOE or --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: DOE and NYPD.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          9  Okay. So, my understanding is that all agencies

         10  agree that an IRT was not initiated in this case.

         11  That does not mean that the agencies did not come

         12  together to take a look at the issues in this

         13  particular case.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But at that

         15  moment, which is obviously a critical moment of

         16  focus in Nixzmary Brown's case, I'll say what I said

         17  earlier, we want to look at this case for what it

         18  was, but we're also most importantly trying to look

         19  to the future and we're trying to understand from

         20  this and from other cases what we've learned and

         21  what's changing.

         22                 I know Council Member Koppell has

         23  some concerns about another case that we'll address

         24  in a moment.

         25                 My concern is here were detectives
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          2  from the NYPD, the school principal, the school

          3  social worker, both of whom had clear knowledge of

          4  Nixmary's case, and ACS representatives who had been

          5  involved in the case, all in the same building

          6  together at a point at which the DOE officials had

          7  in effect declared an emergency by asking for ACS to

          8  come in and not allowing the girl to leave the

          9  building.

         10                 I believe it's clear that

         11  Commissioner Kelly asserts that his detectives did

         12  not take further action because no IRT was declared.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         14  Um-hmm.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: His detectives

         16  were there for security, quote/unquote, for security

         17  purposes only. So, I first want to say, was that

         18  ACS's understanding, too, that those detectives were

         19  there simply for security, not to provide any

         20  investigative work?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: So,

         22  my understanding at this point is that the ACS

         23  investigation continues. There was a preliminary ARP

         24  review that was done. It is not yet final. I

         25  understand that the NYPD has completed its review.
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          2  When the Accountability Review Panel Report is

          3  final, it will reflect the findings of both ACS and

          4  the NYPD.

          5                 At this point I can't speculate on

          6  whether or not people who were present on the scene

          7  believed the case to have been an IRT case or not.

          8                 That having been said, the

          9  Interagency Task Force that is being headed by

         10  Deputy Mayor Linda Gibbs, will, in addition to

         11  looking at the IRT protocol, will be looking at the

         12  relationships, the working relationships and the

         13  activities of the NYPD, the DOE and ACS when they

         14  come together on a particular case.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But to the best

         16  of your knowledge there was no request made of the

         17  NYPD to further investigate the case at that point?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: My

         19  understanding is that because the IRT was not

         20  initiated, we were not looking for the NYPD to

         21  commence an investigation in the manner that we

         22  would if it were an IRT.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, and what

         24  we're concerned about, all of us, in the dialogue

         25  with Commissioner Kelly is that there was a lot of
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          2  evidence at that moment that something was

          3  profoundly wrong in Nixmary Brown's life, and it was

          4  I think most vividly presented by the school

          5  officials, from what we understand ACS personnel did

          6  speak with the school officials but the NYPD did

          7  not. So, it sounds like, I know you weren't there

          8  and you're couching your answers carefully, I

          9  understand that, but it sounds like the best

         10  opportunity we had to get the three most important

         11  agencies to work together to protect this girl was

         12  lost, and it sounds, at least according to NYPD

         13  analysis, that that was lost because the ACS worker

         14  did not declare the IRT.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         16  Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you agree

         18  with that?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: And

         20  what I am saying to you is that your point, your

         21  concern, is valid. It's appropriate. And what I'm

         22  also saying to you is that we need to look at, the

         23  Interagency Task Force needs to be concerned, not

         24  just with the IRT protocol, we are not just

         25  concerned with the IRT protocol, but we're also
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          2  concerned about whatever the working relationships

          3  may be between ACS and NYPD, whether an IRT is

          4  initiated or not, what are those relationships that

          5  make sure that ACS, that NYPD, that DOE, or whatever

          6  other agency may be working with us on a child abuse

          7  case, that we're all doing what we should be doing

          8  with respect to our respective responsibilities to

          9  make sure that the work is done in the manner that

         10  it should be done.

         11                 So, I believe in some ways I'm

         12  agreeing with your point. I understand what you're

         13  saying. It's a solid one.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right. But the

         15  other problem we have here is that, according to

         16  Commissioner Kelly, and I don't know the exact rank

         17  of the ACS person involved, or the name of the

         18  person involved, but there was a relationship

         19  between one of the detectives who came to the

         20  school, and one of the ACS officials, and that that

         21  was part of what encouraged them to, encouraged the

         22  NYPD to come to the scene and to be helpful.

         23                 I'm also concerned those

         24  relationships in some ways may blur the lines of

         25  responsibility, because, again, our reading of the
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          2  protocol that was in place at that time, and I read

          3  this section to Commissioner Kelly, so let me read

          4  it to you real quickly, is that it is the

          5  responsibility of the police to investigate separate

          6  from whatever the termination is made by the ACS

          7  worker, and this is from the IRT protocol, from page

          8  15, and it says in cases that warrant assistance,

          9  meaning require assistance from NYPD by an ACS

         10  worker, NYPD will respond not only for the purpose

         11  of assuring the safety of all concerned, but also

         12  for the purpose of investigating possible criminal

         13  activity.

         14                 And you know, Commissioner Kelly was

         15  abundantly clear that the detectives who were

         16  present did not speak with the principal, did not

         17  speak with the social work, did not speak with the

         18  children, only glancingly spoke with the stepfather,

         19  Cesar Rodriguez. The only contact really was between

         20  them and the ACS worker who initially contacted the

         21  Child Advocacy Center.

         22                 So, my concern here is, as much as we

         23  want to encourage coordination and communication,

         24  aren't there times when agencies also have to say

         25  independently we need to do something more here? And
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          2  it doesn't sound like that's the reality on the

          3  ground.

          4                 It is tragic to know that the

          5  information might have been as close as the

          6  principal's office that would certainly have alerted

          7  the NYPD to take some additional actions. But

          8  nothing in the training or the operational

          9  relationship for these agencies required that in

         10  real terms.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         12  can't speak to why the NYPD does or does not do

         13  something. What I can tell you is that as part of

         14  the Interagency Task Force's work, we need to look

         15  at how we're working together on IRT cases and cases

         16  where the IRT is not initiated. So that if it is the

         17  responsibility of the NYPD or ACS or DOE to take

         18  certain actions, that those actions are taken

         19  regardless of whether or not an IRT is initiated.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And as we go

         21  forward, tell us the process by which we're going to

         22  reform these protocols. Commissioner Kelly said

         23  hopefully by next month there would be a new set of

         24  recommendations given to the Mayor, you know, for

         25  those of us watching this situation, it's a little
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          2  unclear what's going to change and how quickly and

          3  how long it's going to take to implement.

          4                 Again, I'm having a common sense

          5  problem with the idea that the information was right

          6  there and the different players couldn't get on the

          7  same page; so how are we going to stop that going

          8  forward?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: The

         10  Interagency Task Force has been meeting regularly.

         11  My understanding is that they have been meeting at a

         12  minimum weekly, and that they are looking at the

         13  protocol itself, trying to determine whether or not

         14  there are changes that need to be made to the

         15  protocol.

         16                 They're looking at the implementation

         17  of the protocol, and they're also studying feedback

         18  that they had received from people on the front

         19  line, and both NYPD and ACS looking at what the

         20  front line workers, case workers and NYPD personnel

         21  are saying about the protocol itself and how the

         22  protocol is being carried out, issues related to

         23  communication, issues related to notification,

         24  issues related to the interview process.

         25                 These are the issues that are the
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          2  subject of the Interagency Task Force's work. And I

          3  would expect that issues that you're talking about

          4  would also be included in those discussions, and

          5  that the recommendations that come forward will

          6  speak to the IRT, but will also speak to, in general

          7  and specific manner, what ACS, NYPD, DOE and other

          8  City agencies are not doing and should be doing to

          9  strengthen their relationship and to strengthen the

         10  work that they do collaboratively to address these

         11  cases.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But again,

         13  we're talking about potentially months before new

         14  protocol is clarified and then people are trained in

         15  it and acting within it. So, I'm concerned in the

         16  here and now. There's real, real obvious problems in

         17  what happened between the agencies in Nixzmary

         18  Brown's case and in the Quachaun Browne case as

         19  well. So it's happening right now.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         21  Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And a broader

         23  solution is months way objectively. I'm not clear

         24  what's being done right now on a kind of urgent

         25  basis to ensure that we don't have another crisis

                                                            113

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  about the happening of that.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          4  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: In fact, if the

          6  same exact dynamic, if you could replay December 1st

          7  all over again in another child's case but now it's

          8  going to be March 1st, this year, what's different

          9  right now that would cause greater communication,

         10  coordination, and stop that child from going home in

         11  that situation?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         13  can tell you that on ACS's end that we are paying

         14  special attention to this very issue, that the IRT

         15  coordinators are working directly with the precincts

         16  throughout the City to provide them training, and

         17  refresher training on the IRT protocol.

         18                 I can tell you that ACS staff

         19  continue to be trained on the protocol, that based

         20  on what we've learned thus far we are identifying

         21  and pinpointing issues of concern for us, such as

         22  communication and notification, and that we're

         23  working directly with our staff to make sure that

         24  they understand fully the protocol and how to

         25  implement it.
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          2                 But there are some issues that will

          3  continue to be worked out among members of the

          4  Interagency Task Force, and as they're worked out,

          5  we will go about implementing the changes that

          6  result from it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Again, I don't

          8  think you're fully answering the point about right

          9  now.

         10                 So, right now you have the exact same

         11  situation, and let's imagine there are some

         12  difference between the various -- because in effect,

         13  on December 1st, there was a difference between the

         14  three agencies, DOE thought something more profound

         15  needed to happen, and ACS apparently did not, and

         16  that affected what NYPD did not do in this case.

         17                 If you have the similar situation

         18  this week, what's different? What's going to allow

         19  for a more stringent review of the case? What's

         20  going to allow for the case to get, the information

         21  to get up the chain of command so more decisive

         22  action can be taken; what's different now than was

         23  the case on December 1st?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         25  Okay, I may not be able to answer your question to
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          2  the extent that you'd like it answered at this

          3  point.

          4                 What I can tell you is, again, about

          5  the work that ACS is doing. We have reissued the

          6  protocol around entry orders and warrants that

          7  relates directly to this issue. We have been meeting

          8  again directly with our staff, talking with them

          9  about the protocol and how to implement it, and the

         10  Interagency Task Force is looking at these issues

         11  and they're working to resolve them.

         12                 There's also in place in stronger

         13  management and leadership at ACS. We've got now a

         14  new Deputy Commissioner and two Associate

         15  Commissioners in the Division of Child Protection,

         16  and they are, you know, reinforcing issues around

         17  child safety.

         18                 I cannot at this point tell you

         19  specifically what is happening in the NYPD or in

         20  DOE. I can tell you that these are issues that are

         21  the subject of the Interagency Task Force.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: With all due

         23  respect, and I know that you're only authorized to

         24  say what you're authorized to say, but this is

         25  something I've had, this conversation with the
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          2  Administration for four plus years now, that we

          3  understand the broad point, and if there's a

          4  specific answer you can give, that's great, and if

          5  there's not, just say so and we'll understand it.

          6                 On the question of the actual

          7  existing protocol, the passage I read you before,

          8  where it seems very straightforward, again, NYPD

          9  will respond not only for the purpose of ensuring

         10  the safety of all concerned, but also for

         11  investigating possible criminal activity; is it your

         12  understanding, ACS's understanding, that this

         13  current protocol does require the NYPD, if it comes

         14  to such a situation to investigate whether an IRT is

         15  declared or not?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         17  That is my understanding as I read the protocol, and

         18  the question is whether or not NYPD believes that it

         19  took those actions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And I think

         21  it's clear, and I think Chair Vallone, both because

         22  of his background and his chairmanship, knows more

         23  about this than me, but it seems pretty clear from

         24  Commissioner Kelly's answers that they did not read

         25  the protocol that way, and did not initiate any
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          2  investigation because they felt they were not asked

          3  to by ACS.

          4                 So, right there there's obviously a

          5  gap. And I'm very happy that people are working

          6  together in trying to find solutions. I'm really

          7  concerned about what happens in the next few months.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          9  understand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Before those

         11  solutions are all fully in effect.

         12                 Let me turn now to Chair Vallone.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Chair

         14  DeBlasio.

         15                 I'm not going to reiterate what the

         16  Chair said about his presence in the room or

         17  anything like that, but I do associate myself with

         18  those remarks in that regard.

         19                 In this instance, obviously the

         20  Department of Education in Nixmary's instance was

         21  involved in a major way. DOE is not part of any IRT

         22  team, as I read it; is that correct?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: The

         24  Department of Education and ACS are also meeting to

         25  look at issues around educational neglect.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Meeting right

          3  now?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          5  Excuse me one second.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sure.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          8  There are two Interagency Task Forces. One is the

          9  DOE and ACS, and they have begun meeting, and the

         10  second is the NYPD and ACS, and they, too, are

         11  meeting.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Two task forces

         13  which were begun when?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: My

         15  understanding is that these task forces were

         16  assembled following the Mayor's announcement of the

         17  steps that are being taken to address the issues

         18  that resulted, or that were identified in the

         19  Nixzmary Brown case. I can't give you the exact

         20  date.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, recently,

         22  that's what I needed to know. This is the first I'm

         23  hearing. So, just restate that, please. What are the

         24  two separate task forces?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:
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          2  There is a task force of the NYPD and the ACS, and

          3  they are looking specifically at the IRT protocol

          4  and the other issues that have been identified

          5  concerning relationships between NYPD and ACS. And

          6  then there is an interagency task force of the

          7  Department of Education and ACS. And they are

          8  looking at issues related to educational neglect, as

          9  well as child abuse, and how they can work better

         10  together.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, we've made

         12  the decision that it's not important for DOE to work

         13  with the NYPD when it comes to child abuse and

         14  neglect?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         16  wouldn't say that we have made that decision, but we

         17  are focusing on specific issues with the DOE and

         18  with NYPD. And my understanding is that they are all

         19  together, but there are two separate task forces.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please identify

         21  yourself.

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARINO ROJAS:

         23  Jennifer Marino Rojas (phonetic), Associate

         24  Commissioner at ACS.

         25                 Just to clarify, the task force comes
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          2  together once a week with the NYPD, Department of

          3  Education, as well as other City agencies, to review

          4  the work that the specific task forces have done on

          5  the IRT, as well as on the Department of Education

          6  issues.

          7                 So, while there are two separate task

          8  forces right now focusing on separate issues, we all

          9  come together once a week to talk about those

         10  issues. So, the Department of Education is in the

         11  room when we're discussing the IRT and NYPD is in

         12  the room when we're discussing the Department of

         13  Education issues.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: So

         15  essentially they focus as subcommittees.

         16                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARINO ROJAS:

         17  Exactly.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         19  just was corrected. It is one task force with

         20  separate or subcommittees, if you will, one focused

         21  on education and the other focused on public safety

         22  and NYPD ACS issues.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're all

         24  learning this together today.

         25                 But I'm glad that's what it is,
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          2  because that makes much more sense, one task force

          3  for two separate sub-task forces.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          5  think what is important to note here is that the

          6  issues in education are being examined and that the

          7  issues in, you know, with respect to the police and

          8  ACS are being examined. And while they may be

          9  meeting separately, they do come together to talk

         10  about what they've identified and what they're

         11  working to address.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, I'm glad

         13  to hear that. Seriously, I am.

         14                 But before these task forces were put

         15  into play, I'm correct in stating that DOE is not a

         16  member of any IRT team?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         18  That is correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And is that

         20  something that potentially may change?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         22  Well, we have to look at that. The mission of the

         23  IRT is to conduct a joint response in a situation

         24  where we believe that severe abuse and maltreatment

         25  is an issue and that a child's safety is at risk.
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          2                 The NYPD and ACS may determine in

          3  conducting an IRT that other City agencies and

          4  partners need to be brought into the process. They

          5  may call upon the District Attorney's Office, they

          6  may call upon a hospital, they may call upon the

          7  DOE. We can look at and should look at whether or

          8  not they should be other parties to the process from

          9  the very beginning, but both parties understand that

         10  if the need arises for other agencies to be brought

         11  in, they will be brought in.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, in this

         13  instance, a principal was very concerned about the

         14  condition of Nixzmary, and apparently, her concerns,

         15  though, were overridden by ACS and apparently the

         16  NYPD did not believe that they had the authority or

         17  the cause to independently investigate these

         18  concerns.

         19                 What would be the function of a

         20  principal at the scene either in this case or any

         21  other case?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: Let

         23  me, if I may just clarify on thing for you?

         24                 An investigation of an abuse or

         25  neglect report does not rely solely upon whether or
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          2  not a case is designated an IRT. And if it is not an

          3  IRT, that does not mean that the principal would not

          4  be involved in investigating that case.

          5                 In fact, as part of the standard

          6  procedures to be taken when an abuse or a neglect

          7  report is investigated, is that in addition to the

          8  source of the report being interviewed, that if the

          9  child is of school age, that ACS case workers will

         10  spend time meeting with school personnel, perhaps

         11  the teacher, social worker in the school, guidance

         12  counselor or the principal.

         13                 So, we have to keep in mind that just

         14  because this case was not initiated as an IRT case,

         15  or was not designated an IRT case, does not mean

         16  that the principal should not and would not have a

         17  role.

         18                 I do understand that the ACS case

         19  workers that investigated this case did spend time

         20  talking with the school principal, and that

         21  follow-up measures were taken. And again, I would

         22  also add to you, I would also add that if a

         23  principal determines that if a child is at risk,

         24  that doesn't mean that the IRT has to be initiated.

         25  It is initiated by ACS or by the NYPD under certain
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          2  circumstances when certain criteria are met.

          3                 But in this case, ACS did go out on

          4  the day that the report was sent in, the second

          5  report, on December 1st, and they did spend time

          6  with the principal.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're aware of

          8  the fact that they spent time with the principal,

          9  but apparently they did not act on any of the

         10  principal's recommendations, or the principal's

         11  perceptions of what was happening in that family at

         12  that time.

         13                 That's been, I know at the last

         14  hearing, Bill, you went through these topics with

         15  ACS, so I'm just going to move on to communication

         16  --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: And

         18  I would just add, these are -- I did not come here

         19  today to talk about the specifics of the Nixzmary

         20  Brown case. I did come here today to try to respond

         21  to questions about the joint or collaborative

         22  response to child abuse cases by NYPD and ACS.

         23                 As I indicated earlier, the

         24  Accountability Review Panel is in the process of

         25  completing its final report, and ACS's and NYPD's
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          2  findings will be included in that report.

          3                 I appreciate your point, but we're

          4  not here to discuss that. My understanding.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I was moving on.

          6  I agree with you, because that's the agreement we

          7  did have basically.

          8                 In any case, when there's a situation

          9  where ACS workers cannot get into a location, walk

         10  us through situations which are considered -- which

         11  may not be considered emergencies, which are

         12  considered emergencies and what is done in the

         13  typical case when you are not allowed into a

         14  premises?

         15                 And, again, how do you work with NYPD

         16  in that regard?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         18  Okay. If an ACS worker, in conducting its

         19  investigation, attempts to visit the home and is

         20  denied entry into that home, within 24 hours that

         21  ACS worker is to consult with an ACS Family Court

         22  Legal Services attorney about seeking a petition at

         23  the court to obtain an entry order to enter the

         24  home.

         25                 In emergency situations where an
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          2  agency worker has reasonable cause to believe that a

          3  child's life or health is at risk, and a child is

          4  located on a certain premises, then that ACS worker

          5  is to seek immediate police assistance.

          6                 If they find that the child's life or

          7  health is at immediate risk, then the case worker

          8  may be able to go with the police officer and the

          9  police officer -- actually, would go with the police

         10  officer, and the police officer may be able to make

         11  a forcible entry without an entry order.

         12                 If it's imminent risk, meaning that

         13  it doesn't look like the child's life or health is

         14  like at this very moment at risk, then again, there

         15  will be a consultation with the Family Court Legal

         16  Services attorney and with the police and we'll move

         17  to get an entry order.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let's start

         19  first with the non-emergency situation. To get an

         20  entry order, what is entailed? How long does it

         21  take?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         23  Okay. In non-emergency situations, the ACS worker

         24  must have probable cause to believe that a child is

         25  located on a certain premises, and the child is
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          2  being abused or maltreated, in which case the ACS

          3  case worker would meet with one of ACS's Family

          4  Court Legal Services attorneys and would lay out the

          5  facts that they have attempted on at least one or

          6  two occasions to gain entry into the home, but

          7  they've been unsuccessful in doing so, and then the

          8  Family Court Legal Services attorney working with

          9  the caseworker would draft a petition seeking an

         10  order from the Court to allow ACS accompanied by a

         11  police officer to demand entry into the home.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And how long

         13  does that process take?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: It

         15  could be, you know, if the Family Court is open, it

         16  could take just a short period of time.

         17                 There are instances where, you know,

         18  we may have to act on the weekends when Family Court

         19  is not open, and what we would do is we would go

         20  immediately to the police. If the police believe

         21  they have the authority to make a forceful entry

         22  without an order, then that will happen right away.

         23  If not, we have to look at other options. You know,

         24  can we go to the Criminal Court and seek an entry

         25  order, or a warrant for a person.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And on how many

          3  occasions have you sought warrants from Family

          4  Court?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          6  don't have that information but I will follow up and

          7  get that information for you. I don't have it

          8  readily available.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And without

         10  going into specifics, how many of these are granted

         11  by Family Court, and how many are not?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         13  Again, I'm sorry, I don't have that information, but

         14  I do commit to getting it for you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Is there

         16  some way that you believe that that system of

         17  non-emergency entry should be improved, that we can

         18  perhaps assist in?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         20  appreciate the interest. Let me first spend some

         21  time looking at, you know, whether or not this is a

         22  problem that we have, or if it in fact is not a

         23  problem. And if it is, we will certainly, you know,

         24  bring that to your attention and if there's

         25  assistance you could provide, we'll look for you to
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          2  do it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: With regard to

          4  emergency entry. You said that obviously you contact

          5  the Police Department. Let's start from the

          6  beginning; how is that done? How is that contact

          7  initiated?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: In

          9  one instance the ACS worker may be at the home, and

         10  may be denied entry but has reasonable cause to

         11  believe that the child's life is in immediate

         12  danger, that ACS worker would then go to the local

         13  precinct and make his or her concerns known to the

         14  police precinct detective or, you know, the person

         15  at the front desk. That police precinct then has the

         16  responsibility of identifying somebody with whom he

         17  or she would work with the ACS caseworker to go out

         18  and determine what next steps should be taken.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, if you have

         20  information that a child is in imminent danger --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         22  Um-hmm.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: -- Your worker

         24  needs to go physically to the precinct and convince

         25  someone that this is actually the case and then get
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          2  that person to travel from the precinct to the

          3  location? There's no shorter sure way to get that

          4  done?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: The

          6  ACS worker could also call 911. If they believe that

          7  they have to move very swiftly, they may call 911,

          8  and 911 I'm sure would meet them at the home and go

          9  and do whatever is necessary to secure the safety of

         10  the child.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you know how

         12  many times your workers either go to a precinct or

         13  call 911?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         15  don't. But, again, I can get that information fro

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We will be

         18  obviously following up for this information.

         19                 When they do go to the precinct, even

         20  in an emergency situation as you've just described,

         21  or in a situation where they believe they will be

         22  removing a child from a home, let's say, and think a

         23  police presence would be necessary, what is the

         24  procedure?

         25                 Go up to the desk officer, then what
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          2  happens?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          4  Excuse me, we're getting the specifics for you.

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARINO ROJAS:

          6  If they are just going to the precinct asking for

          7  help, they would go up to the desk officer, explain

          8  who they are, that they're an ACS worker, they need

          9  to get into the home to see the child and that they

         10  need police presence for the safety of the worker or

         11  to help them enter the home to see the child.

         12                 If they have a warrant to see a

         13  person, and bring a person to court, they would then

         14  present that warrant to the desk sergeant who would

         15  contact the warrant squad who would then execute the

         16  warrant.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, now, I

         18  know you weren't here for the testimony of the

         19  Police Commissioner, but I did explain to him that

         20  Chair DeBlasio and I have been approached by many

         21  who have complained that this process is time

         22  consuming, and in fact they do not get the

         23  cooperation that they feel necessary in all cases

         24  when they arrive at the precinct. Do you have a

         25  position regarding those statements?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARINO ROJAS:

          3  I can't comment on any specifics. I can say that

          4  whenever we do learn of an incident such as that, we

          5  immediately look into it. There may be times when

          6  our worker arrives at the change of shift and they

          7  need to wait for a police officer to be available.

          8  However, I think for the most part our workers do

          9  know the precincts and do know how this works, and

         10  are able to get the assistance that they need. But

         11  whenever we do learn of a situation where there was

         12  a problem, we immediately look into it and try to

         13  figure out what happened.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: And

         15  I would just add that, at this point any and all

         16  information is helpful, and so if you had specific

         17  cases that you can share with us, then we'd

         18  appreciate that, and it will help us to follow up.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. And let me

         20  then ask that either yourself or a representative do

         21  stay in the room for Mr. Ensley's testimony, because

         22  I'm sure he'll be touching on that also.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         24  Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: There are some
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          2  Council members with questions. I only have one

          3  other one.

          4                 The Vera Report which looked into how

          5  you are doing, and by the way you are in most cases

          6  doing very well, I should say that, but one of the

          7  problems they did find was a lack of transportation,

          8  that apparently the way your workers get around is

          9  through cab service, and runs into problems as it

         10  does for all of us.

         11                 Are there improvements being made in

         12  that regard?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         14  Yes. When Vera identified that as one of their

         15  concerns and one of the problems in conducting IRTs,

         16  ACS examined the issue and we ended our contract for

         17  cab service and went about the business of securing

         18  cars that would be available to ACS case workers to

         19  conduct IRTs.

         20                 Today we have 18 cars that are

         21  available throughout the City for this purpose.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a good

         23  start. What can we do, maybe before I go back to my

         24  co-chair for a follow-up, here on the City Council

         25  to assist you in any regard to help protect our
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          2  kids? Again, cars, maybe that's one way to try to

          3  provide funding; is there anything else we can do

          4  here at the legislation or through having done what

          5  we have to assist you in your function?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          7  may get in trouble for saying this, but I do think

          8  that the attention that you're paying to these

          9  issues through the City Council hearings, your

         10  pressing us on certain concerns that you have,

         11  really helps us to keep an eye on all the issues and

         12  make sure that nothing falls to the wayside.

         13                 I would also say that you're going to

         14  have to give us a little time as we complete the

         15  final Accountability Review Panel Report, and it

         16  makes its findings and recommendations known, as

         17  well as the Interagency Task Force's work. And when

         18  we identify the specific things to be done that we

         19  don't already know about, or we haven't already

         20  identified how we're going to go about changing some

         21  of it, we can share those with you at that time, and

         22  if there are ways you can help us, then we would

         23  appreciate it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, thank you.

         25  And I hope you don't get into any trouble for that.

                                                            135

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  It didn't sound too crazy.

          3                 But as you noticed, Chair DeBlasio

          4  and I are very calm. You haven't given us answers to

          5  all the questions, and neither did the other side,

          6  and we realize that they will be forthcoming. If

          7  they're not, we may not be this calm in the future.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          9  understand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But there will

         11  be follow-up hearings after your report is

         12  completed.

         13                 Chair DeBlasio.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         15  Chair Vallone, I appreciate that.

         16                 I just want to ask a couple of quick

         17  follow-ups on your testimony so far and then we have

         18  four of our colleagues who have questions.

         19                 And as per usual, Chair Vallone and I

         20  will reserve rights to come back with some final

         21  questions at the end.

         22                 I'm concerned about the idea, I want

         23  to agree with Chair Vallone with the idea of an ACS

         24  worker having to go to a precinct or else call 911,

         25  and I don't like either situation. I don't like a

                                                            136

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  situation that's so time-consuming as going to the

          3  precinct and having negotiate and hoping there's not

          4  a shift change, and hoping the person who is on duty

          5  is sensitive to the concern, or go to 911 and being

          6  in a list of other problems and someone out there

          7  has to make the right judgment. Because everything

          8  about domestic situations is gray and complex and if

          9  you said to 911 there's someone with a gun menacing

         10  someone, well, you know you'd be high up in the

         11  priority, but if you say you can't get access to a

         12  home, you're worried about a situation in a home but

         13  it's not clear what level of threat, you just don't

         14  know what kind of priority that's going to get. I

         15  think we're finding out that, you know, a lot of

         16  times you just don't have time in these situations.

         17  So, I would urge as you go through this process that

         18  we find something better than go all the way to the

         19  precinct or call 911, that there would be some kind

         20  of dedicated force available, that it should be

         21  clear that if an ACS worker is calling in with a

         22  situation which, again, by the current protocol,

         23  providing securing and investigation are

         24  interrelated. So, if you need security, there's a

         25  good chance you may need investigation anyway, or
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          2  you may need to stop a bad situation from getting

          3  worse, that it shouldn't be, there shouldn't be such

          4  a hurdle to get immediate assistance for a case

          5  worker.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          7  understand that. Let me just remind us all that ACS

          8  is in the process of hiring a senior law enforcement

          9  officer, as well as 20 persons with recent law

         10  enforcement experience who will be on the ground in

         11  the field working with ACS case workers to assist

         12  them in situations where they're trying to identify

         13  whether or not there is criminal activity, they'll

         14  be helping to make determinations about IRTs, and

         15  they will also be able to assist them in these field

         16  visits or in navigating with the NYPD to effect a

         17  more expedited process of engagement with the NYPD.

         18                 I also wanted to add that it's my

         19  understanding that the NYPD, while we may at times

         20  have some issues with coordination, they've been

         21  very responsive to us. They not only go out and work

         22  with us on IRT cases. As I said when I first began,

         23  they also go out and they work with us to conduct

         24  these field office visits, and while we may have to

         25  work out sometimes some competing concerns, they do
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          2  work very hard to try to be responsive to these

          3  needs.

          4                 And my understanding also is that

          5  their response time on child abuse cases is lower

          6  than it is generally for general public matters.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well,

          8  Commissioner Kelly reported that. The great irony

          9  here is that it sounds like in a sense we have to

         10  help the agencies not get in each other's way, in

         11  some cases, which may have been the case on December

         12  1st at that school where perhaps if any one agency

         13  had clear control of the situation, it might have

         14  been a different outcome. Because, again, there is

         15  no question what Department of Education folks felt,

         16  and I think if the police had been the only ones

         17  there, maybe some of their investigatory instincts

         18  would have immediately come into play. I think in a

         19  sense we want coordination and communication, and

         20  sometimes it could be our own worst enemy because it

         21  might stop people from doing what they might do

         22  naturally, if they're each waiting on the other.

         23                 But let me take you back to the point

         24  you raised by hiring the former law enforcement

         25  officials. Now, will these officials be acting in a
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          2  law enforcement role? Will they be armed? Will they

          3  be empowered to go with an ACS worker into a

          4  situation, and if necessary, you know, take a law

          5  enforcement type action?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARINO ROJAS:

          7  We're still working out all of the final details of

          8  how these law enforcement specialists will be used

          9  in our field offices. The first step is to hire the

         10  senior law enforcement official that will work with

         11  the Commissioner to set up this new process and hire

         12  those 20 positions.

         13                 I think there's a lot of issues, as

         14  you raise, will they be acting in a law enforcement

         15  capacity? The general concept is they will be

         16  consultants to our staff to help them conduct

         17  stronger investigations and when necessary

         18  coordinate with the NYPD to make sure that they are

         19  accessing the proper services and have those links

         20  to the NYPD to get what they need.

         21                 So, we can provide more details over

         22  the next couple of weeks, as we flush this out more,

         23  and we can get back to you on that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's helpful.

         25  I just want to say, though, that the thing we're
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          2  listening for specifically, and I understand it's

          3  going to take awhile, but we're going to keep

          4  pressing on this is, is there a protocol in place

          5  that's better than calling 911 or going to the

          6  precinct? So, if these new former law enforcement

          7  officials have the responsibility and the ability to

          8  immediately link an ACS worker to law enforcement

          9  support, wherever it comes from, I think that would

         10  be a great step forward.

         11                 But if they are consulting and

         12  advising and supporting within the current protocol

         13  that sounds like it's not the most workable

         14  protocol, I'm not sure it's going to get us where we

         15  need to be. So, I think we're interested in what

         16  structural changes will come along with that.

         17                 The other point we raised at the last

         18  hearing, and I know there couldn't be an answer

         19  then, but I have to insist that we get closer to an

         20  answer today.

         21                 In the case of Nixzmary Brown, but

         22  let's use that as a generic where entry is not

         23  allowed by a family. I just on a common sense level

         24  don't understand why that isn't the ultimate red

         25  flag, and why that doesn't trigger an immediate
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          2  response. Because, again, you point out that

          3  rightfully going to Family Court for a traditional

          4  warrant can be quick or can be very time consuming.

          5  But I think we can all say that if a suspected

          6  parent will not allow ACS into the house, something

          7  might be happening right then, and we just don't

          8  know.

          9                 So, are we looking at changing that

         10  protocol so that the moment someone tries to keep

         11  ACS from entering, that that triggers an immediate

         12  involvement of law enforcement?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         14  Yes. We reissued the ACS policies concerning warrant

         15  entry and entry order entry, if you will. And what

         16  we have directed or redirected our staff on is that

         17  when a caseworker is denied entry by a parent or

         18  someone in the home, and we believe that the child

         19  is in the home, is in immediate danger, that they

         20  have to move quickly to work with the police to seek

         21  a forcibly entry without an entry order.

         22                 Now, if we believe that the child is

         23  in the home is not necessarily in immediate danger,

         24  but there is a danger to the child of abuse and

         25  neglect, then that caseworker has to within 24 hours
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          2  work with the Family Court Legal Services attorney

          3  to seek an entry order from the Court.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I

          5  appreciate during Commissioner Kelly's testimony he

          6  said this is an art, not a science, and we, again,

          7  understand the complexities of that. I've got to

          8  say, it's a little troubling, that second piece of

          9  the answer. Because it's all in the eye of the

         10  beholder, and again, all of us are concerned about

         11  civil liberties, that you're not there for no

         12  reason, there are obviously some suspicions, some

         13  report has led to ACS's involvement with the family.

         14  And if the family is not willing to let ACS see the

         15  child, how do you know whether it is an immediate

         16  danger situation or something that can wait 24 more

         17  hours?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         19  Point well taken. In many instances if we're going

         20  just on the basis of a report at the onset, then we

         21  have to go with the specifics of the report.

         22                 A lot of the things that we do, as

         23  you well know and understand, are dictated and

         24  governed by law, and by statute, and presently that

         25  is what the statute requires, unfortunately in some
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          2  instances.

          3                 The other thing that you know is that

          4  this work is very complicated, it's very nuance

          5  decision-making, and the most that we can do, unless

          6  the law is changed, is that we make sure that we

          7  strengthen the training that is given to our case

          8  workers about how to assess immediate danger,

          9  imminent danger, how to make calls about when to

         10  engage the Family Court Legal Services attorney, or

         11  when to engage the police. At this point, without

         12  changes in law, we just have to make sure that our

         13  caseworkers are tooled with the resources, the

         14  knowledge, the skills and whatever else they may

         15  need to make these very complicated decisions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I want to

         17  amplify Chair Vallone's point, that there are areas

         18  where we can help, and one of them might be working

         19  with our colleagues in Albany. If we do need changes

         20  in our statutes to facilitate your work.

         21                 Again, everyone wants to

         22  simultaneously protect civil liberties and protect

         23  our children.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         25  Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And I think a

          3  lot of our laws were not written with such a sense

          4  of the dangers that would befall children in this

          5  day and age. And obviously, you know, we have to

          6  remember how defenseless many of these children are.

          7  That, you know, 24 hours can mean everything.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          9  understand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, I mean, we

         11  know the tragic situation that occurred with the

         12  Nixzmary Brown case of the ACS workers who were

         13  originally planning to go that morning and decided

         14  to go the next day. And that's not the whole answer

         15  to the case, it just means we should remember 24

         16  hours can mean everything in these cases.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         18  understand.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I would just

         20  offer, and I think we'd all agree, that we'd like to

         21  work with you and with Albany on those changes.

         22                 Chair Vallone.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I must also

         24  state that 24 hours you said is -- a consultation

         25  has to happen within 24 hours, then you go to the
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          2  court, which means a minimum of two days from the

          3  time that you were not allowed in.

          4                 As you may know, there is a bill in

          5  Albany to ease the requirements to enter a home in

          6  this sort of situation, which I've already put a

          7  resolution, and I'm sure some of my colleagues will

          8  join me in supporting, and we hope that moves

          9  forward. But to play devil's advocate in your

         10  defense, if ACS started going into apartments every

         11  time they weren't allowed in, we probably wouldn't

         12  have enough money to fund ACS because of the

         13  lawsuits that would come. Because, unfortunately,

         14  this is the way the courts see many of these, and

         15  juries. And that is one of the constraints you're

         16  working under.

         17                 Council Member Koppell.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         19                 Are you familiar with the Quachaun

         20  Browne case out of the Bronx, Norwood section?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         22  have some familiarity with it. I am not completely

         23  versed in all of the facts. There is an

         24  Accountability Review Panel investigation, or review

         25  I should say, that is currently underway, and I do
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          2  have some basic knowledge of the facts, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: When will

          4  that be completed, that review?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          6  cannot give you an exact date. As you may know, the

          7  Accountability Review Panel is an independent panel

          8  to ACS, and they are charged with the responsibility

          9  of investigating and reviewing fatalities of

         10  children that are known to ACS or whose families are

         11  known to ACS.

         12                 In most instances, it takes several

         13  months for the Accountability Review Panel to

         14  complete its report. There are instances like the

         15  Nixzmary Brown case where ACS, I'm sorry, where the

         16  Accountability Review Panel conducted an expedited

         17  review of the case on a preliminary basis.

         18                 My understanding is that there may be

         19  an accountability, an expedited accountability

         20  preliminary review currently underway in the

         21  Quachaun case.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: This

         23  Accountability, is that the panel created by

         24  legislation that we passed?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: No,
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          2  no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's a

          4  different panel?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          6  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, is there

          8  any independent review of the Quachaun Browne case

          9  that's been done by ACS?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: ACS

         11  is conducting its own review of the case.

         12                 The Accountability Review Panel will

         13  conduct its review as well. It is independent of

         14  ACS.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But both of

         16  those reviews have not been completed?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         18  They have not yet been completed. And, again, I tell

         19  you that in most instances these reviews take

         20  several months. In the case of Nixzmary Brown the

         21  review was expedited, and I will look into whether

         22  or not an expedited review is taking place with this

         23  case that you speak of.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, number

         25  one, I'd like to know the answer to that.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          3  Um-hmm.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Number two, I

          5  assume these reviews are available, at least to us

          6  as Council members, if not publicly?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          8  Yes, these reviews are made public, as we did with

          9  the Nixzmary Brown case, we will release these

         10  reports.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I have

         12  a number of questions relating to the coordination

         13  with complaints made by the school in conjunction

         14  with the family of Quachaun Browne, but let me focus

         15  on this hearing.

         16                 In May of 2005, a formal report was

         17  filed, I believe with the State, which talked about

         18  massive neglect of the children of this family. By

         19  the way, there were six children in this family. And

         20  the school reported that the three girls who went to

         21  school, PS 286 in the Bronx, came to school unkempt,

         22  dirty, no underwear, that the kids were starving and

         23  often came late.

         24                 Now, that report was made and was

         25  apparently known to ACS.
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          2                 Now, in June the police found that

          3  these children, I believe all six, but most of them,

          4  in any event, had been left alone during a mother's

          5  trip to Atlantic City, and I believe the police also

          6  informed ACS of that. Is that your understanding?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: It

          8  is my understanding that the NYPD did go out to the

          9  home and did find that the kids were home alone and

         10  did inform ACS of that. That is my understanding.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: In June of

         12  2005?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         14  Honestly, I cannot remember the specific dates at

         15  this time. I did not review the case in preparation

         16  for coming here.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What I'm

         18  wondering is if you have combination of the mother

         19  leaving the kids alone to such a degree, or in a

         20  situation where the police took the kids out of the

         21  home because they were concerned about these little

         22  kids, I think the oldest of the kids at the time

         23  was, I guess was in the fifth grade, or the fourth

         24  grade, fourth grade I guess at the time, the oldest,

         25  and the others were all younger, they took the kids
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          2  out of the home and ACS had a report from the school

          3  of a month before that this family was being

          4  severely neglected, there was educational neglect,

          5  if not abuse; why wasn't there an IRT created at

          6  that point? Because it says here, at least the

          7  Commissioner of Police said when Instant Response is

          8  called, members of the NYPD and ACS conduct a facts

          9  only interview and investigation depending on the

         10  results of other participating entities, such as

         11  District Attorney, medical providers and service

         12  providers may be involved.

         13                 Now, it seems to me that's exactly

         14  what should have happened here and what didn't

         15  happen.

         16                 Because I can tell you that based on

         17  the knowledge I have, nothing happened. Even though

         18  the school continued to call and ask ACS what's the

         19  result of your investigation? Should not an IRT have

         20  been created? And why wasn't it?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         22  Okay. So, the first thing that I want to, just to

         23  remind us all, is that an IRT is initiated when the

         24  criteria are met, and the criteria speak to severe

         25  abuse or severe maltreatment.
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          2                 What you're referring to is

          3  educational neglect at this point, and inadequate

          4  guardianship.

          5                 My understanding, and you're having

          6  me recall facts that I, you know, that I spent time

          7  with several weeks back, and, so, forgive me if I

          8  can't recall everything just as it is, my

          9  understanding is that in this case there were no

         10  allegations of physical abuse against the mother or

         11  against the mother's new boyfriend. That, in fact,

         12  we weren't even aware that the mother had a new

         13  boyfriend.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't think

         15  she had a new boyfriend at that time.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         17  Okay. And, again, I'm not as well versed in the

         18  facts at this particular moment as you are.

         19                 The issues in this case, at least as

         20  I recall them, center around inadequate

         21  guardianship. My understanding concerning the

         22  Atlantic City case is that when the ACS caseworkers

         23  went out, it was learned that the mother had left

         24  the children with the understanding that her mother,

         25  the grandmother of the children was going to care
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          2  for them, and that that in fact did not take place.

          3                 I am very much interested in sitting

          4  down, as you requested, to talk about the specifics

          5  of this case and the Mayor's Office of Legislative

          6  Affairs and ACS are willing to do just that.

          7                 At this point I do not have the

          8  details of the case before me or in my head to be

          9  able to speak with certainty to them. So, if you are

         10  interested in discussing this matter further,

         11  perhaps we can do it through a meeting.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, we'll

         13  do that. Who should we contact?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: You

         15  can contact me.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And where do

         17  we contact you.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: Do

         19  you want me to give my number out?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         22  212-341- --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What is it?

         24  341?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:
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          2  341-2980.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Let me just

          4  say that, I think that while you're correct in

          5  stating that there was not an abuse allegation, the

          6  combination of leaving the kids alone and the very

          7  severe neglect allegations of the school it seems to

          8  me should have provoked and IRT, and I think the

          9  protocol has to be reexamined --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         11  understand.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: In light of

         13  this neglect here, which continued into the fall.

         14  And had there been appropriate response and some

         15  assistance to the mother, I might say, which was

         16  what was needed here and was not given, perhaps the

         17  little boy wouldn't have been killed by the

         18  boyfriend.

         19                 I mean, things continued to be very

         20  bad in that home. That home needed support and it

         21  wasn't given support, and that, as I understand it,

         22  is the function of ACS, to come in and either take

         23  the kids out, or give sufficient support in the home

         24  so that tragedies like this don't happen. And things

         25  went from bad to worse, I won't go into it, not
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          2  involving the police so much, but certainly

          3  involving the school and the ACS, and nothing was

          4  done.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

          6  guess when we have occasion to meet, we can talk

          7  more specifically about the steps that were taken by

          8  the ACS and the concerns that you have about --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We can't talk

         10  specific about the steps that were taken, because

         11  none were taken.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         13  There were some steps that were taken.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No. None were

         15  taken. None.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: We

         17  can meet to discuss that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         20  Council member.

         21                 Council Member Palma.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair.

         24                 Good afternoon. It's my understanding

         25  that ACS conducts ongoing training, ongoing IRT
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          2  training, correct?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          4  Correct. What we do is we train all of our CPS, our

          5  Child Protective Services staff in how to conduct an

          6  IRT. They've received that training as part of the

          7  CPS specialty training that is provided to all new

          8  case workers.

          9                 In addition, IRT coordinators who are

         10  located in the field offices, and in ACS and OCI,

         11  conducting ongoing training with staff on site.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And these

         13  trainings are specifically for the staff of ACS?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         15  Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Is there any

         17  plan in moving forward in dealing with these issues

         18  who have spiraled out of control to do

         19  cross-trainings with NYPD and with other agencies,

         20  such as DOE and anyone who is --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: The

         22  IRT coordinators who are located in each of the

         23  field offices, also go out to the local precincts

         24  that are within their domain, or their area of

         25  responsibility, and they meet with and conduct
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          2  ongoing trainings of the NYPD staff.

          3                 My understanding, limited

          4  understanding is also that the NYPD trains its staff

          5  as well. I can't speak to the particulars of that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: So is there

          7  specific curriculum that is used to conduct this IRT

          8  training?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: The

         10  IRT training focuses on the protocol, which includes

         11  the MOU, the criteria for each of the three types of

         12  the Instant Response Team, when it's, you know, the

         13  different criteria, severe abuse and maltreatment of

         14  children of a certain age, the sexual offenses, as

         15  well as fatality cases, and that the training is

         16  centered on that, as well as the forms, the

         17  notification processes, the follow-up that must be

         18  done, that is all the basis of the training.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And is that the

         20  same process that the NYPD uses?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: I

         22  do not know. That is something that we can look

         23  into, but I'm not sure.

         24                 I do know that they both train on the

         25  protocol. The manner in which they conduct their
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          2  training is something I don't know about.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And based on

          4  current data given by the Vera Institute, it appears

          5  that cases initiated by IRT in the Bronx are fewer

          6  than other boroughs, when the Bronx has

          7  systematically ranked number two in reported cases.

          8  Does the IRT selection procedure and policies vary

          9  from each borough?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: No,

         11  the protocol is consistent across the City. The

         12  forms and the steps that are to be taken are

         13  consistent across the City.

         14                 The point that you make is a very

         15  good one and we can and we will look at why it may

         16  be the case that in the Bronx there are fewer IRTs

         17  than one might expect.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And then

         19  Commissioner Kelly testified that the NYPD is very

         20  pro the co-located centers, and that they seem to

         21  function and work. At this time I believe there is

         22  only one in Brooklyn and one in Queens and a

         23  start-up in Staten Island.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: Are

         25  you referring to the child advocacy centers?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Yes, those

          3  centers.

          4                 My question to him was, and he

          5  couldn't answer, I believe that he said ACS may be

          6  the agency to answer this better, is there a future

          7  plan to implement these advocacy centers throughout

          8  the five boroughs, making each borough accountable

          9  for what happens in terms of these cases.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: My

         11  understanding is that there are child advocacy

         12  centers located in each of the boroughs. That, in

         13  fact, the Bronx has at least three. It is important

         14  for everyone to understand that the child advocacy

         15  centers are not operated by ACS, and that they are

         16  not funded by ACS. I'm not sure what Commissioner

         17  Kelly was referring to, but it is my understanding

         18  that there are at least three child advocacy centers

         19  in the Bronx.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: So then if

         21  these centers function, shouldn't they fall under

         22  the umbrella of ACS?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         24  Child advocacy centers are independent centers. I

         25  cannot tell you all of the specifics about their
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          2  genesis, but my understanding is that they were

          3  initiated many years back, in an effort to create,

          4  if you will, a haven or a site where children could

          5  be brought in cases where sexual abuse was

          6  suspected, they could be brought to these sites,

          7  child-friendly, and that on-site there would be

          8  specialists who could work with the children and

          9  with the investigators, be they the child protective

         10  investigators and the police or the police to help

         11  conduct an interview of the child to learn exactly

         12  what did happen from the child's perspective and to

         13  take the necessary follow-up while trying to protect

         14  to the greatest extent possible and prevent the

         15  further traumatization of a child.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: So, ACS workers

         17  are not staffed in the --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         19  There are ACS workers on site at the Child Advocacy

         20  Centers, but they are not ACS-run centers.

         21                 In some instances, ACS and NYPD staff

         22  are both on-site at these child advocacy centers, in

         23  some instances they may not be, but I do know that

         24  ACS staff are on site.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

          3  White.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 Good afternoon.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          8  Good afternoon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I have here,

         10  there's a number of cases handled as IRT cases that

         11  has dropped, the number of IRT cases has dropped

         12  since 2002, and for 2005, 5.5 percent abuse and

         13  neglect reports were characterized as IRT cases, are

         14  all cases that should be treated as IRT cases

         15  actually treated as such? And if not, why not? And

         16  what will be done to change this?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         18  Okay, my understanding, as I look at the data, is

         19  that the number of IRT cases correlates or relates

         20  directly to the number of abuse and neglect reports

         21  that we receive each year. In the Year 2001, we had

         22  the highest number of abuse and neglect reports,

         23  well over 55,000. And in that year, we had one of

         24  the highest or the highest number of IRT cases.

         25                 Since 2001, the number of abuse and
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          2  neglect reports has declined every year, and

          3  correspondingly, the number of IRT cases has

          4  declined every year. It is important for us to note

          5  that while that is the case, it does appear that the

          6  rate, or the percentage I should say at the number

          7  of IRT cases to the number of overall abuse and

          8  neglect reports has remained relatively steady since

          9  2002, approximately six percent, give or take a few

         10  tenths of a point. And, so, we do believe that all

         11  cases that should be designated as IRTs are being so

         12  designated.

         13                 There is no cap on the number of IRT

         14  cases that would be designated or initiated, and as

         15  part of the Interagency Task Force and as part of

         16  ACS's work, we're looking at how the IRT protocol is

         17  being implemented. We're looking at how IRT

         18  coordinators are making determinations about, you

         19  know, when the criteria fits the case and when it

         20  does not. But overall, our understanding is that

         21  there is no large discrepancy, that the numbers have

         22  remained relatively constant when you look at

         23  overall abuse and neglect reports to the percentage

         24  of IRT cases each year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. So, what
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          2  I'd like for you to do then, if you could confirm

          3  that the IRT cases for all three totaled 3,599, the

          4  cases in '04 was 2,894, and in '05 2,787. There is a

          5  breakdown in terms of the various types. We got type

          6  1, type 2 and type 3. And could you provide that

          7  breakdown information, along with the Child

          8  Protective Services field office response for the

          9  cases?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: We

         11  do have that information, and I can give it to you.

         12  I can give you some of it now, or I can give all of

         13  it to you now. It's rather lengthy. I can tell you

         14  that the numbers, it sounds like the numbers you

         15  quoted are fiscal year numbers. We look at IRTs on a

         16  calendar year basis.

         17                 I cannot recall with certainty all of

         18  the numbers that you just put out, but if we look at

         19  fiscal year, for fiscal year 2003, I understand the

         20  number to have been 3,599?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: That is

         22  correct.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         24  Okay, Fiscal Year 2004, 2,894.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: That's correct.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: And

          3  Fiscal Year 2005, 2,789.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: That is

          5  correct.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          7  Now, when we look at calendar years, for Calendar

          8  Year 2003, the number is 2,941. For calendar year

          9  2004, the number is 2,860. And for calendar year

         10  2005, the number is 2,806.

         11                 You asked about breaking them down by

         12  type, type 2 cases, which if you give me a minute

         13  I'll give you the specifics on that, but type 2

         14  cases represent the greatest number of IRT cases,

         15  and for the last year that number, that percentage

         16  was 68 percent of all IRT cases.

         17                 Type 2 cases are severe physical

         18  abuse of children under the age of 11, sexual

         19  offenses involving children under 11, rape, sodomy

         20  or forcible sexual abuse involving children under

         21  18.

         22                 The next highest type is type 3

         23  cases, and they accounted for 29 percent of all IRTs

         24  in the Year 2005.

         25                 IRT type 3 criteria, severe physical
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          2  abuse of children between the ages of 11 and 17,

          3  severe maltreatment of children under 18 and sexual

          4  abuse of children 11 to 17 not covered by the

          5  response type 2.

          6                 The last type of kids is type 1, and

          7  those are fatalities involving children under the

          8  age of 18. And in 2005 they accounted for three

          9  percent of IRTs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 One of the things -- I mean, we don't

         13  like the statistics, even if it's ten; however,

         14  we're moving towards a positive change of being

         15  proactive to close the doors.

         16                 One of the thing that concerns me, as

         17  the two chairpersons had mentioned to the

         18  Commissioner was, the communication.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AUSTIN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: The

         21  communication between ACS and the NYPD, and I would

         22  like to also add the doctors, the medical

         23  professions, and we all agree that in these

         24  categories it's an art, not a science.

         25                 But in dealing with a protocol,
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          2  because a protocol we must have, is very important

          3  to make sure that we do our level best to come up

          4  with a protocol that will work for the benefit of

          5  our children in our society.

          6                 I can only offer this: Because I

          7  heard it mentioned, and I heard the Commissioner

          8  mention it at the last hearing, that X amount of

          9  people were going to be hired for A, B, C and D and

         10  E, and that's fine, but if it's going to be a

         11  collaborative effort, then we have to take into

         12  account the workers. Because when you deal with it

         13  not being a science, but an art, it's those people

         14  out in the field that go into those communities that

         15  have that extra special touch that might make the

         16  difference between what is going to happen. So, that

         17  leads me to the question I'm going to ask.

         18                 I get the impression, and you correct

         19  me if I'm wrong, that ACS and NYPD are having some

         20  kind of subcommittee hearings to come up with a

         21  protocol, or to have input into protocol, and ACS

         22  and DOE as well.

         23                 I see nowhere where the medical

         24  profession is brought into this dialogue. The other

         25  part is, I think it's very important, there's two
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          2  ways to run management, from top down and bottom up.

          3  But when you're dealing with people it's very

          4  important that you really strongly consider from the

          5  bottom up the people out there in those communities,

          6  the things that they face, their attitudes, the kind

          7  of cultures, and with that information add the kind

          8  of professionalism that's necessary to build a

          9  protocol that will benefit the stated mission of the

         10  agencies. And if you have not, or let me just ask

         11  the question, I've got to ask the question: Are

         12  there on-line workers involved in development or

         13  having input into the protocol that's being

         14  developed?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: My

         16  understanding is that the focus of the interagency

         17  task forces work as it concerns the IRT, to, as you

         18  said, study the protocol, study its implementation

         19  among the various involved parties, and as part of

         20  that work, they are seeking and obtaining the

         21  feedback, the direct feedback of front line staff,

         22  who are engaged in this work on a daily basis.

         23                 I'm going to defer to Association

         24  Commissioner Rojas to speak more to that point.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARINO ROJAS:

          3  I think it's a very important point, and we have

          4  made efforts to try to get as much feedback from the

          5  front line as possible. With respect to the IRT

          6  protocol, we've met with I believe over 100 people

          7  who are involved with the implementation of the IRT,

          8  including our coordinators and front line staff, the

          9  DA's offices, the child advocacy centers, as well as

         10  the NYPD.

         11                 We the educational neglect work

         12  group, we had a focus group with ACS staff, CPS

         13  supervisors and managers, to talk about their

         14  experiences with these cases, and what

         15  recommendations they have had and may have about how

         16  we can improve this work, and the same type of focus

         17  group is also held with the Department of Education

         18  with various levels of staff who work on these

         19  cases. And we will continue to do so as we reach out

         20  to other issues.

         21                 And I just want to add, on the

         22  medical community that's also a very important issue

         23  and the Health and Hospitals Corporation is also

         24  part of the interagency task force and we will be

         25  looking at how we can engage them more as we move
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          2  forward.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: So, when you

          4  come out with this protocol, or maybe a draft or

          5  some sort of, and I'll ask Chairman Vallone, as well

          6  as Chairman DeBlasio, to have some sort of draft

          7  that we could see where these different components

          8  have been involved, even if there's a statement,

          9  have been involved before you come out with the

         10  final? So that there may be some legislation that

         11  might be necessary in governing the Health and

         12  Hospitals Corporation, and maybe private positions,

         13  because I'm quite sure there's a lot of children out

         14  there who are being abused, that don't go to the

         15  hospital, but go to a private physician, and the

         16  private physician is not really, he's supposed to,

         17  but maybe he will not or she will not, you know,

         18  report it to the appropriate authorities.

         19                 So, if you want to talk about a

         20  comprehensive approach, to really have some input,

         21  then I think it's very important that you recognize

         22  the importance that the City Council plays in seeing

         23  to it that the tools that you need that you don't

         24  have, that we can make recommendation through

         25  legislation to implement them. And I will defer that
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          2  to the Chair on his recommendation, as well as of

          3  Public Safety and the Chair of General Welfare.

          4                 So, I mean, if this is going to be a

          5  joint effort, then there has to be an effort to

          6  whereas it's not a matter of blame, it's a matter of

          7  inclusion, because that little area that really

          8  concerns me, I mean we'll come up with a protocol,

          9  but the one that concerns me is, when you make an

         10  evaluation, and we all see things differently, and

         11  sometimes that makes the difference, how you view or

         12  see a particular situation, and you might not make

         13  the right call.

         14                 Okay, I want to thank you. Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 Our last set of questions will be

         19  from Council Member Lappin.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And thank you

         21  very much, Mr. Chairman. And I want to thank you for

         22  being here. I know when you list all statistics like

         23  that, it's sort of heart-breaking for me to think

         24  about those are actually people and children and the

         25  work you do is incredibly important and I'm going to
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          2  start out by saying that.

          3                 I asked the Police Commissioner this

          4  morning, what it was, you know, he had discussed

          5  that there was the NYPD who could initiate an IRT or

          6  ACS, and I asked him what would trigger for the NYPD

          7  initiating an IRT. His response, as I understood it,

          8  was either an arrest, or if there was a removal of a

          9  child that they undertook themselves; is that

         10  correct? Is that what you would understand to be for

         11  the PD at the trigger?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: My

         13  understanding is that is the case, and that the NYPD

         14  would apply the same criteria that ACS would apply

         15  in determining whether or not an IRT is initiated,

         16  or should be initiated.

         17                 Meaning that if the NYPD, if an

         18  officer or a detective goes into a home for reasons

         19  unrelated to, is called into a home unrelated to

         20  child abuse, and upon entering that home sees a

         21  child that is being severely abused, or a child who

         22  appears to have been severely abused or maltreated,

         23  malnourished. Then it is the NYPD's officers

         24  responsibility to engage ACS and to commence the IRT

         25  process.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay, and I

          3  don't want to be repetitive, and you said in

          4  response to Council Member White's questions that

          5  you are undertaking a review of how you're going to

          6  potentially change or improve the protocol for

          7  instigating on your end an IRT, and in that process

          8  are you also sort of looking at the chain of command

          9  and who would review a coordinator's decision?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         11  That is part of the review.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Great.

         13                 The last question or point that I

         14  wanted to make, and this is something that came up

         15  at the last hearing when I inquired of some of the

         16  workers, what equipment and tools they have when

         17  they're out in the field, and there has been a lot

         18  of talk today about calling 911, whether it's to get

         19  immediate assistance because the worker there is

         20  feeling that they are in danger, or because they're

         21  viewing something happening? But if caseworkers

         22  don't have cell phones, how are they supposed to

         23  call 911?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN: So,

         25  since we last met, and I believe it was you who
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          2  raised that issue at the last hearing and that

          3  concern, a very real one, ACS has been able to

          4  secure 2,000 cell phones for its workers. Now, I am

          5  not saying that that goes far enough, but that is a

          6  very critical step that we've been able to take

          7  already.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: That's great.

          9  I'm a little surprised I'm just hearing of it today.

         10  Is it something that happened just recently?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

         12  They are in the process of being issued to the

         13  workers, but we've gotten the go ahead to purchase

         14  them and secure them and then to distribute them to

         15  the workers.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And just to

         17  give me a sense, how many workers are there out

         18  there? How will this meet the demand?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARINO ROJAS:

         20  These cell phones will be issued to all of our child

         21  protective specialists, supervisor 1s and supervisor

         22  2s. So, everybody who is out in the field will have

         23  these cell phones. Hopefully in the next couple of

         24  weeks they'll be issued.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: That's great.
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          2  I'm very happy to hear that.

          3                 And in the future when issues like

          4  that are raised in hearings, if I hadn't asked the

          5  question today, I might not know, and this is

          6  something that I obviously care about because I

          7  raised it before, so if you could keep individual

          8  Council members or maybe the Committee chair in the

          9  loop, that would be very helpful. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         11  Council member, for demonstrating why it's important

         12  that we have so many questions. You know, it may

         13  seem boring at times, and sometimes you stumble upon

         14  something.

         15                 I do have a lot more regarding

         16  training for IRT, the coordinators and things of

         17  that nature. In joint training that doesn't happen,

         18  but I do want to get to Mr. Ensley and the rest of

         19  the witnesses, and I know you've spent a lot of time

         20  here today, so we thank you both and we look forward

         21  to working with you on this. We will be examining

         22  your report as soon as you can get it to us and

         23  doing some of our own recommendations in the near

         24  future.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If you need any

          4  help from us, let us know.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JONES AUSTIN:

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you both.

          8                 Our next panel will be Mr. Charles

          9  Ensley, from Local 371, and along with Estelle

         10  McIntosh, who is also of that union and a former ACS

         11  worker.

         12                 Mr. Ensley, welcome. I know you've

         13  been waiting patiently, and we've been waiting

         14  patiently to hear from you about what you've heard

         15  in this room. I know only one person did sign up

         16  there to sit with you, so if you would please

         17  introduce them.

         18                 MR. ENSLEY: Thank you, Chairman

         19  Vallone. I have three workers with me who actually

         20  do child protective service work every day of the

         21  year, of the work year anyway. I will let them

         22  introduce themselves. Starting with Nasa (phonetic).

         23                 MS. VARGAS: Good afternoon. My name

         24  is Nasa Vargas, and I work out of the Brooklyn field

         25  office.
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          2                 MS. BROWN: Good afternoon. My name is

          3  Shelleny Brown, and I'm in the Bronx.

          4                 MS. McINTOSH: Good afternoon. My name

          5  is Estelle McIntosh, from the Manhattan Field

          6  Office.

          7                 MR. ENSLEY: Thank you, Chairman. Of

          8  course, I'm Charles Ensley, and I'm the President of

          9  the Social Service Employees Union and Local 371. I

         10  want to thank you again for the opportunity to

         11  continue the dialogue of the union concerns, the

         12  problems in the child welfare system.

         13                 On January the 30th, referring to the

         14  Commissioner and Commissioner Mattingly's testimony,

         15  I stated that the view from the top did not reflect

         16  the reality that our workers face every day in the

         17  field.

         18                 Having heard the Police Commissioner

         19  today, I can only assure you that the Police

         20  Commissioner paints a much rosier picture than as

         21  this when describing the relationship between ACS

         22  and the Police Department.

         23                 However, our workers only wish they

         24  have the kind of support from our Commissioner as

         25  New York City Police Officers have from theirs. We
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          2  appreciate the support he even gave our workers

          3  today in this testimony. But as you are aware, from

          4  the testimony of the Committee, the General Welfare

          5  Committee on 130, one of the barriers that our

          6  workers face in their efforts to protect children is

          7  a lack of coordination between ACS and the New York

          8  Police Department.

          9                 So, it is our reality that the

         10  assertion that there is tension, is in fact true.

         11                 Today I bring with you the three

         12  workers who can best describe the tensions that they

         13  go through every day in their relationship with

         14  NYPD.

         15                 And we will start with Nasa.

         16                 Oh, we were going to start with

         17  Shelleny, weren't we? Shelleny.

         18                 MS. BROWN: My name is Shelleny Brown,

         19  and I'm from the Bronx Field Office.

         20                 Basically I want to start by

         21  discussing the execution of warrants, specifically

         22  warrants to produce, meaning for the parent to

         23  produce a child because they can't have any access

         24  to that child.

         25                 Personally, I have gotten warrants
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          2  executed, but the thing is this: In the Bronx the

          3  50th Precinct is basically the precinct that

          4  executes the warrants. Now, for precincts who do

          5  have warrant squads, usually those police officers

          6  are from the precinct.

          7                 I had an instance recently where I

          8  had obtained a warrant from Queens Family Court. I

          9  took the warrant to the 47th Precinct, which covered

         10  the area that my client reside. I took the warrant

         11  to the precinct, the officers basically told me

         12  that, well, they went out for the day already, they

         13  looked and they saw that it was from Queens Family

         14  Court, they told me that they didn't really like to

         15  execute warrants from Queens Family Court, because

         16  the judge always makes them stay there all day.

         17                 To make a long story short --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before you move

         19  on, why was it from Queens Family Court?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Because the case had

         21  initiated in Queens. Even though part of the family

         22  was now residing in the Bronx, the case initiated in

         23  Queens.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And when you say

         25  the judge makes them stay there all day, explain
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          2  what you mean. There are different types of

          3  warrants?

          4                 MS. BROWN: Okay, again, this warrant

          5  was for a child to produce a child. So what would

          6  then happen, the Warrant Squad is supposed to go

          7  out, pick the father up, pick the child up and stay

          8  and wait with the father until the case is heard.

          9                 Now, apparently in Queens Family

         10  Court, the cases are being heard later on in the

         11  afternoon, which the police officers are complaining

         12  about, because they would then have to stay in court

         13  throughout the duration of time with the

         14  perpetrator.

         15                 Now, my client basically informed me

         16  that he received a telephone call from the Warrant

         17  Squad asking him to make telephone contact with

         18  them. They never executed the warrant. Never. He,

         19  from his own will, basically went to court, then the

         20  warrant was vacated. But they never executed the

         21  warrant.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When did he go

         23  to court?

         24                 MS. BROWN: He went to court on a

         25  subsequent court date and the warrant was then
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          2  vacated, but the officers never executed the

          3  warrant.

          4                 Even with making basic telephone

          5  contact with the precincts, you will call them and

          6  the phone will be ringing for long periods of time,

          7  it doesn't matter what time of day.

          8                 With doing removals, if we --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I have to tell

         10  you, I'm Public Safety Chair, and I call the

         11  precinct and the phone rings for a long amount of

         12  time, so...

         13                 MS. BROWN: Okay. Now, with doing

         14  removals, we don't go to the precinct. We call 911.

         15  We have, at the very least, an hour wait time for

         16  police assistance to come.

         17                 Now, when the police do come, when we

         18  show them our remand papers, often they don't

         19  understand it. So what they then do is they call for

         20  a commanding officer to come. He or she will then

         21  look at it and say, yes, go ahead.

         22                 Now, if we're already waiting for an

         23  hour for them, and I'm being very generous, and they

         24  have to wait for a commander to come, which may take

         25  between 20 minutes, a half an hour, that's already
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          2  an hour and a half, the family could be on the way

          3  to the airport by then, and if we have such

          4  difficulties when we do have remands, just try to

          5  imagine when we don't, when it's an emergency

          6  situation, we go and we see that things aren't right

          7  -- are you clear on a remand?

          8                 MR. ENSLEY: They understand.

          9                 MS. BROWN: Okay.

         10                 MR. ENSLEY: Trust me.

         11                 MS. BROWN: Okay. And when it's an

         12  emergency situation, we go and we make a visit and

         13  we see that things aren't going right and we call

         14  for police assistance, it's almost impossible for

         15  them to assist us, because they're saying, well, are

         16  you supposed to do this? Are you sure? I've never

         17  heard anything -- it's always grave difficulties.

         18                 And even during that emergency, we

         19  are having a difficult time for them even to give us

         20  a ride with the children to our pre-placement at 492

         21  First Avenue. The most they're willing to do is drop

         22  us at the precinct and we have to sit there and wait

         23  for transportation to come, how ever long that may

         24  take.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When you say you
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          2  call the precinct; how is that done? We just had

          3  testimony that you would have to go to the desk or

          4  call 911. How do you call?

          5                 MS. BROWN: I call 911 from my own

          6  personal cell phone, which I don't get reimbursed

          7  for, but that's something else.

          8                 So, once I call 911 and I immediately

          9  identify myself as a child protective specialist, I

         10  explain to them that it's an emergency situation. I

         11  mean, I give them my telephone number for them to

         12  call me back. I usually have to call back at least

         13  three or four times. Basically every half hour to 20

         14  minutes, because it takes that long.

         15                 As a matter of fact, I just had a

         16  case of my own, maybe about a month and a half ago,

         17  that I waited for two hours, and the only reason why

         18  the police came was that one of my co-workers saw a

         19  police car, flagged it down. We thought that that

         20  was our police assistance coming to look for us. It

         21  turned out that it was a sector supervisor who was

         22  just making rounds. We explained to him that we were

         23  waiting for over two hours. He said, all right, he

         24  made some telephone calls. He called for a unit to

         25  see, you know, how long was it going to take.
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          2  Another 20 minutes, half hour or so, and then they

          3  finally came. That was almost three hours for one

          4  removal.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, give us

          6  the circumstances here. What is the emergency that

          7  you're calling 911 for? In a typical situation and

          8  in this situation right here.

          9                 MS. BROWN: Okay. Well, in this

         10  situation in particular, I had to do a removal, an

         11  emergency removal. I had a Court Order. The mother

         12  was emotionally disturbed, and we had to remove the

         13  child from the home, so we needed police assistance.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now, there are

         15  emergency removals, and there are just removals, I

         16  would assume?

         17                 MS. BROWN: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So this was an

         19  emergency, had to be done immediately?

         20                 MS. BROWN: No. This one was a

         21  removal, meaning, meaning that I already went to

         22  court and obtained a Court Order. A Court Order

         23  removal, and an emergency removal, meaning that we

         24  didn't have time to go to court yet, that's the

         25  difference.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So this was a

          3  Court Ordered removal?

          4                 MS. BROWN: Exactly.

          5                 MR. ENSLEY: That you needed police

          6  assistance.

          7                 MS. BROWN: Exactly.

          8                 MS. ENSLEY: Mr. Chairman, Shelley is

          9  for the Bronx. Her experience is common to all Bronx

         10  child welfare workers and their relationship with

         11  the PD in the Bronx.

         12                 We have with us workers also from

         13  Brooklyn and Manhattan, and, unfortunately, the

         14  problems kind of exist across the board.

         15                 We've asked Estelle McIntosh --

         16  actually, let's go to Nasa.

         17                 We'll ask Nasa, because she is from

         18  Brooklyn, to give some -- you have an additional

         19  point to make?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Yes, I have.

         21                 MR. ENSLEY: I'm sorry.

         22                 MS. BROWN: As far as the appendix A

         23  and the Domestic Incident Reports, are you guys

         24  familiar? Those are the things, the forms that we

         25  send out to see if there's any instance of domestic
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          2  violence or any reports to the police, anything like

          3  that, we send those out, if we're lucky we get them

          4  back. Most of the times we don't.

          5                 Now, by us not getting that

          6  information back, we cannot make the appropriate --

          7  we can't implement the appropriate services, or take

          8  action to protect children from domestic violence.

          9  Because if we don't know that it's going on, even

         10  know we've sent out the requests to the precincts,

         11  and --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So there are

         13  occasions when you just never get a report back from

         14  the precinct?

         15                 MS. BROWN: Yes. Yes.

         16                 MR. ENSLEY: A very important point.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What happens? I

         18  mean, do you make a report to the precinct? Is there

         19  an explanation?

         20                 MS. BROWN: No one is held

         21  accountable. Everything ultimately falls back on us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And when you do

         23  get them back, how long does it take?

         24                 MS. BROWN: Weeks. Weeks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And you're
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          2  saying you can't take any action until you get them?

          3                 MS. BROWN: Because there is no way

          4  for us to know were the police called to this house,

          5  was there any domestic violence reported. We can't

          6  always take things at face value. We are

          7  investigators, and a client is not always

          8  forthcoming with the information.

          9                 MR. ENSLEY: That information is

         10  required for them to draw a full picture of the

         11  family that they're investigating.

         12                 The police information, and there is

         13  an agreement that this information will be shared

         14  with the workers. When it is not shared, they cannot

         15  in fact complete their diagnosis of the family.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, if you begin

         17  an investigation, I would assume you would try to

         18  get the domestic violence reports as a matter of

         19  course?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You can't take

         22  any actions until three weeks at best, until you get

         23  the domestic violence report? And then if you don't

         24  get the report, you don't take any action at all?

         25                 MS. BROWN: No, we still do follow up
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          2  on other things, but as far as specifics where,

          3  well, the police were called to this home on eight

          4  different occasions because the mother was assaulted

          5  by the father in the presence of the child, we don't

          6  have that. We can still go and put services in place

          7  to be proactive, but it will be most beneficial to

          8  all parties involved if we had these DIRs.

          9                 MR. ENSLEY: Now we're talking about

         10  the coordination between the two agencies that would

         11  make their efforts more efficient, and their remedy

         12  and their --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I got nervous

         14  when she said we can't do anything until we have

         15  that.

         16                 MR. ENSLEY: No. Okay.

         17                 That was very good. Thank you. You

         18  just shut me up any time.

         19                 MS. BROWN: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But let me

         21  follow up on that.

         22                 MR. ENSLEY: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Because I'm

         24  trying to make sure I understand this.

         25                 I'm a believer, and I'm sure you are,
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          2  that time matters in these situations.

          3                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Because what

          5  may be a bad situation can end up being a fatal

          6  situation in a relatively short period of time.

          7                 So, make sure we understand this. You

          8  want the maximum information you can get from the

          9  police to determine your course of action.

         10                 MS. BROWN: Basically, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And if you

         12  don't have that information, it slows you down from

         13  being able to take the next step; is that what

         14  you're saying?

         15                 MS. BROWN: What it does is that it

         16  doesn't give us all of the information we need.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, if you have

         18  a situation where the police know of a negative,

         19  extensive history of a family member toward the

         20  child or toward other family members, but you don't

         21  have anything like that that's readily available to

         22  you. It's only available from the police. Then I

         23  presume you're not in the position to take

         24  significant action because of lack of evidence.

         25                 MS. BROWN: Exactly. For instance, I
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          2  can't file the case in court. I might not have

          3  enough evidence.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, the fact is

          5  that during that delay any number of things could

          6  happen.

          7                 MS. BROWN: Exactly.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And there's no

          9  protocol now, there's no minimum, or, you know,

         10  there's no time frame in which the police have to

         11  provide that to you.

         12                 MS. BROWN: No, they don't.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: How do you do

         14  it? You send a request to the local precinct?

         15                 MS. BROWN: Yes, that's what we do.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: To the captain

         17  or the inspector? How does it work?

         18                 MS. BROWN: Usually there is a

         19  sergeant who basically works with like Community

         20  Affairs.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         22                 MS. BROWN: And it's good when we try

         23  to get to know them, but sometimes we can't know all

         24  of them, but we would then fax the precinct. We try

         25  to call them to let them know that we're faxing
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          2  them, but, of course, we can't reach them. And we

          3  would then fax it over, or sometimes we'll give it

          4  to the IRT coordinator, and we will call, trying to

          5  follow up to make sure that they got it, and for

          6  them to basically send us the information back, and

          7  that takes a very long time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, there's

          9  nothing right now, there's no set of guidelines, if

         10  you will, that if you send your request over and you

         11  haven't gotten it back in 48 hours, you're supposed

         12  to do this other thing to get them to give you what

         13  you need? It's all just whatever you can work out?

         14  Is that the idea?

         15                 MS. BROWN: Basically, yes. Because

         16  there is nothing that's written in stone saying that

         17  they have to respond to us by this time. So, I have

         18  to use my judgment, good judgment, thankfully, that

         19  I have, to know that if I don't hear from them, then

         20  I still need to go forth with this, this or this.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you also

         22  have the option of going up your chain of command so

         23  that someone senior in ACS would reach out to

         24  someone senior in the Police Department to get you

         25  the information you need?
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          2                 MS. BROWN: We do have that. I have a

          3  supervisor, who she is very hands-on, but she

          4  experiences the same difficulties that I have,

          5  because if we have this number for the precinct, and

          6  they're not answering the phone, they're not going

          7  to answer when I call, they're not answering when

          8  she calls either, so it all boils down to the same

          9  thing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And on the

         11  previous question that Chair Vallone was asking, I

         12  just want to clarify that you're saying even in

         13  cases where you're authorized to remove a child,

         14  that there is no priority for you, in terms of

         15  getting police assistance?

         16                 MS. BROWN: None at all. I've

         17  personally had precincts telling me, well we only

         18  have one car or two cars and you have to wait.

         19                 I also had an incidence where two

         20  people from my office, we were both doing removals,

         21  like not far from each other, and because the car

         22  came for us, they never got police assistance at

         23  all. They had to do it again another day, because

         24  the situation was that dangerous.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And it's
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          2  interesting because what you point out, and I know

          3  the Chair cares about this greatly, we hear the

          4  various alerts when a child has been abducted

          5  typically by a family member, and what you're saying

          6  is that you're in a situation where you're trying to

          7  remove a child and there's a delay that occurs,

          8  which means not only could there be harm to the

          9  child, there also could be someone trying to move

         10  the child to another location before you can get

         11  there if they have any sense you're coming.

         12                 MS. BROWN: That's right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, that delay

         14  can have real ramifications for the safety of the

         15  child.

         16                 MS. BROWN: Exactly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         18                 MS. BROWN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Sorry, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: In the Police

         22  Department's defense, the Commissioner did not deny

         23  this happens. I don't know if you were here when he

         24  testified.

         25                 MR. ENSLEY: We were here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: They did admit

          3  it. Blame it on the lack of officers, which I don't

          4  doubt for a minute.

          5                 So, in your experience then, how

          6  often does it happen?

          7                 MR. ENSLEY: Chairman Vallone, you

          8  know I did this work myself, I would like to remind

          9  people. This has been a chronic problem between ACS

         10  and NYPD, long before there was a shortage of police

         11  officers, after the increase in the police force in

         12  New York City under the Dinkins' Administration. We

         13  had the same problem in terms of coordination

         14  between NYPD and at that time DCW. So, this is

         15  nothing new.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

         17  that.

         18                 Presently, though, when your workers

         19  go to the precinct, does this happen half the time?

         20  Does this happen 90 percent of the time?

         21                 MS. BROWN: In all honesty, we don't

         22  even go to the precinct, because going to the

         23  precinct is a good three hours within itself. So,

         24  what we do is we call 911. And like I said, when I

         25  confer with my colleagues, while, you know, the time
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          2  frames, I said an average of an hour and they told

          3  me that I was being too generous.

          4                 MR. ENSLEY: Okay, thank you.

          5                 From Brooklyn we have a worker who

          6  will share some of the problems with NYPD, and we're

          7  not here to assess blame either, Chairman. And I

          8  would just want you, and we're very comfortable with

          9  the fact that you are not interested in assessing

         10  blame, rather looking at some of the systemic

         11  problems that are going on, I want you to know that

         12  that's the union's viewpoint also. We recognize

         13  police officers as our fellow workers, and I wanted

         14  you to know that we're looking at systemic problems,

         15  okay?

         16                 Identify yourself again.

         17                 MS. VARGAS: My name is Nasa Vargas. I

         18  would like to say good afternoon, and thank you for

         19  this opportunity.

         20                 I am providing this testimony in hope

         21  of establishing a better line of communication

         22  between ACS and the NYPD.

         23                 For some unknown reasons, we don't

         24  seem to have the same objectives when working

         25  together. I have experienced two very disheartening
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          2  situations where NYPD assistance had been needed,

          3  and it took a significant amount of time for the

          4  officers to respond.

          5                 The first incident occurred when I

          6  went into the field office to investigate

          7  allegations of domestic violence. The 73rd Precinct

          8  covers the address that I went to. During the course

          9  of the interview, the father became very irate and

         10  combative towards me during the interview process.

         11  The father was continuously cursing at myself and my

         12  coworker, and telling the mother in Spanish not to

         13  tell us anything. I understand Spanish, so I knew

         14  exactly what he was saying.

         15                 At that point we felt very uneasy in

         16  the home, and it was almost impossible to continue

         17  the interview. While in the home, I called 911 and

         18  explained to the operator that we were trying to

         19  conduct an investigation on a DV case and the father

         20  was being very hostile. In addition to the narrative

         21  section of the report noted that the father had

         22  chased the mother with a knife around the home the

         23  day prior in the presence of the two younger

         24  children, and we needed police assistance.

         25                 At that point the father told us that
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          2  we needed to get out of the house and wait outside.

          3                 Basically my co-worker and myself

          4  waited in the hallway. After about five minutes, the

          5  father left the home and went to the store and the

          6  mother invited us back into the apartment. The

          7  mother disclosed that all of the information

          8  reported in the narrative section of our report was

          9  accurate, and that she was actually happy that we

         10  had arrived at the time that we did, because she was

         11  ready to get out of the home. Basically the police

         12  had not arrived for a half an hour, and when we were

         13  trying to help the mother gather her things and help

         14  her pack and dress the children, we were basically

         15  doing that and looking through the peep hole at the

         16  same time to see if this man was coming back.

         17                 The mother stated that he went to the

         18  store but she didn't know exactly if he was going to

         19  make another stop.

         20                 After about 30 minutes, we took one

         21  of the children, my co-worker took one child, I took

         22  the other child, and we were trying to exit the

         23  building, at this time the father was coming back

         24  from the store. So, we had to run back in the

         25  building and the mother expressed to me that she
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          2  didn't have any keys to the apartment.

          3                 Some people that lived in the

          4  building, they were basically trying to help us get

          5  away from the father who was coming in the building

          6  who was realizing what was going on, and about that

          7  time, that's when the police finally arrived.

          8                 The police did not speak to the

          9  mother at all, and basically just wanted to know

         10  what was the reason why we contacted them. We

         11  explained the situation and they just observed as we

         12  got into our transportation car and basically said,

         13  okay, we're done here.

         14                 I was able to take down the officers'

         15  badge number and stuff, because I felt personally

         16  that the mother should have been interviewed,

         17  because although she may not have had any visible

         18  bruises, she was stating that there was a history of

         19  domestic violence, and clearly there was.

         20                 On the second instance, in March --

         21  excuse me, February 16th, this occurred at the 44th

         22  Precinct in the Bronx, Judge Krebitz (phonetic) of

         23  the Bronx Family Court granted ACS an entry order

         24  for a case in which we had been unable to see --

         25  find the mother and the child. When I arrived at the
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          2  44th Precinct at approximately 3:45 p.m. and

          3  presented the order to the officer standing at the

          4  door, the job was assigned to an officer that was

          5  waiting for his partner. I was told to have a seat

          6  in the waiting area and someone would be assisting

          7  me soon. At approximately 4:30, I went back to the

          8  desk to inquire about assistance, and was told that

          9  the officers would be right back out and that the

         10  order was again given to the desk sergeant.

         11                 At 5:00 p.m. I went back to the desk

         12  and asked to speak with the desk sergeant. The

         13  officer refused to get the sergeant. I explained

         14  that no one had provided any assistance in the

         15  entire hour and 15 minutes I had been waiting, and I

         16  was told again that an officer would be coming and

         17  that I needed to wait in the waiting area.

         18                 At 5:20 I went back to the desk and

         19  asked to speak with the captain. The officers

         20  refused to get the captain and stated that "the

         21  officers are coming, this is not a restaurant."

         22                 I explained to the officer that a

         23  child's life might be at stake and it was absurd

         24  that I had to be waiting for such a lengthy period

         25  of time for assistance. I explained to them that I
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          2  had already waited about two hours, and another

          3  officer then told me that assistance was coming.

          4                 I still did not receive any

          5  assistance until approximately 5:40 p.m.

          6                 I thought the primary goal of the

          7  collaboration between ACS and NYPD is to ensure that

          8  the children of this City remain safe, whether it is

          9  in or outside of their home. I believe that we are

         10  not a priority. Although I have great respect for

         11  the NYPD and their roles and their jobs, I don't

         12  think I get that mutual respect, and I think that we

         13  both face the same safety issues, the same dangers,

         14  and unfortunately, ACS's strives and grievances are

         15  not often heard, are often overlooked. So, again,

         16  that's why I wanted to thank you for this

         17  opportunity to speak with you today.

         18                 MR. ENSLEY: Chairman, I cannot

         19  emphasize that we're dealing with individual

         20  workers, that this is a reflection of all workers

         21  who do this work.

         22                 And, again, not to blame our police

         23  officers, you know, we contend that this is a

         24  management problem. An inability on the part of the

         25  City to coordinate these two services properly, and
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          2  it's not a new problem, and hopefully the attention

          3  your two committees are giving to this problem could

          4  bring some relief to these workers who feel so

          5  frustrated out there in the field without the

          6  appropriate support, I should say respect, from

          7  their fellow City workers, okay, which is a big

          8  issue, an issue of respect.

          9                 As I indicated, they're from various

         10  boroughs, and I wanted Manhattan to chime in, and we

         11  have a person who has a background, she has been an

         12  IRT coordinator --

         13                 MS. McINTOSH: Worker.

         14                 MR. ENSLEY: Worker. Estelle McIntosh.

         15                 MS. McINTOSH: Good afternoon.

         16                 I would first like to start with the

         17  precincts. I work in a Manhattan field office. I'm a

         18  supervisor level 1, which I also carry a caseload.

         19  And when I ask the workers to go out as part of

         20  their directives to get DIRs, which is Domestic

         21  Incident Reports, from the precincts, they are able

         22  to fax over the request, and what we do is we put it

         23  on our letter head, and request information for a

         24  particular family at a particular case address.

         25                 When they do this, they fax it over
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          2  to the domestic violence officer, because in most

          3  precincts you have a domestic violence officer who

          4  handles all the domestic incident reports for that

          5  precinct. When they fax it over to the officer, the

          6  officer never responds.

          7                 Most times what we have to do, as a

          8  second directive, is to send the worker to the

          9  precinct to get DIRs, which is time consuming.

         10                 When the worker goes out to the

         11  precinct, what timely happens is that if the

         12  domestic violence officer is in, they might, and I

         13  say might, get actual incident reports. From my

         14  understanding, what I do know in general is that the

         15  domestic violence computer is set up Citywide. A

         16  worker should not have to go to a 32 Precinct,

         17  request domestic incident reports for listing of

         18  homes and told, no, you go to that precinct because

         19  we don't cover that command, when I know for sure

         20  that the system is set up Citywide, that they could

         21  put in any address and get domestic incident reports

         22  from any address.

         23                 This is the problems that we have in

         24  the Manhattan Field Office. They will not do work

         25  outside of their command. They will make you go to
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          2  PSA if it's a housing situation, they'll make you go

          3  to the 206 precinct.

          4                 I can honestly say for the 32

          5  Precinct, they're most helpful, and that's, again,

          6  once we go to the precinct.

          7                 As far as faxing something over, it

          8  takes days, it takes weeks before we get any

          9  response from a precinct.

         10                 Their thing is, "the system is down,"

         11  "no one is in." I've gone to the precinct myself, I

         12  was told the officer is at lunch. Well, is there

         13  more than one officer who is actually working in

         14  this department? Where are the other officers or the

         15  sergeant assigned to that particular unit? Is

         16  everyone at lunch at the same time? I had to sit

         17  there and wait an hour for an officer to come off of

         18  lunch in order to get the reports myself.

         19                 In addition, IRT. I used to work in

         20  an IRT unit. Part of the protocol is when an IRT

         21  case comes in, we're supposed to meet. We get

         22  assigned a detective. They tell us before we even go

         23  out, detective so and so is assigned to this case

         24  with you. They're going to meet you at the case

         25  address. Does not happen. You get to the case
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          2  address, you call down to the CAC, which I also

          3  worked in, and you ask, you know, you ask for that

          4  particular detective and you get on the phone with

          5  them and they say, okay, let me know what the

          6  situation is, and if it's really bad, we'll be out.

          7  If not, just bring the family down here.

          8                 So, that collaboration is not

          9  working. I did work in the CAC alongside with the

         10  detective. That's the best situation I can honestly

         11  say. When you have a CAC with ACS, that's the Child

         12  Advocacy Center, where ACS, Safe Horizons and

         13  detectives are in the same office, it works

         14  wonderfully. However, that's not in every CAC. You

         15  have a Manhattan CAC, but there is no ACS assigned

         16  there. Our people in our office is in the field

         17  office, when their cases come in they have to meet,

         18  they have to go to the CAC, as opposed to having

         19  everybody, as they say, one-stop shop.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This information

         21  is hugely helpful to us.

         22                 Mr. Ensley, is your union involved in

         23  any of these task forces that they mentioned?

         24                 MR. ENSLEY: Absolutely not. This

         25  current administration has been scrambling so since
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          2  the tabloid reporting on the Nixzmary case, that

          3  they have very little time to really address us on

          4  these kinds of substantive issues.

          5                 We're having meetings somewhat

          6  regularly with the agency recently to deal with some

          7  of the needs in terms of moving staff and issues of

          8  that sort.

          9                 But in terms of dealing with some of

         10  these more substantive policy positions, no, we have

         11  not had any real conversations with them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And Chair

         13  DeBlasio would like to run through that case

         14  actually.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         16  much, Chair Vallone.

         17                 The two cases in fact, Nixzmary Brown

         18  and Quachaun Browne that we heard of in some detail

         19  today, I would be interested to know, as experts,

         20  what is your analysis of, you know, what went wrong

         21  in each case?

         22                 Obviously, we heard Commissioner

         23  Kelly say very vividly that the ACS personnel at the

         24  school on December 1st did not declare an IRT

         25  situation and that's why he believes his detectives
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          2  did not go further. But we also have evidence from

          3  ACS that the school personnel had very specific

          4  information. Something didn't go right there between

          5  those three agencies. Also, the points raised by

          6  Council Member Koppell, about the case in the Bronx

          7  and the fact that in that case school personnel

          8  again very actively tried to engage ACS and perhaps

          9  police as well.

         10                 Comment on this, since you know it

         11  better than anyone else, what are we doing wrong

         12  that those mistakes were made?

         13                 MR. ENSLEY: Before I let the workers

         14  respond directly themselves, I want to make a couple

         15  of points. You're absolutely right, in terms of we

         16  found it somewhat difficult to talk about the

         17  Nixzmary case, because as you know, as we sit here

         18  we have three coworkers who have been suspended

         19  without pay by ACS due to their involvement in the

         20  case. The only workers scapegoated thus far. So,

         21  it's very difficult to talk about this case without

         22  being somewhat emotional.

         23                 But let me say that in spite of

         24  Commissioner Kelly's testimony, it is our

         25  information that the PD, that the Police Department
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          2  rejected the Nixzmary Brown case as an IRT case.

          3  That is our information.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Could you

          5  elaborate on that? I'm sorry, how do you mean

          6  rejected?

          7                 MR. ENSLEY: That the IRT coordinator

          8  brought it to the PD, the ones that were apparently

          9  so friendly, you know, so friendly that they didn't

         10  discuss the case, however, at the school, you know,

         11  where they had this great relationship, it is our

         12  information that the coordinator did in fact bring

         13  it to the PD and they rejected, they did not see it

         14  as a case.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But help us

         16  understand, because, again, this is a whole other

         17  dynamic than any of us have experienced.

         18                 If Commissioner Kelly is accurate,

         19  either side has the right to, if you will, declare

         20  the situation an IRT situation, and therefore, and

         21  neither one could reject the other. Help us

         22  understand.

         23                 MR. ENSLEY: Obviously the PD

         24  Department is unaware of the allegation, unless the

         25  PD worker or the IRT coordinator briefs him on it.
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          2                 The Police Department does not get

          3  these reports firsthand. They come into child

          4  welfare and the child welfare IRT coordinator, if

          5  she feels that it's appropriate, will call in this

          6  protocol.

          7                 Is that the way it works? Maybe I'm

          8  wrong.

          9                 MS. McINTOSH: I'm not the

         10  coordinator.

         11                 MR. ENSLEY: But you've worked in this

         12  area.

         13                 MS. McINTOSH: Yes, I have.

         14                 MR. ENSLEY: I'm reasonably sure of my

         15  information. I started up my remarks by saying that

         16  we all, and I really say this with great sincerity

         17  and admiration for the Police Commissioner, we all

         18  wish we had that kind of support from our

         19  Commissioner. The first time something goes wrong,

         20  and this has been historic, I'm a person in this

         21  union for 23 years, I've been telling commissioners,

         22  you need to support your workers. You do not need to

         23  throw them to the wolves at the first sign of

         24  trouble, and they continuously do that. You know,

         25  mainly because somehow we have not promoted these
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          2  workers sufficiently enough to the press to earn

          3  them the kind of respect that police officers and

          4  firemen in the City have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But I

          6  appreciated the point and I respected it when you

          7  made it last time as well, and we're not looking to

          8  see anyone be scapegoated, in fact we're trying to

          9  figure out what changes we have to make going

         10  forward.

         11                 MR. ENSLEY: Let's see how the workers

         12  answer your question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: No, but before,

         14  please. You're saying you have information, that it

         15  sounds like you're saying there was a desire on the

         16  part of the ACS worker to declare an IRT, and that

         17  it was either discouraged or ignored.

         18                 MR. ENSLEY: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Is that

         20  situation going to be made public, because right now

         21  that's not what we're hearing from the agency.

         22                 MR. ENSLEY: Chairman DeBlasio, that's

         23  what makes it difficult to talk about this case,

         24  because these workers have been charged with

         25  misconduct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

          3                 MR. ENSLEY: And this will be a part

          4  of their defense.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

          6                 MR. ENSLEY: We have testimony from

          7  several people --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But there will

          9  be -- it will come out in that process?

         10                 MR. ENSLEY: Oh, absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Very good.

         12                 MR. ENSLEY: And we will not only be

         13  glad to share with you the results of that process,

         14  but we'll bring you those workers here when they're

         15  vindicated.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         17                 Would others like to comment?

         18                 MR. ENSLEY: What you thought went

         19  wrong.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: On those two

         21  cases.

         22                 MR. ENSLEY: On the two cases, the

         23  Brown case and the Browne case; any of you.

         24                 Do you want to comment?

         25                 MS. BROWN: I do. In all honesty,
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          2  before both the little Brown children were killed,

          3  we were basically told to keep families together,

          4  meaning make reasonable efforts, put services in, do

          5  this, do that. It was never our initial goal to

          6  remove children. Now, after the fact, we're being

          7  told, if you see something, that's it, go. That

          8  wasn't the case before. And I think everyone needs

          9  to know that. It could be that, they got a report

         10  for educational neglect and the children weren't

         11  going to school, appropriately dressed, but back

         12  then, which wasn't that long ago, we would then be

         13  told, okay, order clothes. Give them preventive

         14  services, something rather than removing. And I

         15  think that everyone needs to know that.

         16                 And as far as me going to a home or a

         17  worker going to a home and not being allowed entry,

         18  we're often told, okay, well, go back again. And you

         19  have to go back and show a pattern, okay, you went

         20  at this time of day? And they said no. All right,

         21  well, go back in the afternoon. Go back in the

         22  evening. Make a late evening visit. It's not, well,

         23  they didn't let you in today, go to Court tomorrow.

         24  That's not the real ACS world. It doesn't work like

         25  that. You're always told to go back and make
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          2  additional efforts. And within that time, anything

          3  can happen.

          4                 MR. ENSLEY: That's the difference

          5  between the view from the top and the reality in the

          6  field. They may have a written policy somewhere, but

          7  that's not the practice in the field.

          8                 Would you like to comment, Nasa, on

          9  either case?

         10                 MS. VARGAS: Yes. I would just like to

         11  also make it known that it's my understanding that

         12  our administration is working towards removing IRT

         13  units, because it feels that every worker in the

         14  field offices should be able or trained to handle

         15  IRT cases, but the reality is that many workers do

         16  not like to work IRT cases because it's very, very

         17  intense. We work with District Attorneys, it

         18  involves going to court, and documentation. Most IRT

         19  units are responsible for fatalities, and, as you

         20  know, severe abuse and maltreatment cases, and some

         21  workers just basically don't like to have to work

         22  these type of cases.

         23                 In addition to the fact that IRT

         24  cases require that you go out and investigate the

         25  case within two hours, that's what makes it an
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          2  immediate response. Wherein workers that are in a

          3  regular protective diagnostic unit may have up to 48

          4  hours to go to the home and assess the safety of the

          5  children.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, are you

          7  saying that therefore you think it's unrealistic to

          8  treat all the workers as the same, and it does make

          9  sense to have specialized workers for the IRT

         10  function?

         11                 MS. VARGAS: Yes. Right now there is a

         12  lack of specialized units and that's creating a lot

         13  of hardships in the different field offices, because

         14  the workers are overwhelmed right now. Where if

         15  these specialized units existed, then there would be

         16  specially trained staff to handle such cases,

         17  wherein their cases of educational neglect, sex

         18  abuse, severe physical abuse, those kind of cases

         19  will be handled respectively to the different types

         20  of units that there are. But right now all the cases

         21  are just coming in and just being assigned wherever.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         23                 Council Member White has a question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Yes, thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 What is the average caseload?

          3                 MR. ENSLEY: That varies from location

          4  to location. I've looked at this very carefully

          5  myself. They're running anywhere between 20 and 28.

          6  We can hear directly from Brooklyn and your office,

          7  however.

          8                 MS. VARGAS: That is correct. Most of

          9  our caseloads right now, cases are anywhere from 25

         10  cases and better right now. And not to mention that

         11  most households have more than two children in it.

         12                 We run into households that have six

         13  to eight children and bigger sometimes, and we're

         14  responsible for each of those children, and we're

         15  responsible to document our visits, biweekly visits

         16  and go to court, and go out on new investigations

         17  and make collateral contacts. So, that makes up our

         18  caseload.

         19                 MR. ENSLEY: And in the Bronx?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Well, I'm fortunate enough

         21  to be in a Court ordered supervision unit where,

         22  thank God, I only have 15 cases, but my colleagues,

         23  they all have about 30 cases or so. I've even heard

         24  a few people in the office having 40 cases on their

         25  caseload. It's to the point where this weekend I
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          2  worked to help my colleagues with their high

          3  caseload to reduce. I was doing home visits and

          4  everything, and typing notes this weekend that just

          5  passed.

          6                 MR. ENSLEY: Manhattan.

          7                 MS. McINTOSH: Manhattan the average

          8  caseloads are between 23 and 25. And as a supervisor

          9  level 1, I have been assigned cases to my workload

         10  in order to help reduce some of the workers and take

         11  pressure off of them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: What would be

         13  an acceptable caseload?

         14                 MR. ENSLEY: Well, as the Commissioner

         15  has testified over and over again, it's around 15.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Fifteen, okay.

         17                 Now, we've heard a lot about the

         18  unsafe homes. And we've heard a lot about the home

         19  visits, and I believe the Commissioner at the last

         20  hearing indicated that when you do a home visit, and

         21  I don't know the exact word that he used, but after

         22  you visit a home, based on whatever kind of

         23  complaint, you certify that home as being an

         24  acceptable environment, or unacceptable environment.

         25  You can do that, right?
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          2                 MS. BROWN: You're doing an

          3  assessment, correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Right.

          5                 MS. BROWN: You're assessing a home as

          6  far as safety and risk.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Exactly.

          8                 Is there a standard? What I'm trying

          9  to say, is there a standard of an acceptable home,

         10  versus one that is not acceptable?

         11                 I mean, you know, a lot of people can

         12  afford to have certain things in the house and a lot

         13  of people can't afford to have certain things.

         14                 MR. ENSLEY: We're not talking about

         15  TV sets here, Councilman.

         16                 Why don't you start on this. You're

         17  asking us what our basic work is. Our work is to

         18  assess the safety of children in homes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Exactly.

         20                 MR. ENSLEY: We got allegations of

         21  neglect and abuse and we're to determine whether

         22  those allegations are indicated.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Exactly.

         24                 MR. ENSLEY: Yes, that's our job.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: That's my

                                                            215

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2  question.

          3                 MR. ENSLEY: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, now, what

          5  I'm saying is, when you come to the determination

          6  that is acceptable, safe environment, to some degree

          7  without being that lengthy, what does that entail?

          8                 MS. BROWN: Well, we clearly

          9  understand that there is a difference between

         10  poverty and neglect. So, the size of your TV doesn't

         11  matter if your children are safe or not.

         12                 What we're looking for, adequate

         13  sleeping arrangements, food, carbon monoxide

         14  detectors, smoke detectors, window guards, we want

         15  to make sure that you have clothes, things of that

         16  nature. Making sure that there are no holes in the

         17  walls. Anything hanging. No roaches, rats. Things

         18  like those. That's how we assess safety in the home,

         19  particularly.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, and I

         21  think the Chairperson asked this question, I'd just

         22  like to ask it, in case I'm wrong.

         23                 Are there any workers who are out

         24  there in the field, and I asked this question of the

         25  Deputy, involved in developing and designing the
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          2  protocol that people are going to have to live by?

          3                 MR. ENSLEY: We're unionized workers.

          4  We, as unionized workers, do not encourage

          5  administration to pick individual workers to

          6  participate in making policies, like in focus groups

          7  and that like kind of thing. Because those workers

          8  are hand picked by the agency, and often times don't

          9  necessarily reflect the view of the majority of

         10  their coworkers. Whereas unionized workers select

         11  their representatives, and those representatives do

         12  speak with some authority when they address these

         13  policy issues. So, we feel very strongly that the

         14  appropriate unit for the agency to be speaking to

         15  would be the union.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Council Member White.

         20                 I'd just like to also point out that

         21  ACS has stayed here. The Deputy Commissioner is

         22  still in the room and the Police Department is also

         23  here. So, that's a good thing.

         24                 MR. ENSLEY: We're old friends.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The last
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          2  question, I believe. We're trying to get our hands

          3  around what it's like out there for you in the

          4  precinct. How many times in a given day in a given

          5  precinct, not just one worker, but you may have a

          6  better way of breaking it down than I am, but in a

          7  given day in a given precinct, are you requesting

          8  police assistance?

          9                 I'm trying to figure out if the

         10  precinct is overburdened because there are 30 calls

         11  a day to 911 saying we need you, or is it once a

         12  week? What would be a normal amount of times that

         13  you request police assistance?

         14                 MR. ENSLEY: How regularly do we have

         15  to call on the cops in a week? Would you have some

         16  sense of the workload in a location?

         17                 MS. VARGAS: Maybe like, you mean in a

         18  week?

         19                 MR. ENSLEY: The whole location, how

         20  often would you?

         21                 MS. VARGAS: It depends on the

         22  allegations. Sometimes maybe like ten times during

         23  the week, if indeed the allegations come in and use

         24  of drugs or weapons or something.

         25                 MR. ENSLEY: Okay. So, you may have
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          2  ten requests to the Police Department on a weekly

          3  basis.

          4                 MS. VARGAS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mean you

          6  personally?

          7                 MR. ENSLEY: No, no the whole center.

          8                 MS. VARGAS: The office.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The whole

         10  center.

         11                 MR. ENSLEY: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         13                 MR. ENSLEY: And the Bronx?

         14                 MS. BROWN: In my office in

         15  particular, and please note that in the Bronx, that

         16  all the calls don't go to one particular precinct.

         17  It's a whole area.

         18                 Of late, maybe about 15 or so, of

         19  late. 15 or so a week.

         20                 MR. ENSLEY: Fifteen calls for

         21  assistance for PD? Okay.

         22                 MS. BROWN: That's right.

         23                 MR. ENSLEY: And that's true also in

         24  Manhattan?

         25                 MS. McINTOSH: That is true.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I want to

          3  tell you, this has been extremely helpful, and you

          4  know, we're trying to play a productive oversight

          5  role here, but everything we're doing has to relate

          6  back to the work being done on the front line.

          7                 Let me tell you that on behalf of the

          8  Council, I couldn't tell you how much we admire and

          9  appreciate the work you're doing. And not only do we

         10  not want to see people scapegoated, and I will leave

         11  aside the specifics in any case, because, you know,

         12  whoever made whatever mistakes from any agency, I

         13  hope, you know, they are dealt with, but that's not

         14  the point. The point is we hope that people in this

         15  City recognize the important work you do, and give

         16  it the respect that the work of protecting the lives

         17  of our children should merit. We also want to figure

         18  out what support you need to do that work well going

         19  forward.

         20                 I think I can say, you know, that

         21  there's a lot of concern today from members of these

         22  two Committees, because we have heard different

         23  explanations from the different agencies of what

         24  happened in a couple of these specific instances,

         25  but it's clear that if there's not even an agreement
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          2  on what happened in each case, or if there's not

          3  even a clear understanding of why further action was

          4  not taken, that we have a long way to go in terms of

          5  really bringing these agencies to a point of

          6  supporting each other.

          7                 But I do want to urge, and I

          8  understand that some of the information you're

          9  referring to today is tied up with a proceeding and

         10  there has to be discretion, but we would certainly,

         11  our two Committees would like to hear of any new

         12  information as things develop. These cases, for

         13  example, where you're in the middle of trying to

         14  remove a child and can't get the support you need,

         15  we've got to make sure that these agencies continue

         16  to hear about these problems and act on them.

         17                 And, so, I just wanted to invite you

         18  to directly communicate with us, as you see

         19  additional examples that need to be addressed. We're

         20  certainly going to get very deeply involved with the

         21  agencies and the Mayor's Office in terms of the

         22  recommendations where we go going forward. But I

         23  think any new situations that point out the

         24  problems, we'd like to hear about, you know, very

         25  promptly.
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          2                 MR. ENSLEY: Mr. Chairman, as I

          3  indicated earlier, we're unionized workers, which by

          4  definition mean we're disciplined. So, they're by

          5  day agency employees, but they are unionized, so

          6  they will be speaking to you through their union. We

          7  will be glad to keep you informed.

          8                 I would just like to just add one

          9  thing, because I heard Chairman Vallone indicate

         10  that at some point you'd be holding hearings over

         11  the role of the Department of Education. And one

         12  thing you should really focus on, we have

         13  experienced historically over the years that in May

         14  and June we get hit with educational neglect

         15  complaints, and, you know, it's very difficult to

         16  deal with educational neglect in June when there is

         17  no school. I mean, what do you do, tell the kid to

         18  go to school? There is no school.

         19                 So, again, this is a very sensitive

         20  issue of ours, because one of the workers suspended

         21  by ACS was suspended because he did not follow up on

         22  an educational neglect case that was filed in June.

         23                 So, you see, there are some emotions

         24  involved here. But thank you, both of your

         25  Committees, for your attention to this matter.

                                                            222

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I agree

          3  completely with what Chair DeBlasio said. I won't

          4  repeat it. But we are going to work on our own

          5  recommendations, so over the next few days please

          6  stay in contact with us.

          7                 MR. ENSLEY: We certainly will.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Submit them in

          9  writing or give us a call.

         10                 MR. ENSLEY: We certainly will.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We don't have

         12  time to go through every recommendation today, but

         13  we do want to look at them.

         14                 MR. ENSLEY: Absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Very impressive

         16  group. Thank you very much for your help.

         17                 MR. ENSLEY: Thank you, and your

         18  Committee. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Our last panel

         20  will be Gordon Campbell, Executive Director of Safe

         21  Horizon --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: There is one

         23  from Vera as well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh, and Vera

         25  Institute we'll be putting along with -- okay, we're
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          2  going to put two separate panels then. First we'll

          3  have Mr. Campbell and then we'll follow it up with

          4  the Vera Institute.

          5                 Mr. Campbell, welcome.

          6                 MR. CAMPBELL: Welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We have a long

          8  history together, your agency and the City Council,

          9  and if I spent the time necessary to say all the

         10  good things you deserve, they'd be throwing us out

         11  of the hearing room, so I'm not going to do that.

         12  But thank you for everything, and I look forward to

         13  your testimony.

         14                 MR. CAMPBELL: Thank you. Good

         15  afternoon. My name is Gordon Campbell.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If I could just

         17  ask everybody to either exit quickly, and please be

         18  silent as you're exiting. Thank you very much.

         19                 MR. CAMPBELL: Good afternoon. My name

         20  is Gordon Campbell. I'm the Chief Executive Officer

         21  of Safe Horizon, the nation's leading crime victims

         22  assistance organization, and I would like to

         23  personally thank the New York City Council, one of

         24  Safe Horizon's most important partners, and I can't

         25  emphasize that enough, particularly the members of
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          2  the General Welfare Committee, Committee Chair Bill

          3  DeBlasio, and the Public Safety Committee, Committee

          4  Chair Peter Vallone, Jr., for inviting us and

          5  inviting me to testify today. Nothing is more tragic

          6  than the death of a child, nothing except a

          7  senseless and violent death.

          8                 At Safe Horizon we are painfully

          9  aware of that reality on a daily basis. And because

         10  of this, in 1996, we created our first child

         11  advocacy center in Brooklyn, which is now today on

         12  Schermerhorn, pioneering a model of integrated

         13  services, considered the state-of-the-art

         14  intervention for effective and sensitive

         15  investigation in child abuse cases, and people

         16  literally from across the country and around the

         17  world come to our center to really see what happens

         18  firsthand.

         19                 The National Children's Alliance, or

         20  NCA, the accrediting body for CACs, defines the role

         21  of CACs as providing a comprehensive culturally

         22  competent, multi-disciplinary, interagency team

         23  response to allegations of child abuse in a

         24  dedicated, child-friendly setting that protects and

         25  minimized trauma to children and enhances and
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          2  expedites investigations, which is so great that

          3  we've got both the General Welfare Committee, as

          4  well as the Public Safety Committee reviewing this

          5  and really wanting to see what steps could be taken

          6  going forward.

          7                 The team response to allegations of

          8  child abuse include forensic interviews, medical

          9  evaluations, therapeutic interventions, victim

         10  support advocacy, case reviews and case tracking.

         11                 Safe Horizon operates three child

         12  advocacy centers in Brooklyn, Queens and Staten

         13  Island.

         14                 The Brooklyn and Queens CACs are

         15  co-located with ACS, NYPD, the DA, medical and Safe

         16  Horizon personnel. In short, the only two co-located

         17  CACs in the City are in Brooklyn and Queens. And we

         18  soon hope that Staten Island will also be fully

         19  co-located.

         20                 Co-location allows for a full range

         21  of services and resources in one location, as the

         22  woman just said from ACS, the staff member, one-stop

         23  shopping. A fully operational police precinct with a

         24  line-up room and holding cells for adult and

         25  juvenile offenders, high-tech audio and visual
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          2  equipment for taping interviews, connected interview

          3  and observation room, and a colposcope in the

          4  medical examination room for evidence collection.

          5                 Safe Horizon employs a Director for

          6  each CAC who encourages and oversees the overall

          7  coordination of all partners, providing the

          8  important role and I can't emphasize this enough, of

          9  the "neutral third" that has no direct supervision

         10  of other agency staff, but has the overall focus on

         11  coordination efforts between agencies, which is

         12  exactly what this Committee has been focusing on.

         13                 Directors have a unique and global

         14  view of the CAC operations, as they are responsible

         15  for facilitating joint case conferencing and

         16  troubleshooting on specific case problems or system

         17  issues that arise as a result of the co-location.

         18                 Seeking to assess the impact of CACs,

         19  The University of New Hampshire is completing the

         20  nation's first multi-year, multi-site evaluation of

         21  the CACs. Initial findings point to the positive

         22  impact of the CACs on child welfare.

         23                 For example:

         24                 - CACs showed significantly more

         25  evidence of coordinated investigations.
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          2                 - More children whose cases were seen

          3  through a CAC received forensic medical

          4  examinations.

          5                 - CACs with greater involvement from

          6  law enforcement and District Attorneys' offices will

          7  be more likely to show an impact as it relates to

          8  criminal justice outcomes.

          9                 - More cases from CACs were

         10  documented as including a referral for mental health

         11  services.

         12                 - and, finally, non-offending

         13  caregivers from the CAC sample described greater

         14  levels of satisfaction with the investigation than

         15  the comparison sample, even after controlling for a

         16  number of relevant variables.

         17                 Finally, there is the positive

         18  community impact created by the CACs, because they

         19  really are borough-based, neighborhood-based, in the

         20  truest sense of the word.

         21                 After the tragic deaths of

         22  seven-year-old Nixzmary Brown and four-year-old

         23  Quachaun Browne, the volume of New York State

         24  Central Registry complaints has drastically

         25  increased throughout New York City.
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          2                 Since then, Safe Horizon's three CACs

          3  have been involved in coordinating and investigating

          4  cases in record numbers, including a 400 percent

          5  increase in cases at our Brooklyn Child Advocacy

          6  Center. Child Advocacy Centers and Multidisciplinary

          7  Teams are clearly part of the solution. A big part

          8  of the solution. They play a critical front-line

          9  role in responding to child physical and sexual

         10  abuse.

         11                 Yet, if you turn to the State, CACs

         12  and Multidisciplinary Teams must be strengthened and

         13  expanded, not only in the City, but across the

         14  State. We are working with CACs across the State to

         15  codify CACs in State legislation and we hope that

         16  the City will join us in these efforts. By unifying

         17  our advocacy efforts for the codification of CACs,

         18  our hope is that a dedicated and sustained funding

         19  stream will become accessible. Because right now

         20  it's all about cobbling funds together.

         21                 CACs must also be strengthened on the

         22  City level as well. Based on our experience

         23  operating CAC's in New York City, we recommend the

         24  following changes in response to allegations of

         25  child abuse and neglect.
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          2                 First, develop standard practice that

          3  utilizes CACs in response to IRT cases, whenever

          4  possible, to ensure comprehensive, coordinated

          5  investigations.

          6                 I.e., there's an IRT case, the

          7  assumption should be made that there would be a

          8  referral to a CAC.

          9                 Utilize CACs as a resource and

         10  referral for ACS and other child abuse and neglect

         11  responders for the expert consultation and

         12  coordination of cases of sexual and severe physical

         13  abuse throughout the City.

         14                 There was discussion about the

         15  Department of Education, teachers are mandated

         16  reporters, to really have the CACs there as a

         17  resource for school personnel to reach out and

         18  consult about particular cases and the like to say

         19  does this rise to the level of which we do need to

         20  make a referral to the State Central Registry?

         21                 Expand CAC operations to seven days a

         22  week from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m., including

         23  increased staffing from all partner agencies, and I

         24  know Commissioner Kelly talked about this earlier

         25  this morning, including ACS, the DA, NYPD, Safe
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          2  Horizon and the medical provider, particularly

          3  during high volume periods from 3:00 to 10:00,

          4  Monday through Friday.

          5                 I might add that yesterday the Police

          6  Commissioner visited the Brooklyn Child Advocacy

          7  Center. There were only three personnel there. Three

          8  detectives from the NYPD. Safe Horizon was not

          9  present, the Brooklyn DA was not present, hospital

         10  personnel, and that really is the crux of the issue,

         11  that they need to be, times, schedules, need to be

         12  coterminous for all of the partners.

         13                 As Safe Horizon, just bringing you

         14  back to home, we face significant ongoing financial

         15  challenges as we strive to fully support the

         16  operations of these centers. Safe Horizon strongly

         17  believes that CACs should never be fully funded by

         18  government dollars, and that private funding

         19  strengthens the critical role of the center as a

         20  neutral child-friendly space that welcomes all of

         21  the partner agencies. I.e., we never want Safe

         22  Horizon to be thought of in a particular

         23  department's back pocket. It really helps us in

         24  terms of playing and mediating a neutral third role.

         25                 However, only 40 percent of Safe
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          2  Horizon's CAC budget, excluding partner personnel

          3  costs, comes from government sources, with about

          4  half of that coming from the City.

          5                 Safe Horizon, for example, picks up

          6  the cost of rent and utilities at the Queens CAC for

          7  all partners, including the rent for the police, the

          8  District Attorney, ACS, and the medical provider,

          9  and pays for the general upkeep, medical supplies,

         10  and other program costs at all three CAC's.

         11                 In addition to Safe Horizon's need

         12  for infrastructure support, resources are needed by

         13  all partner agencies, including ACS, the DA, NYPD,

         14  Safe Horizon, and the medical provider, to ensure

         15  that staffing by all providers is sufficient to meet

         16  the expanded services that are recommended.

         17                 In closing, I would like to thank the

         18  members of the General Welfare Committee, and the

         19  Public Safety Committee, not only for holding these

         20  important hearings, but also for your vote of

         21  confidence that the Council has given the past years

         22  to the CACs through your $500,000 allocation each

         23  and every year, which goes a long ways.

         24                 Safe Horizon is deeply thankful for

         25  that crucial support, which allows us to respond to
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          2  the needs of at-risk and abused children.

          3                 We look forward to our ongoing work

          4  together with our partners in the City, the Mayor's

          5  Office, ACS, NYPD, the DA, and of course, the City

          6  Council, to make New York City a safe place for all

          7  of our children.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. You

         10  heard, I don't know how long you were in the room

         11  actually.

         12                 MR. CAMPBELL: I was here for the two

         13  ACS Deputy Commissioners.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, what we're

         15  looking to do here is to improve the system, make

         16  sure mistakes that occur in the past don't happen

         17  again. What recommendations do you have to do that?

         18                 MR. CAMPBELL: Essentially our

         19  recommendations are that when there is an IRT case,

         20  an automatic assumption should be that a referral

         21  should be made to a co-located CAC. That's what's in

         22  the protocol. Now we want to make sure that it's not

         23  protocol and a piece of paper, but it's really a

         24  living and breathing document that really takes hold

         25  in the greatest sense of the word.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So it's there

          3  now?

          4                 MR. CAMPBELL: It's there now.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You want to make

          6  sure it's followed.

          7                 MR. CAMPBELL: Exactly.

          8                 And then the second piece is that

          9  there are only two boroughs, actually your two

         10  boroughs, Brooklyn and Queens --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Just before we

         12  get there, are we saying that it's not always

         13  followed? Is that the problem?

         14                 MR. CAMPBELL: That's correct.

         15                 For any number of reasons. And I just

         16  think, I mean, there was a discussion about cell

         17  phones, that's an issue. There is an issue about

         18  transportation, there's an issue about people being

         19  aware of the CAC and what it has to offer. There's

         20  an issue of lack of requisite resources and staffing

         21  at the CACs.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let's say

         23  there's an IRT for a dangerous situation in a home.

         24                 MR. CAMPBELL: Um-hmm.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You get
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          2  notified. What can you do? What services can you

          3  provide at that instance?

          4                 MR. CAMPBELL: We provide the services

          5  we provide, and I'm talking about the collective we,

          6  with our City partners, as well as hospital staff.

          7  We provide it at the CAC. So once that IRT referral,

          8  or those children or child associated with that IRT

          9  case is at the center, that's where we really

         10  provide a comprehensive set of services.

         11                 And the important thing is the child

         12  or children come in the front door, a child-friendly

         13  environment. The back door comes the perpetrator, in

         14  which we have a holding cell and which there is this

         15  Sex Crimes Unit from the Police Department, so we're

         16  focusing not only on enforcement, also social

         17  services, in the most positive sense of the word,

         18  and you have ACS, and there's been a lot of

         19  discussion about ACS and the Police Department and

         20  their staffs talking to each other, here they're

         21  literally sitting side-by-side.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You know I love

         23  you guys, but why is it essential that since you're

         24  a secondary part of the procedure, do you get

         25  notified right away, it's another phone call to
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          2  make, why is that important?

          3                 MR. CAMPBELL: Well, I think it's

          4  important, I think that we need to ensure that IRT

          5  cases get to the CACs and they're not getting there

          6  now, and I think it exists in writing, but there are

          7  too many obstacles that are getting in the way, and

          8  I think a number of suggestions have been

          9  forthcoming today by the Police Commissioner, by Mr.

         10  Ensley, by ACS staff and the like.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The problem then

         12  is more that they're just not taking these instances

         13  to you once they're reported, as opposed to you not

         14  getting notified immediately upon the IRT getting

         15  formed?

         16                 MR. CAMPBELL: That's correct.

         17                 That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And what other

         19  recommendations?

         20                 MR. CAMPBELL: And the other issue is

         21  that we need to have fully co-located child advocacy

         22  centers in the Bronx, in Manhattan and Staten

         23  Island. In Staten Island we are just this close, but

         24  we have to finish some construction that DCAS has

         25  taken the lead and we'd like to really accelerate
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          2  that, and then we would have three boroughs that are

          3  fully co-located.

          4                 The other suggestion is that CACs are

          5  held out as experts, and people throughout the City

          6  can turn to them and say, what should I do in this

          7  case? Is this a case that rises to the level of a

          8  referral to the State Central Registry?

          9                 Because you've got everyone there in

         10  the room working together. And most importantly is,

         11  it's not going to work if IRT cases, the presumption

         12  is that referrals are made to the CAC, unless there

         13  is appropriate staffing for all of the partners at

         14  the CACs, and that does not happen as we speak.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How about

         16  flushing that out a little bit? I know that the

         17  unions said there were no ACS workers in the, I

         18  think it was the Brooklyn location. I don't know

         19  completely. But what is the staffing situation?

         20                 MR. CAMPBELL: For example, if

         21  District Attorney Brown, or District Attorney Hynes,

         22  or District Attorney Donovan were here, they would

         23  say that we do not have adequate resources to be

         24  able to deploy ADAs to be there at the same time the

         25  Police Department was there.
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          2                 Up until Friday, a few weeks ago,

          3  there was a decision to create a Sex Crime Unit by

          4  the Police Department on Staten Island, which was

          5  great.

          6                 Police Commissioner Kelly did make

          7  the unfortunate decision of transferring some of the

          8  detectives from the Brooklyn Child Advocacy Center

          9  to Staten Island. That decision has been changed

         10  since Friday, but it's because of a lack of

         11  resources.

         12                 We don't have the funding, because we

         13  don't have nearly enough public dollars to be able

         14  to provide the staffing that's needed.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As I said, we

         16  are coming up with recommendations and funding for

         17  District Attorneys to be at your location, for ACS

         18  workers to be at your location, that sort of

         19  situation is something we may be able to address

         20  here.

         21                 MR. CAMPBELL: Great.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Any other

         23  suggestions?

         24                 MR. CAMPBELL: And hopefully in terms

         25  of funding you could build us --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's a given.

          3                 MR. CAMPBELL: The other thing, too,

          4  is that it will help us raising private dollars,

          5  because we're very confident we'll continue to raise

          6  private dollars. We do not believe that Safe

          7  Horizon's role should just be funded by the

          8  government, but if the City could help us, we can

          9  help for the greater good.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I know you are

         11  very busy, so we're going to be working with you in

         12  the future.

         13                 MR. CAMPBELL: Excellent.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Because as we

         15  said, we are coming up with recommendations, and if

         16  you come up with anything in the next few days, let

         17  us know, we'll be reaching out to you. If there's

         18  any legislation or anything we can do here at City

         19  Hall, we stand ready.

         20                 MR. CAMPBELL: I will.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

         22  the noble work you do on a daily basis.

         23                 MR. CAMPBELL: Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And as I said,

         25  any assistance we can be, we're here.
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          2                 MR. CAMPBELL: Thanks to both of you

          3  gentlemen. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Our last witness

          5  will be Mr. Tim Ross from the Vera Institute. I know

          6  that you've done a pretty comprehensive study of the

          7  system and we look forward to hearing your

          8  testimony.

          9                 MR. ROSS: Thank you for the

         10  opportunity to testify here today and the

         11  invitation. I'll be brief, given the hour. Just to

         12  sum up a little bit of what we did, the report is on

         13  our website at Vera.org. In 2002, at the request of

         14  the Administration for Children's Services,

         15  researchers from the Vera Institute studied the

         16  operations and the outcomes of the IRT program. We

         17  analyzed the program's data and we matched it with

         18  information from the State Central Registry, which

         19  records allegations of child maltreatment in New

         20  York State, and we also conducted 39 interviews of

         21  program staff. We talked with the Child Protective

         22  Division personnel in nine other large American

         23  cities, and we shadowed child protective workers on

         24  one case.

         25                 We found that the program had many
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          2  strengths. It has identified and served its target

          3  population: 99 percent of the IRT cases we examined

          4  met the minimum criteria set out in the IRT

          5  protocol, and these cases are more likely to be

          6  indicated, 52 percent of them were indicated,

          7  compared to 35 percent of all other New York City

          8  cases. And staff from all three agencies report

          9  better information sharing, stronger working

         10  relationships, more effective and efficient case

         11  processing, and strong support for the program in

         12  general.

         13                 We also found a measurable impact on

         14  services to children. Incidences of multiple exams

         15  and interviews have declined since the program

         16  started through the period that we examined.

         17  Overall, 55 percent of IRT cases included a joint

         18  interview. That was double the rate of the only

         19  other major study that we found where they found 27

         20  percent of the cases received a joint interview.

         21  This rate is substantially higher in more serious

         22  cases. And the program also appears to have changed

         23  trends in removals. Defined as either a child

         24  removal or an arrest.

         25                 When the program started, we don't
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          2  have data to go back before the program started, but

          3  if you look, take that first year as indicative of

          4  how current practice was going on. In those cases

          5  where children were removed, and in most cases they

          6  aren't removed, nobody is removed in most cases,

          7  nobody is arrested, nobody is removed, but in those

          8  cases where there was a removal, 57 percent of the

          9  removals in the first year of the program were the

         10  kids. And a lot of people were upset by this because

         11  there's child abuse going on, it would seem unfair

         12  to have the kid removed from the home, if there's a

         13  chance to remove the perpetrator instead.

         14                 In 2002 cases where there was

         15  removal, in 68 percent of those cases it was the

         16  perpetrator who was removed, defined again as an

         17  arrest, rather than the kid. We found at that time

         18  that the main challenge the program faced was

         19  managing growth.

         20                 In Calendar Year 2002, we estimated

         21  the IRT handled over 4,000 cases, this is an

         22  increase of over 160 percent, since 1999, and this

         23  increase made more efficient uses of the investment

         24  that child welfare in particular had made in IRT

         25  cases, but it also placed additional demands on the
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          2  police and prosecutors.

          3                 But overall, we found that the

          4  program provided a valuable and necessary service to

          5  New York City's most vulnerable children, and did so

          6  in a way that outstripped any of the other cities

          7  that we looked at.

          8                 So, I will leave it at that. Again,

          9  the report is on Vera.org, and I'm happy to answer

         10  any questions you may have now or later.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I appreciate

         12  that study, and it was a big help to us preparing

         13  for this Committee. We wouldn't know things like the

         14  transportation problems at ACS if not for your

         15  report, and that's being rectified.  And we're very

         16  happy to see things like the fact you just pointed

         17  out, about the perps being removed -- perpetrators,

         18  I'm sorry. I'm a former DA. -- as opposed to the

         19  children.

         20                 As you know, we're working on some

         21  recommendations here. Do you have anything you think

         22  we should add to our list of recommendations?

         23                 MR. ROSS: Yes. I have one general

         24  comment, which is a lot of the testimony and the

         25  questions that have been asked today aren't really
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          2  about the IRT program, it is about coordination

          3  between child welfare and the police and other

          4  agencies. And the IRT program itself handles a very

          5  small number of cases, and the coordination outside

          6  of IRT cases is really important.

          7                 In terms of recommendations on IRT

          8  specifically, I think there needs to be an increase,

          9  or at least the joint Committees studying this

         10  should look at increasing joint training. There were

         11  some joint trainings when the program was first

         12  established in 1998, and then the agencies basically

         13  did their own training. I think there is something

         14  to be gained when you mix the front line staff and

         15  the people responsible for the program and the same

         16  training, and there's different ways of doing that.

         17  I would say get that training so you actually are

         18  having people sitting next to each other. One of the

         19  great strengths of the program we felt was these

         20  informal networks, and I know Council Member

         21  DeBlasio pointed out some of the weaknesses of

         22  having those informal networks, but in terms of

         23  keeping that program going, I think more training,

         24  building those networks would be important, but also

         25  making sure that those informal networks don't trump
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          2  the formal protocol.

          3                 Second, if you look at how the

          4  program is structured, there is only one real point

          5  person assigned at ACS to monitor the program, and

          6  ACS has the most at stake here. This is their

          7  primary responsibility.

          8                 They've invested a lot of resources

          9  in the program, there's no concomitant point person

         10  at the other agencies. This would be, again, an

         11  investment of resources, as you pointed out, the

         12  number of police officers available, it's always

         13  pressure there. That's something they might

         14  consider, and that would also help improve the data

         15  collection. So right now the data collection on the

         16  program is done almost exclusively at ACS. So, in

         17  terms of finding out how quickly the police

         18  responded to requests, there's really no way for ACS

         19  to know how quickly they responded.

         20                 In terms of following up on the

         21  number of cases that were prosecuted, that can be a

         22  very difficult thing for your ACS coordinator to do,

         23  when these cases may not be prosecuted for weeks or

         24  months later. If there were point people at specific

         25  DAs and at the NYPD, that might be one way to
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          2  overcome that problem.

          3                 In terms of the CACs, that was

          4  another thing that we found that everyone like the

          5  CACs. And one of the tasks we were charged with was

          6  finding out why the CACs weren't used more often,

          7  and their availability was one of the biggest

          8  problems that we found.

          9                 If I can just quickly look here in

         10  terms of the location of the interview, in the five

         11  years of data that we looked at, about 16 percent of

         12  the interviews were conducted at the CACs. Often

         13  times this is because people go out to the home and

         14  they say, you know, this case is not indicated. One

         15  of the more famous reports that we looked at, a kid

         16  was covered with grape juice, it was reported that

         17  he was covered with bruises. Everybody rushed to the

         18  scene, nothing happened. You don't need to remove

         19  that kid to a CAC in that case.

         20                 But there was a number of cases we

         21  found where a CAC might be useful. At the time we

         22  did this report there was no CAC in Queens. Other

         23  problems were the times that CACs were open. So, a

         24  lot of the time CACs might have been in the

         25  particular district, but they weren't open at 9:00,
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          2  10:00 at night, or they didn't have particular

          3  specialists available at certain periods. And, so,

          4  in looking at the CACs, I think the times that they

          5  were open, the availability of staff they have --

          6  and the CACs don't only serve IRT cases, they're

          7  also serving a whole host of other cases. You know,

          8  the IRT cases may be identified through the initial

          9  transmittal, but you may go, a child protective

         10  worker may go to a case and say, look, this actually

         11  is something that we need to remove a kid to a child

         12  advocacy center to have an examination. So, they

         13  serve a whole range of cases, and having greater

         14  time available, to the extent there are resources

         15  available for that, I think would be helpful.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Just one more

         17  quick question. Again, thank you. Your report was

         18  very, very helpful to us.

         19                 I was struck by Commissioner Kelly's

         20  candor in talking about the role that those

         21  relationships played between, you know, folks on the

         22  front line, and I thought I heard him say correctly

         23  that if you know someone who is an expert in the

         24  work and someone is from ACS and they say, hey,

         25  there is nothing here, you know, everyone sort of
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          2  goes back to doing what they were doing, and I can

          3  understand that, but I appreciate in one of your

          4  earlier recommendations was to create a COMSTAT-type

          5  approach to this work, which I think will be very

          6  valuable. And I'm still concerned that, you know,

          7  there's not any kind of mandatory comparing of notes

          8  that occurs here in a more formalized way. Because,

          9  again, it just strikes me that, and I think to be

         10  fair to the officers involved, it doesn't sound like

         11  their mission is particularly clear. You know, there

         12  are still gray areas about how the protocol works,

         13  and it doesn't sound like people have necessarily

         14  been trained sufficiently in that.

         15                 But you know, I've got to believe

         16  that there was a sort of mandatory sharing of

         17  information that you'd see some different outcomes;

         18  what do you think of that?

         19                 MR. ROSS: The first thing you would

         20  have to do is get that point person at each one of

         21  these different agencies. So, at ACS you have a

         22  liaison with the Police Department, he deals with a

         23  lot of the data collection issues. He's the person

         24  who interacts with the IRT coordinators to find out

         25  what happened on each case.
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          2                 To my knowledge, and, again, our

          3  report is a couple of years back when we actually

          4  did the research, there is no similar point person

          5  in the Police Department who fulfills that role, or

          6  at any of the District Attorneys, and as you can

          7  imagine, this is another resource issue.

          8                 If you wanted to compare notes on

          9  these cases, I'm not sure how that would happen on a

         10  consistent basis, unless you had someone at the

         11  Police Department whose job it was to make sure that

         12  happened, that the data was collected, that these

         13  meetings took place, unless you had someone who was

         14  responsible for that program.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I think

         16  it would certainly help in terms of what some of the

         17  case workers said, too. I mean, it sounds like

         18  there's still a real gulf in terms of the day-to-day

         19  work, and it's too much of the case workers being in

         20  sort of a supplicant situation rather than

         21  colleagues, you know, working on a problem together.

         22  And, so, maybe that's one of the solutions.

         23                 I want to thank you for your

         24  testimony. We're obviously going to be looking

         25  forward to working with you closely as we go forward
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          2  on this issue. And please feel free to give us

          3  additional recommendations as you go along.

          4                 MR. ROSS: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And before we

          6  close this, I want to mention that we have testimony

          7  that's been submitted for the record by the

          8  Citizens' Committee for Children, so that will go in

          9  the formal record.

         10                 I want to thank my colleague Chair

         11  Peter Vallone, Jr., and all of the members of our

         12  Committee. I think this was a very important

         13  hearing, and hopefully it will begin to allow the

         14  Council to play an important role in some of the

         15  improvements that have to happen going forward.

         16                 Chair Vallone? Okay, and on behalf of

         17  Chair Vallone and myself, this joint session of the

         18  Public Safety Committee and the General Welfare

         19  Committee is adjourned.

         20                 (The following written testimony was

         21  read into the record.)

         22

         23

         24  Written Testimony Of:

         25  Jennifer March-Joly
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          2  Associate Executive Director for Program and Policy

          3  Citizens' Committee for Children of New York, Inc.

          4

          5

          6                 Good morning, I am Jennifer

          7  March-Joly, Associate Executive Director for Program

          8  and Policy at Citizens' Committee for Children of

          9  New York, Inc. (CCC), a 61 year old independent

         10  child advocacy organization dedicated to ensuring

         11  that every New York City child is healthy, housed,

         12  educated, and safe.

         13                 I would like to thank Council Member

         14  deBlasio as well as the members of the New York City

         15  Council General Welfare Committee for holding this

         16  public hearing on ways to improve collaboration

         17  between the New York Police Department (NYPD) and

         18  the Administration for Children's Services (ACS).

         19                 In light of the tragic deaths of

         20  children known to ACS and the changing child welfare

         21  climate, it is logical to explore any and all system

         22  improvements that can better protect New York City

         23  children. It is easy to see why our City's law

         24  enforcement officials play a key role in protecting

         25  children that are in h arm's way just as the police
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          2  department does for every New Yorker, and therefore,

          3  reasonable to expect collaboration between NYPD and

          4  child protective workers to ensure child safety and

          5  child well-being, particularly in instances of

          6  extreme abuse. My goal today is to contribute to

          7  this public dialogue by 1.) Providing a historical

          8  overview of the City's efforts to coordinate such

          9  collaboration; 2.) Discussing challenges and

         10  barriers that impede efficient coordination; and 3.)

         11  Making recommendations on how to build upon

         12  practices that are already in place.

         13                 For decades, cities nationwide have

         14  taken measures to enhance coordination between law

         15  enforcement and child welfare workers. However, New

         16  York City has arguably been the most aggressive in

         17  pursuing child welfare and police coordination

         18  dating back to the 1980's, and has seen great

         19  success in this effort with its implementation of

         20  the Instant Response Teams (IRT) initiative.

         21                 The IRT protocol was implemented in

         22  1998 in an effort to protect young victims of severe

         23  physical and sexual abuse. The objective was

         24  twofold: 1.) To remove children from immediate

         25  danger and conduct joint-interviews with ACS child
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          2  protective workers and police officers in order to

          3  reduce the level of trauma experienced when children

          4  are questioned multiple times; and 2.) To enhance

          5  the gathering of evidence to ensure successful

          6  prosecution of child abusers.

          7                 According to the protocol, an IRT

          8  coordinator initiates an instant response after

          9  determining that a case meets the requirements for

         10  classification as an IRT case.

         11                 Decisions are largely based on the

         12  types of allegations associated with a report of

         13  alleged abuse or neglect (see attached IRT protocol

         14  for description of allegations).

         15                 Once a determination is made, the IRT

         16  coordinator contacts the NYPD and sends a child

         17  welfare worker to locate the child.

         18                 Again, keep in mind that the goal is

         19  to execute a quick, coordinated, and effective

         20  response between child protective workers and the

         21  NYPD. To that end, since implementation of the

         22  protocol, vast improvements have been made in

         23  response time of these coordinated efforts with

         24  nearly all caseworkers responding to an IRT case

         25  within two hours or less or receipt of a report of
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          2  extreme maltreatment.

          3                 Typically, once a child is located,

          4  the child is interviewed and examined by a child

          5  protective worker and police officer in a

          6  child-friendly, non-threatening, and safe

          7  environment - oftentimes in a Child Advocacy Center

          8  (CAC).

          9                 Within five years, the number of

         10  instant response cases grew from 799 in 1998 to

         11  4,064 in 2002 (see appendix for current figures).

         12  Consider just how many children's lives were spared

         13  and how many children were rescued from severe abuse

         14  by these coordinated responses between the NYPD and

         15  ACS child protective workers.

         16                 The development and implementation of

         17  the IRT protocol is an important accomplishment that

         18  sets NYC apart from other cities. Having said this,

         19  the recent child fatalities require us to think

         20  about ways that this good protocol could be made

         21  even stronger. Child safety from abuse and neglect

         22  deserves our constant vigilance, and we can never

         23  become complacent. We must continuously review and

         24  improve protocols and performance.

         25                 Despite the merits of the IRT
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          2  initiative, several challenges and barriers exist

          3  that limit coordination and immediate response to

          4  high-risk situations. In 2004, the Vera Institute of

          5  Justice evaluated the efficacy of the IRT and found

          6  that both interagency and intra-agency challenges

          7  can hinder effective coordination.

          8                 Their findings suggest that at the

          9  time of the study caseload size and workload of both

         10  ACS frontline staff and police officers affected the

         11  timeliness of responses.

         12                 These time constraints and workload

         13  issues of ACS child protective workers and police

         14  officers did not promote a coordinated response,

         15  instead, investigations/interviews sometimes began

         16  with whichever party arrived first instead of

         17  jointly - contradicting the primary objective of the

         18  IRT. The Vera study also found that disparities

         19  existed across boroughs in response time and

         20  performance.

         21                 ACS data shows that the number of IRT

         22  cases has dropped by 20% from 3,599 in FY03 to 2,894

         23  in FY04; and current-fiscal-year-to-date figures

         24  fall below last year's. However, despite the dip in

         25  IRT responses, the annual number of child fatalities
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          2  has remained unchanged. This suggests that overall

          3  the child welfare system alone continues to protect

          4  thousands of children at risk every year.

          5                 Nonetheless, the heartbreaking death

          6  of Nixzmary Brown warrants continuous oversight and

          7  evaluation of the IRT protocol, as you are asking

          8  for today, in an effort to continue to strengthen

          9  and build upon current practices. There are good

         10  reasons why the NYPD and ACS child protective

         11  workers need to work better together on cases of

         12  severe abuse. There is also strong evidence that ACS

         13  keeps most children safe from abuse and neglect on

         14  its own.

         15                 Moving forward in our collective

         16  effort to ensure child safety, we must give careful

         17  consideration to the staffing levels, ACS child

         18  protective workers' caseload size, and NYPD

         19  workload. We must also focus on supervision and the

         20  level and frequency of training on the IRT protocol

         21  for both ACS frontline staff and the NYPD in order

         22  to improve the quality of coordinated responses to

         23  extreme abuse.

         24                 On a related matter, I urge you to

         25  consider funding for the City's 5 Child Advocacy
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          2  Centers. The CAC's play a critical role in the IRT

          3  initiative and provide the only place where a child

          4  can be assessed, examined, and debrief by a team of

          5  ACS, NYPD, medical, social workers, and professional

          6  staff all in one place and in one time. The proposed

          7  CFY07 budget cuts $500,000 in city dollars allocated

          8  to the CAC's.

          9                 Each child fatality serves as a

         10  reminder that continuous oversight and monitoring is

         11  needed to protect children and ensure that every

         12  child has a safe and stable family.

         13                 In closing, I'd like to thank you

         14  once again for allowing me the opportunity to

         15  participate and contribute to this important work.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:43 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 21st day of February 2006.
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